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WELCOME

LETTER OF COMPLIANCE

Welcome to WorkCover Queensland’s annual
report for 2012-2013.

11 October 2013

WorkCover is committed to open communication with our customers and
stakeholders. This annual report summarises WorkCover’s results,
performance, outlook and financial position for 2012-2013.
WorkCover provides workers’ compensation insurance for Queensland
employers, compensating and helping workers with their work-related
injuries. We work hard to be a customer focused insurer and aim for
insurance excellence. Our key focus is on a prompt and effective return to,
or stay at work outcome for injured workers at the lowest possible cost for
employers. We work with all parties to help rehabilitate injured workers so
they can return to work quickly and safely.

About this report
Under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, WorkCover
is required to produce an annual report. This report has been prepared to
meet the needs of stakeholders and the accountability requirements under
the Financial Accountability Act 2009.
WorkCover is committed to providing accessible services to
Queenslanders from all cultural and linguistic backgrounds. If
you have difficulty understanding this report, you can contact
us on 1300 362 128 and we will arrange an interpreter to
communicate the report to you.
To view previous reports please visit our website workcoverqld.com.au.
If you wish to speak to us about this report or would like to obtain a copy
of the report in paper form, please contact:
Communications
WorkCover Queensland
GPO Box 2459, Brisbane QLD 4001
Tel: 1300 362 128
Fax: 1300 651 387
workcoverqld.com.au
Email: info@workcoverqld.com.au

The Honourable Jarrod Bleijie MP
Attorney-General and Minister for Justice
GPO BOX 149
BRISBANE QLD 4001
Dear Minister
I am pleased to present the 2012–2013 WorkCover Queensland
annual report.
I acknowledge the contributions of our Board and, most of all, the
hard work and dedication of our people, each of whom have helped
us to care about our customers and provide appropriate workers’
compensation cover.
I certify that this annual report complies with:
the requirements under the Workers’ Compensation and
Rehabilitation Act 2003
the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act
2009 and the Financial Performance Management Standard 2009,
and
the detailed requirements set out in the Annual Report
Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies.
A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found
at page 120.
Yours sincerely
Glenn Ferguson
Chair
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ABOUT WORKCOVER

OUR VISION, VALUES
AND GOALS

Our business

To excel in workers’
compensation insurance to
provide the best possible
benefits and rehabilitation
programs for workers at the
lowest possible premium for
employers.

WorkCover Queensland is a government owned statutory body, providing workers’
compensation insurance in Queensland since 1997. We are self-funded and operate
as an independent, commercial enterprise, with income derived from premiums
paid by employers and returns on our invested funds. As a not-for-profit entity,
excess funds are returned to employers and workers through premium rate
reductions, improved benefits and better services.
We are a customer focused insurer and aim for insurance excellence. Despite it
being mandatory for all Queensland employers to hold a WorkCover accident
insurance policy (unless employers hold a self-insurance licence), WorkCover
strives to be competitive with commercial insurers. Our approach is simple: build
lasting, valued relationships with our customers and stakeholders. This means
understanding and meeting customers’ needs and evolving our business processes
to suit these needs.
This year we:
insured more than 153 000 employers
managed over 88 000 new statutory claims
managed over 3 700 new common law claims
employed approximately 800 full time equivalents.

Our services
Our accident insurance policy covers employers for the cost of work-related
injuries providing injured workers with weekly compensation, medical and other
benefits after a workplace accident. We focus on helping workers injured at the
workplace achieve a stay at work or safe and early return to work, working directly
with them, their employer, and their medical and allied health providers.
WorkCover also offers:
household workers’ insurance, covering an injured household worker (such as a
gardener)
workplace personal injury insurance, providing protection for individuals other
than workers who receive remuneration or other benefits for performing work
or providing services (such as a director of a corporation)
other contracts of insurance.

Our industry
In Queensland, a worker can make a claim for a workplace injury, no matter who
or what caused their injury. The Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act
2003 states every Queensland employer must have a workers’ compensation policy
with WorkCover Queensland, unless licensed as a self-insurer. We manage
approximately 90% of all workers’ compensation claims in Queensland, with selfinsurers accounting for the remaining 10%. The Queensland workers’
compensation scheme is independently regulated by Q-COMP.
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WORKCOVER

Unlike some other workers’ compensation authorities in Australia, WorkCover is not
responsible for workplace health and safety. In Queensland, this regulatory activity
aimed at preventing workplace accidents is the responsibility of Workplace Health
and Safety Queensland (WHSQ), part of the Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland within the Department of Justice and Attorney-General. WorkCover
works with WHSQ to encourage employers to provide safe work environments for
QUEENSLAND
ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
their employees, ultimately reducing their claim frequency and insurance premium.

OUR VALUES
Excellence
We seek to excel and
pursue continual
improvement.
Integrity
We aim to always do the
right thing.
Responsiveness
We respond in a timely and
welcoming way and deliver
solutions.
Respect
We are considerate of the
rights and dignity of others.

GOALS
WorkCover’s goals are to:
be financially viable, well
managed and efficient,
balancing injured worker
and employer needs;
be a customer focused
insurer; and
be an organisation of
professional, engaged
people.

household workers’ insurance, covering an injured household worker (such as a
gardener)
workplace personal injury insurance, providing protection for individuals other
than workers who receive remuneration or other benefits for performing work
or providing services (such as a director of a corporation)

insurer; and
be an organisation of
professional, engaged
people.

other contracts of insurance.

Our industry
In Queensland, a worker can make a claim for a workplace injury, no matter who
or what caused their injury. The Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act
2003 states every Queensland employer must have a workers’ compensation policy
with WorkCover Queensland, unless licensed as a self-insurer. We manage
approximately 90% of all workers’ compensation claims in Queensland, with selfinsurers accounting for the remaining 10%. The Queensland workers’
compensation scheme is independently regulated by Q-COMP.
Unlike some other workers’ compensation authorities in Australia, WorkCover is not
responsible for workplace health and safety. In Queensland, this regulatory activity
aimed at preventing workplace accidents is the responsibility of Workplace Health
and Safety Queensland (WHSQ), part of the Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland within the Department of Justice and Attorney-General. WorkCover
works with WHSQ to encourage employers to provide safe work environments for
their employees, ultimately reducing their claim frequency and insurance premium.
You can contact us by phone on 1300 362 128, fax on 1300 651 387 or email at
info@workcoverqld.com.au. Our corporate office is located at 280 Adelaide Street,
Brisbane. We have four customer service centres located in metropolitan
Brisbane at Brendale, Cannon Hill, Oxley and Logan.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
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CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITMENT

OUR COMMITMENT
TO CUSTOMERS

Our commitment to customers
Customer service
commitment
Statement of
Corporate Intent

WorkCover Queensland is committed to providing exceptional service and engaging
with our customers and stakeholders. Our values of excellence, integrity,
responsiveness and respect are expected to be incorporated into everything we do:

Service
WorkCover’s aim is to deliver excellent customer service and to make doing
business with us easy. We will always strive to meet our customers’ expectations
by:

Service
Engagement
Recovery from injury
Information and feedback

personally answering calls during business hours
listening first, then responding in a timely way
communicating openly and in plain language
providing contact details of a person to assist
being fair and impartial in all our interactions.

Engagement
WorkCover
cares
about our>customers
and
stakeholders
wants to engage
Annual Report
2012-2013
Leading the
way
> Board ofand
directors
with them in a positive way for our mutual benefit through:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
understanding individual requirements
asking how we can improve

providing regular updates
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD,
FANZCN
proactively
building
relationships
Chair
offering value added services.
Leading the way – Chair
and CEO report
Board of directors
Executive team

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Recovery
from
Law Foundation.
Heinjury
is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
WorkCover is here to support the often difficult and emotional experience of a
work-related injury. We are committed to assisting recovery at work and liaising
with all parties involved to achieve the best possible outcome by:
communicating regularly with everyone involved
undertaking necessary rehabilitation required
BA safe and appropriate return to work
Justin
O’Connor
facilitating
early,
Deputy Chair
providing support to reduce the impact of the injury
assisting
toExecutive
reduce the
any injury
canAssociation
cause.
Justin
is Chief
ofdisruption
the Queensland
Hotels
Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member
of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Information
and feedback
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
WorkCover
values
the
information
and feedback given to us.
Association.
We take all reasonable precautions to protect the information given to us and
privacy by:
BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
storingBailey
personal
information securely
Director
allowing access to information quickly and easily.

Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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Ian Leavers
Director

WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

GOALS
WorkCover’s goals are to:
be financially viable, well
managed and efficient,
balancing injured worker
and employer needs;
be a customer focused
insurer; and
be an organisation of
professional, engaged
people.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT
Introduction
Customer service
commitment
Statement of
Corporate Intent

This Statement of Corporate Intent has been prepared under the direction of, and is submitted by, the Board of Directors of
WorkCover Queensland (WorkCover), in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 (the Act).
This Statement of Corporate Intent should be read in conjunction with the 2012-2016 WorkCover Queensland Corporate Plan.

1. Goals
WorkCover’s goals are to be:

Introduction
1. Goals
2. Main undertakings
3. Nature and scope of
activities during 20122013
4. Financial and nonfinancial performance
targets
5. Capital structure and
payments to the
consolidated fund
6. Borrowings made,
proposed to be made
7. Policies adopted to
minimise and manage
risk of investments and
Leading thethat
waymay
– Chair
borrowings
and CEO report
adversely
affect financial
stability
Board of directors

8.
Policies and
procedures
Executive
team
relating to acquisition and
disposal of major assets
9. Accounting policies
applying to preparation of
accounts
10. Community service
obligations
11. Employment and
industrial relations plan
12. Information to be
reported to the Minister

financially viable, well managed and efficient, balancing injured worker and employer needs
a customer focused insurer
an organisation of professional, engaged people.

2. Main undertakings
WorkCover is a government owned statutory body and is the main provider of workers’ compensation insurance in
Queensland. A WorkCover accident insurance policy covers injured workers for their lost wages and medical and rehabilitation
costs after a workplace accident, and covers employers against these costs and possible common law claims.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
The main provisions of the Act provide the following for workers and employers:
compensation

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
access to damages

employers’ liability for compensation

employers’
obligation
to beFANZCN
covered against liability for compensation and damages under a WorkCover insurance policy
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD,
Chair
management of compensation claims by WorkCover
injury management, emphasising rehabilitation of workers particularly for return to work.
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
ItCourt
is intended
that WorkCover will:
of Queensland.
maintain a balance between:
providing fair and appropriate benefits for injured workers, and
ensuring reasonable premium levels for employers
ensure that injured workers or dependants are treated fairly
BA
Justin
O’Connor
provide
for employers
and injured workers to participate in effective return to work programs
Deputy
Chair
provide
flexible insurance arrangements suited to the particular needs of industry.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty

3.
Nature
scopeofof
during
2012-2013
Ltd.
Justin isand
a member
theactivities
Queensland
Responsible
Gambling Advisory

Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Goal
Strategies
Association.
Financial

Scheduled December 2012 scheme review

Consider premium model to appropriately price and collect premium
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Seek appropriate legislative change as necessary
Director
Manage
monitor
the investment
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer
andand
General
Manager
Corporatestrategy
Services,to maximise investment returns
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
statutory and common law claims data then implement appropriate strategies
Australian Institute of Company Analyse
Directors.
Implement strategies that influence common law claim prevention
Respond to emerging issues
Manage controllable costs to CPI
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Customer/stakeholder
Continue regular
stakeholder
contact
and forums to share information about our business
Simon
is the Acting Deputy Director-General,
Office
of Fair and
Safe Work
and
feedback
our services
Queensland, which is responsible
forseek
overseeing
theondivisions
of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Implement appropriate health benefits of work strategies to encourage stay at/early return
Queensland.
to work
Work with employers and WHSQ to actively prevent injuries
Gain better industry understanding to assist implementation of industry plans
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
People
Addressing workplace health and safety and early return to work (RTW) at WorkCover
Director
Put into
practice
strategies
overall
John is a Director at Master Builders,
a role
he has
held for that
overwill
nineliftyears
andemployee engagement
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
Deliver
on
the
initiatives
agreed
in
the
Enterprise
Bargaining Agreement for 2011-2014
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Implement recruiting and on-boarding strategy
Continue training and developing our people so they excel at their job

4.
Financial
Ian
Leavers and non-financial performance targets

Director
Performance
indicators are focused at the corporate level. As part of WorkCover’s performance management system,
ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
managers and their people have indicators specifically directed to their business units. Actual performance against targets
Ian be
is General
and CEO
of the
Queensland
can
found inPresident
the Highlights
section
of this
report. Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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providing fair and appropriate benefits for injured workers, and

disposal of major assets

ensuring reasonable premium levels for employers

9. Accounting policies
applying to preparation of
accounts

ensure that injured workers or dependants are treated fairly

10. Community service
obligations

provide flexible insurance arrangements suited to the particular needs of industry.

11. Employment and
industrial relations plan
12. Information to be
reported to the Minister

provide for employers and injured workers to participate in effective return to work programs

3. Nature and scope of activities during 2012-2013
Goal

Strategies

Financial

Scheduled December 2012 scheme review
Consider premium model to appropriately price and collect premium
Seek appropriate legislative change as necessary
Manage and monitor the investment strategy to maximise investment returns
Analyse statutory and common law claims data then implement appropriate strategies
Implement strategies that influence common law claim prevention
Respond to emerging issues
Manage controllable costs to CPI

Customer/stakeholder

Continue regular stakeholder contact and forums to share information about our business
and seek feedback on our services
Implement appropriate health benefits of work strategies to encourage stay at/early return
to work
Work with employers and WHSQ to actively prevent injuries
Gain better industry understanding to assist implementation of industry plans

People

Addressing workplace health and safety and early return to work (RTW) at WorkCover
Put into practice strategies that will lift overall employee engagement
Deliver on the initiatives agreed in the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement for 2011-2014
Implement recruiting and on-boarding strategy
Continue training and developing our people so they excel at their job

4. Financial and non-financial performance targets
Performance indicators are focused at the corporate level. As part of WorkCover’s performance management system,
managers and their people have indicators specifically directed to their business units. Actual performance against targets
can be found in the Highlights section of this report.
Indicator

2012-2013 target

Financial
Full funding (funding ratio)

110%

Average premium rate

$1.45

Annual average cost of a statutory claim

$6 300

Annual average paid days of a statutory claim

30 days

Annual average cost of a common law claim

$161 000

Annual average duration of a common law claim

55 weeks

Reduce energy consumption

3% reduction

Customer/stakeholder
Customer engagement

4 out of 5

Return to work

97.5%

Stay at work

50%

People
Employee engagement

3.8 out of 5.0

Lost time injury frequency rate

10

Staff attrition rate

14%

5. Capital structure and payments to the consolidated fund
In accordance with the Act, WorkCover is taken to be fully funded if it is able to meet its liabilities for compensation and
damages payable from its funds and accounts and maintain capital adequacy as required under the Workers’ Compensation
and Rehabilitation Regulation 2003 (the Regulation). The Regulation states that in order to maintain capital adequacy,
WorkCover’s total assets must at least be equal to total liabilities (this correlates to a funding ratio of 100%).
The Act allows for payments to be made to the consolidated fund. The WorkCover Board will make a recommendation to the
Minister with respect to such a payment (if any) following certification of the 2012–2013 financial statements.
WorkCover will also contribute to levies administered by the regulatory authority, Q-COMP by way of an annual levy.

6. Borrowings made, proposed to be made
WorkCover currently has no borrowings and there are none planned for the immediate future. Investment funds are used to
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manage all cash flow requirements. WorkCover’s borrowing policy is outlined in 7.3.
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7. Policies adopted to minimise and manage risk of investments and borrowings that may

and Rehabilitation Regulation 2003 (the Regulation). The Regulation states that in order to maintain capital adequacy,
WorkCover’s total assets must at least be equal to total liabilities (this correlates to a funding ratio of 100%).
The Act allows for payments to be made to the consolidated fund. The WorkCover Board will make a recommendation to the
Minister with respect to such a payment (if any) following certification of the 2012–2013 financial statements.
WorkCover will also contribute to levies administered by the regulatory authority, Q-COMP by way of an annual levy.

6. Borrowings made, proposed to be made
WorkCover currently has no borrowings and there are none planned for the immediate future. Investment funds are used to
manage all cash flow requirements. WorkCover’s borrowing policy is outlined in 7.3.

7. Policies adopted to minimise and manage risk of investments and borrowings that may
adversely affect financial stability
7.1 Investment risk
WorkCover currently invests all excess funds with QIC. WorkCover maintains a balanced investment profile with a long-term
outlook commensurate with being a long-term insurance operation. Derivative instruments are used as part of the
investment strategy to hedge foreign exchange risks and rebalance asset classes.
An Investment Management Agreement governs the arrangement. In addition, the WorkCover Board monitors investment on
a monthly basis and receives at least quarterly presentations from QIC. The Board reviews the investment strategy annually.

7.2 Business risk
WorkCover has a risk management program in place. Risk registers are maintained and monitored by each business division.
Strategies to manage risk are incorporated into each division’s business planning process. The WorkCover Board is
responsible for overseeing the risk management program, including reviewing and monitoring WorkCover’s top strategic
risks.

7.3 Borrowing risk
The Act provides the framework for WorkCover’s procedures for borrowing. WorkCover may enter into such arrangements to
procure equipment up to an amount and on such terms as it considers appropriate. All financing arrangements will be made
in conjunction with Queensland Treasury Corporation in order to establish that applicable rates are competitive and
conditions are appropriate. Board approval will be required for all financing arrangements over pre-defined expenditure
limits. All limits are as stated in the WorkCover delegations.

8. Policies and procedures relating to acquisition and disposal of major assets
In acquiring or disposing of major assets, WorkCover complies with the Financial and Performance Management Standard
2009 and Queensland Treasury guideline—Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.
Major assets may be acquired via purchase, finance lease agreement, donations, or transfer from other government entities.
A business case must be submitted to the CEO and/or General Manager seeking approval. The CEO will present any major
initiatives to the Board for approval. Approval limits are as stated in the WorkCover delegations.
In disposing of major assets, approval must be sought from the appropriate delegated authority. Approval limits are as
stated in the WorkCover delegations.

9. Accounting policies applying to preparation of accounts
WorkCover’s accounting policies are outlined each year in the annual report and are reviewed as part of the financial
statements audit process. Further information on accounting policies is provided in WorkCover’s Financial Management
Practices Manual.

10. Community service obligations
It is not envisaged that the government will require WorkCover to perform any specific community service obligations.

11. Employment and industrial relations plan
WorkCover has implemented an employment and industrial relations plan based on human resources management practices
that are able to respond to the needs of a dynamic environment. Human resource management issues such as the retention
of key people, the development and reinforcement of a performance culture, the alignment of training and development
activities with business goals and customer service are critical to the on-going success of the organisation and have been
addressed in the plan.

12. Information to be reported to the Minister
12.1 Quarterly reporting
A quarterly report will be provided to the Minister within one month of the end of the relevant quarter as required by the Act.
The report will contain information regarding WorkCover’s performance against the Statement of Corporate Intent.

12.2 Annual reporting
A full annual report will be provided to the Minister in accordance with the Act and in compliance with the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2009, which requires WorkCover to give the annual report to the Minister to allow the
report to be tabled in the Legislative Assembly within three months after the conclusion of each financial year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
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HIGHLIGHTS
Customer and stakeholder communication and education
Customer and
stakeholder
communication and
education
Definition of a 'worker'
changes
Online enhancements
Average premium rate
maintained
Common law
Performance overview

WorkCover Queensland has continued to improve communication with our
customers and stakeholders through the use of technology. In the past year, we
have introduced a quarterly enewsletter, highlighting service enhancements and
other important information for customers. We have held more employer and
industry forums and recorded them for online access. We now send targeted
emails, ensuring customers receive timely, industry-related information on all their
workers’ compensation needs.

Definition of a ’worker’ changes
The Queensland Government introduced legislation, effective 1 July 2013, changing
the definition of a ’worker’ for workers’ compensation purposes and aligning the
worker definition with the PAYG test applied under Australian Taxation Office (ATO)
laws. These changes affect who is covered for workers’ compensation particularly
in the construction and transport industries, where there are different contracting
arrangements. Since this change was passed, WorkCover has been educating
customers on the revised definition and its impact.

Online enhancements
WorkCover continues to refine processes to deliver the best customer service. This
year, we launched the new Employer online performance summary feature so that
employers can better understand how their premium is calculated and how their
claims impact on their costs. We also implemented changes to Provider online, with
a shift to online invoicing, recordkeeping and registration for return to work service
referrals, as well as the introduction of Onefile, which enables the exchange of
information more efficient for our panel law firms.

Average premium rate maintained
Queensland businesses benefitted from stability in workers’ compensation
premiums with WorkCover’s average rate remaining at $1.45 per $100 of wages
for the 2013–2014 year. This is still the second lowest average rate of any state in
Australia.

Common law
We continued to reinforce our ‘firm but fair’ common law claims management
approach, completing prompt investigations with employers, making our best offer
early, and maintaining that position. Together with legislative restrictions limiting
the amount of damages claimable and improved return to work outcomes, common
law claim numbers have remained stable.

Performance overview
The scorecard below provides an overview of our performance, including targets
from our Statement of Corporate Intent.
Aims
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Score

What did we achieve?

Full funding ratio of 110%

Met capital adequacy
requirements and maintained a
fully funded position

Consider premium model to
appropriately price and collect
premium

Premium model reviewed and
average rate maintained at $1.45

Manage the average cost of

statutory and
common
law
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
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Common law
We continued to reinforce our ‘firm but fair’ common law claims management
approach, completing prompt investigations with employers, making our best offer
early, and maintaining that position. Together with legislative restrictions limiting
the amount of damages claimable and improved return to work outcomes, common
law claim numbers have remained stable.

Performance overview
The scorecard below provides an overview of our performance, including targets
from our Statement of Corporate Intent.
Aims

Score

What did we achieve?

Full funding ratio of 110%

Met capital adequacy
requirements and maintained a
fully funded position

Consider premium model to
appropriately price and collect
premium

Premium model reviewed and
average rate maintained at $1.45

Manage the average cost of
statutory and common law
claims:
Statutory claim target:
$6 300

Average statutory claim cost
$6 960

Common law target:
$161 000

Average common law cost
$138 059

Manage statutory and common
law average claim durations:
Statutory claim target:
30 days

Average statutory duration:
29 days

Common law target:
55 weeks

Average common law duration:
55 weeks

Participate as required in the
workers’ compensation scheme
review

WorkCover assisted the
parliamentary committee with
information and attended two
public submissions

Seek appropriate legislative
change as necessary

Recommended and implemented
change to the definition of a
‘worker’ based on customer
feedback and experience

Manage and monitor the
investment strategy to maximise
investment returns

Investment strategy reviewed

Analyse statutory and common
law claims data then implement
appropriate strategies

Analysis undertaken and
strategies implemented for
weekly compensation and
provider monitoring

Implement strategies that
influence common law claim
prevention

Return to work focus and best
offer common law policy are
partially responsible for common
law claim number stabilisation

Respond to emerging issues

Various latent onset condition
trends identified and analysed
and continued to be monitored

Manage controllable costs to CPI

Operating expenditure reduced by
2%

Be a customer focused insurer
with high levels of customer
engagement:

n/a

Customer surveys now being
undertaken as frequent pulse
surveys to provide more timely
feedback on services customers
receive

Worker engagement 4.0
out of 5.0
Employer engagement 4.0
out of 5.0
Implement enhanced stay
at/return to work strategies:
97.5% return to work
outcome

Return to work outcome 95.7%

50% stay at work outcome

Stay at work outcome 50.5%

Continue regular stakeholder
contact and forums

Six monthly actuarial briefings
held plus numerous stakeholder
and employer forums

Implement appropriate health
benefits of work strategies to
encourage stay at/early return to
work

Health benefits of work used in
formal and informal
communication, assisting with
return to work

Work with employers and WHSQ
to actively prevent injuries

Working on a number of
programs with WHSQ, eg. IPaM
program; more injury information
provided through employer online

Gain better industry
understanding to assist
implementation of industry plans

Industry plans implemented and
increased knowledge obtained
ANNUAL
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being
used for
tailored
strategies

Addressing workplace health and

Held quarterly Workplace Health
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contact and forums

held plus numerous stakeholder
and employer forums

Implement appropriate health
benefits of work strategies to
encourage stay at/early return to
work

Health benefits of work used in
formal and informal
communication, assisting with
return to work

Work with employers and WHSQ
to actively prevent injuries

Working on a number of
programs with WHSQ, eg. IPaM
program; more injury information
provided through employer online

Gain better industry
understanding to assist
implementation of industry plans

Industry plans implemented and
increased knowledge obtained
being used for tailored strategies

Addressing workplace health and
safety and early return to work at
WorkCover

Held quarterly Workplace Health
and Safety Committee meetings
to consider our claims experience,
delivered monthly online ‘toolbox’
talks, implemented the
recommendations from the 2012
workplace health and safety
framework audit, resulting in a
reduction in staff claims of 16%

Put into practice strategies that
will lift overall employee
engagement
Employee engagement 3.8
out of 5.0

n/a

Introduced internal
communication tools such
as Yammer to improve sharing of
knowledge, build skills, and
enhance engagement

Deliver on the initiatives agreed
in the Enterprise Bargaining
Agreement for 2011-2014

Strategies such as employee
education sessions have been
implemented as agreed

Implement recruiting and onboarding strategy to manage staff
attrition

Strategies implemented resulting
in achieving staff attrition of 7%

Staff attrition rate 14%
Continue training and developing
our people so they excel at their
job

10

Technical and role specific
training reviewed. Ongoing
development activities provided,
eg. management seminars,
education initiatives
and webinars.

WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Leading the way – Chair and CEO report

LEADING THE WAY – CHAIR AND CEO REPORT
Leading the way – Chair
and CEO report
Board of directors
Executive team

We are pleased to present the WorkCover Queensland Annual Report for 2012–2013. In the past year we have
continued to work closely with our customers and stakeholders, building stronger relationships to deliver improved
services. Our financial position has improved which enables WorkCover to provide stability in workers’
compensation insurance for Queensland employers and workers.

Scheme review

Scheme review

On 7 June 2012, the Honourable Jarrod Bleijie MP, Attorney-General and Minister for Justice requested the Finance and
Administration Parliamentary Committee conduct a review of the Queensland workers’ compensation scheme. The committee
was to look at how Queensland’s scheme performs and how it compares to other states. The committee handed down its
findings and recommendations on 23 May 2013. The government has provided an interim response on two key issues:
definition of a ’worker’ and self-insurance licensing and they will respond to the remaining issues by 23 November 2013. In
the meantime, WorkCover will continue to assist the committee and government as required.

Definition of a ‘worker’
changes

Definition of a ‘worker’ changes

Independent Commission
of Audit
Open government
Financial performance

Prior to the committee delivering their findings, the government tabled legislation amending the definition of a ‘worker’ to
align it with the ATO from 1 July 2013. WorkCover welcomed this change which makes it easier for employers and workers to
know who is covered for the purposes of workers’ compensation. Aligning the definition to that of the ATO also reduces
paperwork and gives employers confidence they are complying with legislation.

Investment strategy

Independent Commission of Audit

Outlook

The Queensland Government’s response to the Independent Commission of Audit (Costello report) was released publicly on
30 April 2013, encouraging all government departments and agencies to be more flexible, responsive and efficient in
supporting service delivery. As part of addressing the government’s Public Sector Renewal Program, WorkCover has ensured
our service delivery model in the areas of claim management, corporate services and people management practices meets
‘contestability’ standards, and is the most efficient and effective. We have progressed well with the people management
practices, putting in place an appropriate structure to help us continue to deliver excellent services for our customers and
stakeholders.

Thank you

We will continue our assessment into the areas of claim management and corporate services and ensure recommendations
are implemented to ensure our operations continue to be aligned to industry best practice.

Open government
In line with the Queensland Government’s focus on an Open Government Policy to be more honest and accountable in
decision-making and government processes, we have made access to information easier for our customers. With the use of
technology we have enhanced our online services for customer and stakeholders who now have easy access to more complex
information. In the case of our employers, they now have, at their fingertips, access to detailed information to help them:
prevent and manage workplace injuries, better understand the impact of claims on their premium, forecast premium, and
benchmark against their industry peers. We have also published information to the Queensland Government Open Data
website.

Financial performance
One of our corporate goals is to be financially viable, well managed and efficient, while balancing injured worker and
employer needs. Over the past year, WorkCover has met capital adequacy requirements and maintained a fully funded
position. Excess capital has been transferred to the investment fluctuation reserve which has been re-established following its
depletion during the global financial crisis. With the unpredictable nature of the current economic environment, it is important
and makes good business sense, that adequate reserves are maintained to ensure stability for our customers in premium and
the ongoing viability of the fund.
Our operating result for 2012-2013 was $517 294 million, after tax. This result is due to higher than expected wages growth,
lower than expected claims costs, a decrease in the outstanding claims liability, and strong investment return.
This positive financial result amidst a continuing volatile global economy has been achieved through prudent financial
management and efficiencies throughout all our operations. We have focused on stay-in-business activities and used cost
effective innovation in our communication channels and online services, to continue to improve our service levels.
Queensland employers have also shared in this positive financial result with the 2013–2014 average premium rate
REPORT
2012–2013
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lowest rate
across all
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This gives employers
stability
within the current unpredictable economic environment.
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position. Excess capital has been transferred to the investment fluctuation reserve which has been re-established following its
depletion during the global financial crisis. With the unpredictable nature of the current economic environment, it is important
and makes good business sense, that adequate reserves are maintained to ensure stability for our customers in premium and
the ongoing viability of the fund.
Our operating result for 2012-2013 was $517 294 million, after tax. This result is due to higher than expected wages growth,
lower than expected claims costs, a decrease in the outstanding claims liability, and strong investment return.
This positive financial result amidst a continuing volatile global economy has been achieved through prudent financial
management and efficiencies throughout all our operations. We have focused on stay-in-business activities and used cost
effective innovation in our communication channels and online services, to continue to improve our service levels.
Queensland employers have also shared in this positive financial result with the 2013–2014 average premium rate
unchanged at $1.45 per $100 of wages, the second lowest rate across all Australian states. This gives employers stability
within the current unpredictable economic environment.

Investment strategy
The net return on our investment portfolio for 2012–2013 was 9.7%, an improvement on last year’s result of 3.4%. A sound
investment strategy and a strong performance in the Australian and International equities sectors have contributed to this
positive result. Our investment strategy targets a long-term return of 7% net of fees, by holding investments in a balanced
portfolio.
We will continue to work with our fund manager, QIC to regularly review our investment strategy and monitor the
performance to ensure we minimise our risk and achieve our long-term financial objectives.

Outlook
The next 12 months provide an opportunity for us to further cement the relationships we have built with our customers and
stakeholders. WorkCover is committed to delivering on the five pledges outlined in Queensland Government’s Getting
Queensland back on track by aligning our operations and processes to better meet our customers’ needs and be able to
continue delivering excellent services. We will continue to review the way we do business to ensure our operating model and
services to Queensland employers and workers deliver the best value for money.
Working with our customers, providing them with the communication and education that they need to improve injury
prevention and management will continue to be a key focus for our people. Partnering with WHSQ, employer associations,
industry bodies and local representatives to ensure customers across the state are up-to-date with all their compliance and
industry specific information has proven effective for all parties in the past and will so in the future, therefore we remain
committed to working with our stakeholders in this way. As customer expectations evolve, we will also continue to explore
new and interactive technologies and communication channels to make the business of workers’ compensation easier for all
our customers and stakeholders.
For our people who are dedicated to delivering excellent services, we will work to make sure they have the best tools
available to do their jobs. Our internal technology platforms are in line with best practice and help our people work more
efficiently and effectively, while at the same time, complying with government records management guidelines.
WorkCover remains committed to maintaining a financially viable and stable fund, delivering the best workers’ compensation
scheme to Queensland employers and workers.

Thank you
After the first 12 months of their tenure, we would like to thank our Board members for their support and enthusiasm in
leading WorkCover to achieve excellence in workers’ compensation insurance. Their contributions and hard work are much
appreciated. The same goes for our executive management team and all our people who have continued to meet our
customers’ needs during times of change.
We also thank the Attorney-General, the Honourable Jarrod Bleijie MP and the Queensland Government for their ongoing
support which helps us deliver the best possible benefits to workers at the lowest possible cost to employers.

Glenn Ferguson
Chair
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
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and CEO report
Board of directors

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Executive team

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
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Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
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Glenn
FAAL,
FAICD, FANZCN
MelindaFerguson
is the Chief
Financial
Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Chair
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Executive team
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
BADeputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Justin
O’Connor
Simon is
the Acting
Deputy Chairwhich is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Queensland,
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Queensland.
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
(Hons),Builders,
FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
John
is a Bailey
DirectorBCom
at Master
a role he has held for over nine years and
Director
is
responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Melinda is the
Chief
Financial
and General
Manager
Corporate
Services,
Workplace
Health
and
Safety Officer
Queensland
Board and
a Director
of QLeave.
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Ian Leavers
Director
BSc (Hons),
PhDof the Queensland Police Union of Employees
Simon
Blackwood
Ian
is General
President
and CEO
Director
and
has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
Police Union and as a Union official since 1997.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

Ian Winterburn Dip Acc, BEcon, MBEcon (Hons)
Director
OAMChairman
BEcon (Hons),
(IR)
John
Ian is Crittall
the Deputy
of MAdmin
the National
Retailers Association and has been a
Director
Board
member for the past seven years. He is also a Director of the Wallace
Bishop Group.
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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EXECUTIVE TEAM
Tony Hawkins BCom, Dip Fin Mgt, FCPA
Chief Executive Officer
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Tony has led WorkCover as Chief Executive Officer since 1998. He is a
Director on the Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board. Prior to
this, Tony had 13 years’ insurance experience with the AXA Group and 14
years’ mining experience with CSR. As Chief Executive Officer, Tony
continues to guide WorkCover with a clear focus on continuing excellence.

Trevor Barrenger BA
General Manager Business Solutions
Trevor has had extensive experience in the delivery of business solutions
and technology systems in a number of global consulting organisations. He
has had the opportunity to work on large projects across Europe, America
and Australia, and his experience supports his ability to deliver technology
solutions to meet WorkCover’s business needs and customer service
outcomes.
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Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL,
FANZCN
David has
more than
20FAICD,
years’
experience in the finance and insurance
Chair
sector. As Chief Financial Officer, David ensures WorkCover maintains a
strong financial position. His division provides financial strategy, reporting
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Lexon
Insurance
andthat
the support
Queensland
and
analysis,
taxation,
treasury,Cannon,
compliance,
audit
functions
Law business.
Foundation.
He is also
a Solicitor
of the High
Court of Australia and the Supreme
our
David
the Company
Secretary.
Court of Queensland.

Executive team
Sharon Stratford BPhty, Grad Dip Bus Sys, Grad Cert Mgt
General Manager Customer Services
BAyears’ senior management experience with WorkCover
Justin
Sharon O’Connor
has over 11
Deputy
and
hasChair
worked in the workers’ compensation industry for over 20 years.
Her background and experience support her ability to achieve quality
Justin is Chief
Executive
of the at
Queensland
Association
Union
of
outcomes
for injured
workers,
the lowestHotels
cost for
employers.
She places
Employers
and
is a Director
at Intrust Super
and IS
Financialfocused
Planning Pty
a
priority on
engaging
with stakeholders
and Fund
delivering
customer
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
services.
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Irene Violet BHSc (Rehab Couns), BA (Psych), MBA
General Manager Corporate Services
(Hons),
FCPA, injury
FAICD sector for over 18 years. She has
Melinda
Irene
hasBailey
workedBCom
in the
personal
Director
driven
continual improvements in WorkCover’s high volume processing
centres to deliver a more responsive service to customers. She is also
Melinda is the
Financial compliance,
Officer and General
Manager property
Corporate
Services,
responsible
forChief
the customer
communication,
and
Heavy Vehicle
National and
Regulator.
is ateams.
FellowIrene
CPA and
a Fellow
facilities
management,
humanMelinda
resources
is a is
Director
of of the
Australian
Institute
of Company
Directors.(PIEF).
the
Personal
Injury Education
Foundation

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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We strive to be a customer focused insurer, actively engaging with customers and
stakeholders. We encourage employers to focus on injury prevention, or in the
event of an injury, a stay at or return to work outcome for workers. We are
committed to providing exceptional service and engaging with our customers and
stakeholders. Our values of excellence, integrity, responsiveness and respect
are incorporated into everything we do.

Injury management

Our relationships

Our goal

Our customers are the employers we insure and the workers we help to recover
from work-related injuries. In our efforts to achieve quality results for our
customers, we work with our stakeholders including medical and allied health
providers, industry and union associations, lawyers and the wider community and
interstate counterparts.

Our relationships
Customer & stakeholder
engagement

‘Thank you for your email and all
of the assistance you have
provided us. At all times you have
proven a wealth of knowledge and
have always been keen to help in
any way possible. I believe the
results speak for themselves, with
year on year reductions in both
claim numbers and premium
amount. This would not have
occurred without your input and
expert guidance’

Employer

Customer & stakeholder engagement
This year we moved away from our annual engagement survey and began the
process of pulse surveys, looking into specific customer experiences. Our aim is to
send surveys to customer groups throughout the year to allow us to get real time
feedback from customers on the issues that matter most to them. Key touch points
will include: premium renewal, claim management, and claim closure.

‘I would like to thank each and
every one of you for doing such
an important and (at times)
difficult job. The worrying time
after my accident was made so
much easier with your help.’

Worker

We received a number of customer compliments this year relating to our customer
service and available resources. We are proud of the service our people deliver and
thank them for their continued efforts to go above and beyond for their customers.
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STAKEHOLDER LIAISON
Scheme monitoring and review
Stakeholder liaison
Industry initiatives
Regional plans
Easy to do business with
us
Injury management

Scheme monitoring and
review
Working together
National involvement

WorkCover Queensland in conjunction with Q-COMP once again delivered sixmonthly stakeholder actuarial briefings. The two briefings were held in November
2012 and June 2013, with presentations from PriceWaterhouseCoopers and Finity
actuaries. The briefings provided stakeholders with up-to-date information on the
scheme’s financial and claims performance. Attendees included unions, industry
group representatives, legal providers and government agencies.
The report from the inquiry into the operations of the Queensland Workers’
Compensation Scheme undertaken by the Finance and Administration
Parliamentary Committee was delivered on 23 May 2013. The committee received
184 original public submissions plus 60 supplementary submissions. WorkCover
assisted the parliamentary committee with information and attended two public
submissions. WorkCover will implement any actions required by government when
it responds to the committee’s 32 recommendations.
Prior to the committee’s report being released, government tabled legislation
amending the definition of ’worker’ to align with the ATO from 1 July 2013. Since
this change was passed, WorkCover has been communicating with and educating
customers and stakeholders on the revised definition and its impact on employers’
insurance coverage, particularly in the construction and transport industries.
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Throughout the year, we worked with various stakeholders on topics of mutual
interest. Activities have included:
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and CEO report
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A series of presentations given to Ai Group members in both metropolitan and
Glenn
Ferguson
FAICD,
FANZCN
regional
areas.FAAL,
Topics
included
managing secondary psychological conditions,
Chair
engaging doctors during the return to work process and helping workers to
recover. We have also spoken to individual members through our Ai Group
Glenn
is a Director
Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon
Insurance
the Queensland
relationship
andof
attended
their
regular
Member
Safety and
Network
meetings to
Lawfurther
Foundation.
Hewith
is aand
Solicitor
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High Court
of Australia
and the Supreme
engage
receive
feedback
from their
members.
Court of Queensland.
Forums with allied health associations in September and November 2012 and
June 2013 to share information and seek feedback on the workers’
compensation scheme, WorkCover’s processes and communication with
providers. These allied health associations represent providers such as
occupational therapists, physiotherapists, hand therapists, psychologists,
exercise physiologists, and chiropractors.
In May
2013, we
BA addressed the Medico-Legal Society of Queensland with
Justin
O’Connor
Q-COMP
Deputy
Chairas part of their workshop on workers’ compensation medico-legal
reporting. We also presented to Griffith University’s second year medical
students
onExecutive
workers’ of
compensation
in anHotels
effort Association
to start early
withof
doctor
Justin
is Chief
the Queensland
Union
education.
focused
on early
toFinancial
work andPlanning
writing medical
Employers
andThe
is apresentation
Director at Intrust
Super
Fundreturn
and IS
Pty
certificates
for
capacity
rather
than
incapacity.
In
our
session
at
the
Rural
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Doctors’
Association
of
Queensland
Conference
in
June
2013,
we
spoke
with
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
WHSQ about keeping rural workers well from an injury prevention and
Association.
management perspective.
Feedback is gathered through our relationship building activity with key legal
associations and major plaintiff law firms. We hold quarterly briefing sessions
with our panel law firms and annual briefing sessions to our panel barristers.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Other general presentations delivered to stakeholder groups included:
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Australian Medical Association Queensland conference in July 2012
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Queensland
Council
of UnionsDirectors.
educational forum in July 2012
Australian
Institute
of Company
Queensland Law Society’s Personal Injuries conference in July 2012.

National involvement
WorkCover continues to support national initiatives which will result in enhanced
outcomes for Queensland. This year we continued to participate as Queensland’s
BSc
(Hons),
Simon
Blackwood
representative
on the
Heads
ofPhD
Workers’ Compensation Authorities and maintained
Director
our membership of the Personal Injury Education Foundation (PIEF) including
representation on the Board and subcommittees.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland,
which iswith
responsible
During 2012–2013,
PIEF we:for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
facilitated the national delivery of the online interactive program on
‘Understanding Accident Compensation in Australia and New Zealand’
presented at the Strategic Claims Management post-graduate residential
program as part of the Graduate Diploma of Management (Personal Injury) run
in conjunction with Deakin University
(Hons),
MAdmin
(IR)
John
Crittall
helped
hostOAM
theBEcon
national
PIEF
conference
held in Brisbane in August 2012.
Director
In February 2013, WorkCover hosted the fourth multi-jurisdictional Premium
John
is a Director
Master
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he representatives
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nineWorkCover
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The
forumBuilders,
was attended
from
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key areas
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New
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WorkSafe
Victoria,
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WorkCover
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Australia,
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legalTasmania
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services and training. John
is apremium
Director managers
of the
WorkCover
and PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Senior
Workplace
Health and discussed
Safety Queensland
Board and
a Director
QLeave.
from each jurisdiction
current premium
positions
andof
issues,
shared new
programs and projects, as well as discussed emerging trends.
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INDUSTRY INITIATIVES

Regional plans

Building on the industry alignment strategy we have implemented over the last two years, we are continuing to work with all
Queensland industry groups to provide our customers with relevant industry-specific information to help them with their
injury prevention and management strategies. We do this by holding industry-specific forums, which employers can attend or
view online. Feedback received from employers is that they find these forums useful and a good way to exchange information
with their industry peers. In July 2012, we also introduced our industry microsites, which contain news, events and tools
specific to each industry. In combination, these forums and microsites provide employers with the relevant information to
improve their safety record and return to work outcomes.

Easy to do business with
us

Agriculture

Stakeholder liaison
Industry initiatives

Injury management

Agriculture
Tourism and
accommodation
Mining and resources
Construction
Transport
Manufacturing
Health and Communities
Professional and
administrative services
Education
Retail
Leading the way – Chair
and CEO report
Board of directors
Executive team

This year in the agriculture, forestry and fishing industry we increased the awareness of workplace risks, particularly
across the beef cattle and fruit and vegetable industries where injuries are more frequent. To assist in delivering this
message, we held educational forums and workshops with WHSQ in Bundaberg, Cloncurry and Cairns, addressing
prevention as well as injury management and return to work strategies.
As only a third of the people injured in this industry do stay at work to recover, presentations to rural doctors were
delivered in Cairns and Mackay to consider practical applications for the health benefits of work. We also presented at the
biennial remote health conference in Mount Isa on the same topic.
We have regularly contributed educational articles to the WHSQ rural newsletter and attended their Rural Industry Sector
Standing Committee meetings along with bimonthly rural WHSQ meetings to plan and implement industry strategies.
To develop our industry knowledge we have attended a number of association events and spoken with employers and
workers regarding workers’ compensation. This year, we attended Growcom’s Pineapple Field Day, Queensland Dairy
Farmers’ Annual Conference, Beef Australia Beef Week and regional Safety Week breakfasts.
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Tourism and accommodation
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WorkCover Queensland hosted the tourism industry’s first webinar with Hamilton Island Resort in March 2013. Dr Graeme
Edwards and Hamilton Island Resort representatives discussed the strategies they use to enable a positive and
sustainable return to work outcome for injured workers. Dr Edwards spoke about what employers can do to enable a stay
at work
outcome,
suggesting
employers liaise with medical providers to build a bank of suitable duties prior to an injury to
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL,
FAICD, FANZCN
enable a prompt return to work. A representative from Hamilton Island Resort went through the strategies they have
Chair
implemented that have led to better injury management outcomes.
Weishave
continued
to contribute
to the
Accommodation
Association
of Australia’s newsletter throughout the year.
Glenn
a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon
Insurance and
the Queensland
LawOn
Foundation.
Hemicrosite,
is a Solicitor
thepublished
High Court
of Australia
the Supreme
the industry
we of
have
return
to workand
checklists
for chefs and housekeepers, which can be used to
Court
of identify
Queensland.
help
suitable duties to enable a stay at work, or prompt return to work outcome. The checklist is for use by
medical practitioners to outline what duties can be done, and any limitations on those duties. This enables the injured
worker to work while they recover.

Mining and resources
WorkCover’s mining industry team presented at the quarterly Senior Site Executive forum in the lead up to the
BA
Justin
O’Connor
Queensland
Mining
and Safety 2013 conference. The topic of discussion was about WorkCover and workers’ compensation
Deputy
best Chair
practice in the mining industry.
In addition,
we have held
two
mining forums
this
year, withUnion
webinar
Justin
is Chief Executive
of the
Queensland
Hotels
Association
of access offered to those employers in regional areas.
The forums
a supervisor’s
in Fund
returnand
to work,
aspects
of common
Employers
and covered
is a Director
at Intrust role
Super
IS Financial
Planning
Pty law quantum and liability and best practice
Ltd.injury
Justinmanagement.
is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
We conducted
a number
of site
visits Executive
to our larger
customers
where
we discussed new initiatives, reviewed injury
Committee
and delegate
to the
National
of the
Australian
Hotels
prevention and management strategies, and discussed return to work programs and suitable duties.
Association.
This year, together with the Department of Natural Resources and Mines, we presented at joint working parties on
managing physical and psychological injuries in the workplace.
Forums were hosted for the electricity and gas industry in November 2012 and the water and waste industry in May 2013.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Construction
Director
WorkCover implemented a new host employer initiative with Abigroup, a large construction employer, which has
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
committed to assisting small construction employers with return to work programs. Often smaller companies have
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
difficulty providing and sustaining suitable duties. The initiative helps the construction industry to keep employees’
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
knowledge and skills longer and benefits both employers and workers. As part of the initiative, Abigroup has agreed to
take on injured workers and host them on their work sites with suitable duties. The results of this initiative have been
extremely positive, and the goal is to extend this program to other large construction companies.
Construction employer Bechtel has initiated an ‘Alliance’ between construction companies, unions and other parties who
are involved in the Curtis Island projects in Gladstone. The Alliance meets bi-monthly and WorkCover has been invited to
work closely with this group. The intent of the Alliance is to ensure resources and information are shared to enable
trending
and targeting
of the
high risk categories that are causing injuries to workers. The group will evaluate, target and
BSc (Hons),
PhD
Simon
Blackwood
initiate efforts to eliminate and reduce high risk behaviours and enhance opportunities for improvement of safe work
Director
practices within this workforce.
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We continue to liaise with relevant associations such as Master Builders Association, Housing Industry Association and
Queensland.
Queensland Major Contractors Association to make sure their members are aware of any legislative changes, particularly

the change in the definition of a ’worker’, or decisions that will impact them directly. These relationships include delivering
presentations to members, assisting with educational courses and providing articles for publications.

Transport

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Our people continued to educate employers and workers in the transport industry through forums, network meetings,
Director
safety workshops and articles published in industry magazines. A number of topics have been covered from injury

management and prevention to legislative changes such as the definition of a ’worker’.
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
To continuefor
to the
build
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our people’s
knowledge,
weworkplace
provided professional
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key
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return
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workcontractual
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toand
enable
our people
understand
potential barriers to return to work and suitable
safety,
legal
services
training.
John istoabetter
Director
of the
duties
plans.
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
We maintained a strong relationship with the Queensland Transport Association, Natroad, Queensland Bus Industry
Council and Transport Workers union. We also worked with the WHSQ Transport strategy group, and liaised with the
Industry Sector Standing Committee, which reports to the Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board.

Our people were provided an opportunity to observe unique industry experiences including an airside tour at Brisbane
airport, a tour of the Port of Brisbane and its tug boats, climbing to the top of wharf cranes and cargo carriers. This all
Ianbuilds
Leavers
the expertise of our transport industry team.
Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND

Manufacturing
Ian
is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

17

WorkCover has also been focusing on small business education in the construction industry and took the opportunity
throughout the year to link with industry and business associations to deliver educational forums.
We continue to liaise with relevant associations such as Master Builders Association, Housing Industry Association and
Queensland Major Contractors Association to make sure their members are aware of any legislative changes, particularly
the change in the definition of a ’worker’, or decisions that will impact them directly. These relationships include delivering
presentations to members, assisting with educational courses and providing articles for publications.

Transport
Our people continued to educate employers and workers in the transport industry through forums, network meetings,
safety workshops and articles published in industry magazines. A number of topics have been covered from injury
management and prevention to legislative changes such as the definition of a ’worker’.
To continue to build on our people’s knowledge, we provided professional development training around licensing and
return to work for truck drivers, to enable our people to better understand potential barriers to return to work and suitable
duties plans.
We maintained a strong relationship with the Queensland Transport Association, Natroad, Queensland Bus Industry
Council and Transport Workers union. We also worked with the WHSQ Transport strategy group, and liaised with the
Industry Sector Standing Committee, which reports to the Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board.
Our people were provided an opportunity to observe unique industry experiences including an airside tour at Brisbane
airport, a tour of the Port of Brisbane and its tug boats, climbing to the top of wharf cranes and cargo carriers. This all
builds the expertise of our transport industry team.

Manufacturing
This year, the WorkCover manufacturing industry team have worked closely with WHSQ on initiatives such as the
Employers Network Meetings, which are held monthly. These meetings are targeted at employers who experience high
numbers of musculoskeletal injuries, particularly those in the metal fabrication trade. Through these meetings, we engage
with industry associations and employers, and facilitate the sharing of knowledge relating to injury prevention and
management, and initiate mentoring opportunities to help develop solutions to specific problems. As a result of this
involvement, employers have been able to improve their workplace safety record and reduce their premiums.
To ensure our people are industry experts, we have developed a training plan in conjunction with WHSQ. To date, we
have covered topics such as plant guarding, safe forklift operation and correct handling of hazardous chemicals and
dangerous goods. This training has proved invaluable, not only in ensuring we understand our customers’ needs but also
in keeping our people safe on their regular worksite visits.
Educational forums have been held for areas of manufacturing including meat, metals and sugar. These forums provide a
great opportunity for employers to network with their industry peers and share information and experiences.
Our relationships with rehabilitation providers specific to the manufacturing industry have been strengthened, increasing
our knowledge and ability to plan how we can help injured workers return to work. Together we have identified a range of
suitable alternative duties and redeployment options, helping to improve return to work rates.

Health and Communities
This year, WorkCover continued the partnership with WHSQ and Q-COMP to deliver the HealthSAFE Forum 2013. This
forum allowed us to work closely with key employers in the health care industry on injury prevention and stay at work
practices.
To assist with return to work in the health and community care sector, we began to assemble a database of task analysis
guides for employers. Occupations so far include nurse, community worker and cleaner, with many more occupations to
come.
WorkCover has undertaken a number of information sessions for Queensland Health’s Hospital Health Services (HHS)
including:
Formal HHS Board presentations on the health benefits of work including education about the impact of claims on
their people and their premium (Gold Coast, Darling Downs, West Moreton)
Formal HHS Executive Management Group presentations and workshops on the health benefits of work including
education about the impact of claims on their people and their premium (Metro North and South, Townsville,
Sunshine Coast, Gold Coast, Wide Bay, Darling Downs)
Formal HHS managers and supervisors presentations and workshops on the health benefits of work including
education about the impact of claims on their people and their premium (Metro North and South, Townsville,
Sunshine Coast, Gold Coast, Wide Bay, Darling Downs); this has also been conducted on a targeted basis by service
level stream e.g. surgical and perioperative, medicine, community care etc.
Teleconferences with state-wide occupational health and safety teams on various topics including introduction to
WorkCover, health benefits of work and information privacy.

Professional and administrative services
During the year, we focused on initiatives to help improve injury prevention and injury management within the
professional and administrative services industries. This group includes employers in professional, scientific and technical
services, information media and telecommunications, financial and insurance services and administrative and support
services.
WorkCover hosted forums for employers in various small to medium sized businesses, and worked with industry and
employer association representatives to deliver information on common challenges in the industry and share strategies on
overcoming these barriers.

Education
Our first workshop for the education sector was hosted in September 2012 and saw employers from both public and
private schools, as well as universities come together to discuss ways they could work together to improve return to work
outcomes.
Strengthening our relationship with universities, WorkCover attended the Queensland Universities Safety Association
conference in May 2013. Universities face a range of different barriers to schools, so this provided an opportunity for them
to ask questions relating specifically to their circumstances.
WorkCover works closely with Education Queensland, and to maintain that relationship, we set up regular quarterly
meetings with the Brisbane Metropolitan, South East and North Coast regions. These regions hold workshops for return to
work coordinators, principals, and business services managers, and we have been invited on a number of occasions to
speak on injury prevention and management and common law. We also attended schools to meet with injured workers
and principals to discuss and plan return to work programs and suitable duties.
Likewise, we have quarterly meetings with the Catholic Education Commission and have developed a strong working
relationship with them with increased employer satisfaction. We are continuously working on strategies to improve quick
and safe return to work and stay at work principles.
Representatives from WorkCover attended the School Safety Conference in September 2012 to speak about injury
prevention and management for psychological injury claims which was well received. WorkCover has subsequently been
invited to speak again at the next conference and is part of an ongoing commitment to working and engaging with the
education sector.

Retail
The first WorkCover forum for the retail industry was held in October 2012 and focused on one of the larger
classifications, motor vehicle retailing. Speakers included WHSQ and AP Eagers Motors who provided valuable information
regarding early return to work, suitable duties and injury prevention. There was also a presentation on how to put steps in
place to minimise liability.
Education sessions have been delivered one on one with our larger customers, in particular supermarkets, and as a result
we are seeing a decrease in claims costs and common law claims.
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relationship with them with increased employer satisfaction. We are continuously working on strategies to improve quick
and safe return to work and stay at work principles.
Representatives from WorkCover attended the School Safety Conference in September 2012 to speak about injury
prevention and management for psychological injury claims which was well received. WorkCover has subsequently been
invited to speak again at the next conference and is part of an ongoing commitment to working and engaging with the
education sector.

Retail
The first WorkCover forum for the retail industry was held in October 2012 and focused on one of the larger
classifications, motor vehicle retailing. Speakers included WHSQ and AP Eagers Motors who provided valuable information
regarding early return to work, suitable duties and injury prevention. There was also a presentation on how to put steps in
place to minimise liability.
Education sessions have been delivered one on one with our larger customers, in particular supermarkets, and as a result
we are seeing a decrease in claims costs and common law claims.
WorkCover has established a relationship with the National Retail Association and we are committed to ongoing
engagement with their customers to add value.
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REGIONAL PLANS
Stakeholder liaison
Industry initiatives
Regional plans
Easy to do business with
us
Injury management

WorkCover Queensland has a regional focus working with WHSQ and industry
associations to identify risks and opportunities across the state and develop
strategies to promote return to work, stay at/recover at work and prevention of
injuries. We do this across regions identified as Brisbane North and Sunshine
Coast, Central Queensland and Wide Bay, North Queensland, Brisbane South and
Gold Coast, and South West Queensland.
We have travelled extensively throughout regional Queensland, delivering
employer forums and partnering with WHSQ and Q-COMP to present at
conferences. Amongst others, we have visited:
Bundaberg, for a fruit and vegetable forum on the topic ‘Understanding the
impact of injury’ on 20 September 2012
Cairns, for the Remote Vocational Training Scheme’s ‘October workshop for
rural GPs’ on 1-5 October 2012
Cloncurry, for a beef industry forum on the topic ‘Improving health, safety and
injury management outcomes’ on 22 February 2013
Innisfail, for the Cassowary Coast Banana Growers meeting on the topic ‘Injury
trends, management and common law in the banana industry’ on 11 April 2013
Mackay, for the Rural Doctor’s Association of Queensland Conference on 7-9
June 2013.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
We are also working with industry associations on future regional education
programs including presentations for local chambers of commerce in conjunction
with CCIQ.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Leading the way – Chair
and CEO report
Board of directors

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Executive team

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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Ian Leavers
Director
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EASY TO DO BUSINESS WITH US
Stakeholder liaison
Industry initiatives
Regional plans
Easy to do business with
us
Injury management

WorkCover Queensland continuously reviews and refines processes to deliver
the most efficient services to our customers. We are increasing and enhancing
online information available to our customers and stakeholders, reducing
paperwork and providing flexible ways of doing business.
In April 2013, we released a new performance summary feature as part of
our Employer online service to easily identify hot spots in terms of nature and
location of an injury. The new Injury Location tab includes a human silhouette to
visually summarise which parts of a worker’s body are receiving the most injuries.
The Injury Nature tab allows employers to see the type of injury and the number of
claims for that injury type. Both of the tabs provide a five year overview,
comparing year on year and against the industry. A comparison of average
monthly payments is also available. All of this information assists employers in
identifying those high risk areas of their business and implementing procedures to
limit risk of injury. The new format presents detailed information in a simple
layout, with the option to drill down further to see the impact on their premium.

’Thank you for giving us an option
to log in and check on
invoices/remittances. I LOVE it;
it’s made things so easy! Keep up
the good work.’
’I am very conscientious about
saving our resources. So I just
wanted to commend the person
who has finally decided that the
second page of the payment
advice was a waste of paper.
Good on you.’

Each year we renew about 150 000 policies so it is important we make this
experience as simple and easy as possible. This year, we introduced a new,
streamlined declaration of wages form and premium notice to assist employers in
understanding their policy renewal obligations. New functionality was built
into Premium online to accommodate the more detailed information about the
policyholder’s
and
the premium
notice
was reduced
to a single-sided
Annual Reportpremium,
2012-2013
> Leading
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> Board
of directors
document clearly outlining payment and discount options.
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If an employer is registered for Employer online, they can now view:
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Executive team

their premium calculation detail and see how their claims experience impacts on
theirFerguson
premium FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Glenn
a simulation of their premium so they can better budget for upcoming premium
Chair
amounts
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a drill down list of their claims costs for each year
their premium assessments for the past five years, with a detailed breakdown
of how their premium was calculated.
We also further refined our Provider online service offering, with providers now
able to access online invoicing and record keeping. Using the online invoicing
feature,O’Connor
means that
BA these invoices can be processed faster. It also provides an
Justin
electronic
transaction record which can be downloaded as a raw data file to
Deputy
Chair
integrate with the providers’ own system to assist with reconciliation. Also
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wereExecutive
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receiveAssociation
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of the Queensland
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Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
This year we also streamlined how we work with our panel law firms by introducing
Onefile which enables panel lawyers to update directly to our claims database and
online performance dashboards. This makes information exchange, employer
communication, quality assurance reviews and performance management more
Melinda
efficient. Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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INJURY MANAGEMENT
Communication & education
Our customers and stakeholders are important to us, which is why we are committed to working together to improve our
lines of communication and provide education for better customer outcomes.

Stakeholder liaison
Industry initiatives

WorkCover update

Regional plans
Easy to do business with
us
Injury management

The past year has seen a number of important changes and new developments to the workers’ compensation scheme in
Queensland. To improve the delivery of information to our customers and stakeholders and ensure critical information is
being communicated, WorkCover Queensland has implemented an enewsletter to update employers and providers.
The enewsletter highlights key news, case studies and information from the previous three months.

Return to work workshops
This year, our offices hosted a number of industry specific workshops on a range of return to work issues including
communication with treating providers, identifying suitable duties and developing return to work plans. The workshops were
targeted at small to medium sized employers and were very well attended, with positive feedback received.

Communication &
education
Injury Prevention and
Management program
Stay at work / Return to
work
Medical and allied health
strategies
Common law

’We recently moved our business from another jurisdiction to Queensland and
I am amazed and impressed with the level of support we are receiving from
you compared to what we received in the other jurisdiction. It is wonderful to
feel that you are supporting businesses in their endeavours to create safe
work Report
places rather
than focusing
onthe
prosecuting
the of
employer
when
Annual
2012-2013
> Leading
way > Board
directors
something goes wrong. It creates a much different culture in management
which flows on to the workers. Thank you!!’ – forum feedback from attendee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Conferences and trade shows

Leading the way – Chair
and CEO report
Board of directors
Executive team

WorkCover
partnered
with WHSQ
and Q-COMP
to host
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon Insurance
and the Queensland
tradeFoundation.
stalls at the:
Law
He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Safety Institute of Australia Visions conference in
August 2012
Zero Harm at work leadership program (for Transport
and Storage Industry) in August 2012
Queensland Safety Show in June 2013.
Justin O’Connor BA
We alsoChair
hosted trade booths at the:
Deputy
Occupational
Safety inofTransport
conference
in Association Union of
Justin
is Chief Executive
the Queensland
Hotels
September
Employers
and 2012
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of the
Queensland
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work
symposium
in OctoberGambling Advisory
Committee
2012. and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
PIEF Conference—29-31 August 2012
Held for the first time in Brisbane, WorkCover General Manager Customer Services, Sharon Stratford was on the organising
committee. She opened the conference, co-presented at a concurrent session, chaired another session and participated in a
national panel discussion. The conference was attended by many senior workers’ compensation industry figures from
BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
Australia Bailey
and New
Zealand, and three international speakers were among the line-up of presenters. Many of our people were
Director
able to attend, listening to topics related to the theme of Driving Outcomes that Work.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Safe Work Week—21-27 October 2012
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
WorkCover supported WHSQ’s Safe Work Week, designed to raise awareness about the importance of a safe and healthy
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
workplace for all Queenslanders. Events were held across Queensland for the entire month of October, and we actively
encouraged our employers from regional areas to attend.
Q-COMP Return to work Awards, Conference and Expo—30 October 2012
This event recognised innovative ideas, leadership and dedication in helping injured workers return to work. WorkCover was
a sponsor and held a trade booth at the awards, conference and expo.
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Injury Management Conference—18-19 March 2013
Director
WorkCover was a contributor to the bi-annual Injury Management Conference and assisted with the organisation of the
conference.
theme
of the
conference was Office
injury of
management
towards
Simon
is theThe
Acting
Deputy
Director-General,
Fair and Safe
Work better business practices, and over 300 guests
were in attendance.
Queensland,
which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Case studies
Sharing real-life experiences is an important way for us to promote key injury prevention and management messages to our
customers and the community. This year we continued to publish case studies on the topics of employer best safety practice,
common law claims, working together and injury prevention and management. There are many outstanding examples of
workers recovering and employers going above and beyond when providing support. We also illustrated the benefits of injury
prevention
strategies
and
the effect
this
OAM BEcon
(Hons),
MAdmin
(IR)can have on workplace safety, reducing employers’ costs.
John
Crittall

Director
WorkCover worked with the Mantra Hotel Group to prepare a film called ‘Bedding down a safety Mantra’. The film looks at the
transformation
theatMantra
has he
undergone
changing
their and
approach to workplace health and safety and
John
is a Director
Masterorganisation
Builders, a role
has held since
for over
nine years
injury
management.
demonstrated
otherworkplace
employers
couldand
improve their workplace safety culture, reduce
is
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for the The
key film
areas
of industrial ways
relations,
health
injurieslegal
and claims
and minimise
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their employees.
safety,
and contractual
services
and to
training.
John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Injury Prevention and Management program
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The Injury Prevention and Management program (IPaM) is a joint initiative between WorkCover and WHSQ, designed to help
businesses develop better workplace health, safety and injury management systems. IPaM works with employers whose
WorkCover premium rates were capped at twice the industry rate for multiple years. Around 270 employers received
intensive
case management assistance during 2012–2013. Positive results have been achieved by program participants who
Ian
Leavers
have reduced their claims frequency as well as the cost and duration of their claims resulting in premium rate reductions for
Director
QUEENSLAND
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prevention strategies and the effect this can have on workplace safety, reducing employers’ costs.
WorkCover worked with the Mantra Hotel Group to prepare a film called ‘Bedding down a safety Mantra’. The film looks at the
transformation the Mantra organisation has undergone since changing their approach to workplace health and safety and
injury management. The film demonstrated ways other employers could improve their workplace safety culture, reduce
injuries and claims and minimise the risk to their employees.

Injury Prevention and Management program
The Injury Prevention and Management program (IPaM) is a joint initiative between WorkCover and WHSQ, designed to help
businesses develop better workplace health, safety and injury management systems. IPaM works with employers whose
WorkCover premium rates were capped at twice the industry rate for multiple years. Around 270 employers received
intensive case management assistance during 2012–2013. Positive results have been achieved by program participants who
have reduced their claims frequency as well as the cost and duration of their claims resulting in premium rate reductions for
these employers.

Stay at work / Return to work
While we encourage employers to prevent injuries, when they do occur we aim to effectively manage the resulting claims and
the recovery of workers. Staying at work, or prompt return to work following a workplace injury, is the ideal outcome for
both the worker and employer. This is supported by the Health Benefits of Work research undertaken by the Australasian
Faculty of Occupational & Environmental Medicine.
Over the past few years we have been focused on improving stay at work rates and return to work outcomes through
identifying suitable duties for workers at their workplace or looking at alternative work options when suitable duties or
employment are not available at their workplace. As a result of these strategies, it is pleasing to see our return to work
outcomes remain above 95% compared to prior to 2010 when these outcomes were only 91%. Pleasingly our stay at work
rate increased from 47.5% in 2011–2012 to over 50% in 2012–2013.

Medical and allied health strategies
Medical and allied health providers play an important role in our claims management and return to work. Maintaining positive
relationships with these providers and the associations that represent them is beneficial for WorkCover and our customers.
This year, WorkCover formally adopted the Nationally Consistent Approval Framework for Workplace Rehabilitation Providers,
notably endorsing the service standards and minimum selection criteria. We reviewed how we appointed return to work
services providers and how claims were allocated and managed with these providers. In May, providers were able to apply to
provide RTW services, and from July 2013 our people gained access to a comprehensive list of suitable providers throughout
Queensland. Claims will be allocated to providers electronically, and while it is not guaranteed that all providers on the list
will receive work, it is expected that there will be a more equitable distribution of work. This will in turn be beneficial for our
customers who are the recipients of these services which facilitate return to work.
To help our people make well informed and consistent decisions about surgery requests and injury management, we have
developed a range of internal guidelines to deal with the most common injuries and surgery requests. These guidelines help
us deal with the growing number of requests for more progressive and advanced treatment techniques. We’ve developed
these over time with the help of expert medical practitioners and their representative associations. We continue to update
these guidelines with expert external input and they now are an important part of training for our people.
We have also continued to work with our Medical Advisory Panel on claim decisions and surgery requests, providing feedback
to doctors about their reports and engaging their help in developing our detailed surgery and injury management guidelines.
A key strength of the panel is that it includes doctors from a range of specialities and experience who provide prompt advice
and input at a reasonable cost. We recently sought feedback from our people and the panel about how we are working with
them. As a result, in the coming year we will be introducing some enhancements to our panel processes so we can maximise
the value we receive from their expert opinions.

Common law
This year we received excellent industry feedback and results from our “firm but fair” common law claims’ management
approach. This involves us completing prompt claims investigations with employers to ascertain if employer negligence is
established and then making our best offer early. We then maintain that position. We still aim to resolve claims early but we
also defend non-meritorious claims. This approach has contributed to the reduction in average damages paid and better
outcomes at trial, with WorkCover being successful in 68% of trials for 2012–2013, up from 58% for the prior two years.
Other factors have also contributed to the continued reduction in average damages, such as:
the claims mix continuing to include a large proportion of smaller assessed injuries
legislative restrictions limiting the amount of damages claimable
improved return to work helping to control economic loss components.
New common law claim numbers have also remained stable. Reasons for this also include our claims management approach,
the legislative restrictions implemented and improved return to work outcomes.
WorkCover’s Chair, Mr Glenn Ferguson, presented at the Australian Insurance Law Association/Queensland Law Society
Annual Insurance Intensive, ‘Breaking the Waves’ in May 2013. The intensive provided presentations on what the year ahead
holds for the insurance law industry. Mr Ferguson delivered an update on the status of WorkCover’s operations and discussed
the workers’ compensation scheme review.
In managing common law claims, we work with a range of high quality service providers including law firms, barristers,
factual investigators and independent medical experts. Due to changed claim mix and to ensure the highest quality legal
services at a reasonable cost, we reduced the size of our legal panel following a comprehensive and robust tender process.
The new panel of 11 firms was appointed effective 1 July 2013.
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ENGAGED PEOPLE
Overview of workforce
Overview of workforce

Approximately 800 full time equivalents

ICT tools

68% of our workforce is female

Recognising and
celebrating excellence

9% part time employees

Wellness

Average number of service years is 7

Training and development
Community involvement
Operations

Permanent retention rate is 85%
Permanent separation rate is 7%
In our goal of being an organisation of professionally engaged people, we support
our people to be the best they can through: our development and wellness
initiatives, by providing them with the best tools possible, and by recognising and
celebrating their successes. All this helps to build a professional and engaged
workforce, committed to excellence in workers’ compensation.

ICT tools
To enhance productivity and assist our people in their daily activities, we continue
to provide our people with up-to-date equipment and access to the latest
technology.
Over the past year, WorkCover Queensland has:
Supported our efforts to reduce paper and increase efficiency, by transferring
our paper personnel records into electronic files. Each employee’s records are
now electronically and securely stored on our Employee File Site (EFS). Our
people can now complete performance reviews, apply for study, purchased and
family-related leave through electronic forms that workflow through approvals
without the need for printing.
Developed a staff portal on CPIS so our people can access the main WorkCover
system while out on a site visit, improving our quality of service.
Introduced managerConnect, an internal forum for WorkCover managers to
share information, knowledge, management tools and resources. This site
features a blog allowing managers to communicate and share updates and
resources and collaborate more effectively on projects and issues that affect our
people.
Streamlined and improved the accessibility of communication tools for our
people through the introduction of Myintranet. The addition of homepage feeds
for announcements, company news, and our social media channels have allowed
our people to become and stay more connected.
Continued to offer a number of e-learning modules, compliance training and
technical training sessions through an electronic learning system which allows
our people to continue with their personal, professional and career development.
Further developed the use of Yammer across the organisation as a
communication tool. Yammer is now used to distribute internal news, chat about
claims and return to work, discuss technology developments and enhancements
and share social club experiences on the grapevine.
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Introduced training videos created by our people, for our people. These short
video clips cover a range of topics and are designed as quick snap shots of our
processes and service offerings, to supplement or replace other training
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Continued to offer a number of e-learning modules, compliance training and
technical training sessions through an electronic learning system which allows
our people to continue with their personal, professional and career development.
Further developed the use of Yammer across the organisation as a
communication tool. Yammer is now used to distribute internal news, chat about
claims and return to work, discuss technology developments and enhancements
and share social club experiences on the grapevine.
Introduced training videos created by our people, for our people. These short
video clips cover a range of topics and are designed as quick snap shots of our
processes and service offerings, to supplement or replace other training
material.

Recognising and celebrating excellence
Return to work Awards—October 2012
Our people are committed to delivering exceptional outcomes for our customers
and we are proud of their dedication to their work. To acknowledge their work, our
people are able to be nominated in the annual Return to work Awards which are
designed to recognise the achievements of injured workers who get back to work
and the professionals who help them reach their goals. We nominate many of our
customer advisors who have excelled as do our customers who have received
exceptional service. Three of our people were finalists in the Case Management
Achievement award category, with Andrea Dale announced as the overall winner.
Congratulations to all finalists:
Andrea Dale
Bronwyn Rigby
Samantha Lee

Recognition for customer service
Our people in all divisions are regularly recognised and rewarded for their
achievements. Each quarter, Customer Services people are recognised for their
contributions to achieving outcomes for our customers. During 2012–2013,
WorkCover gave awards to 38 Customer Services people. Awards are mainly
professional development activities including registration to the PIEF injury
management conference and annual Return to work conference.

Wellness
Corporate health plans
This year WorkCover offered a range of health related benefits and discounts
through corporate membership with Bupa, NIB or Medibank. Each provider has
different benefits and discounts available to our employees and having multiple
providers gives employees the opportunity to look at each insurer and decide which
suits their needs better.

Flu vaccinations
To help our people stay healthy during the flu season, WorkCover offers our
staff the option to receive a flu vaccination. This year, 334 people participated in
our on-site vaccination program, with many more taking the opportunity to visit
their own doctor and receive a reimbursement for the costs.

Employee assistance program
Our people continued to have access to the Employee Assistance Program (EAP), a
confidential counselling service for them and their families. The service was
provided by qualified, experienced professionals through Davidson Trahaire
Corpsych (DTC). Other services that are available through DTC include
managerAssist – an advisory service that assists managers and team leaders.

Other initiatives
Many of our teams took part in R U OK? Day, a national day of action to promote
conversations between friends, colleagues and loved ones in an aim to help reduce
suicide rates in Australia.
To help our people balance work and outside interests we offer flexible working
arrangements such as purchased leave, banked time, paid maternity leave, and
part-time work arrangements.

Training and development
Our people are encouraged to learn through on-the-job training and self-directed
learning. They invest in technical and compliance training and professional
development topics such as leadership, emotional intelligence, listening skills and
consulting through our internal e-learning platform, short-courses and workshops.

Certified Personal Injury Professionals program
The Certified Personal Injury Professional (CPIP) designation sets the benchmark
for the personal injury industry across Australia and New Zealand. CPIPs
demonstrate the highest standards of professional practice and integrity. They are
distinguished by holding a relevant industry-based qualification or recognised
equivalent, maintaining up-to-date technical skills and knowledge through a
program of professional development and abiding by the PIEF’s Code of
Professional Conduct. In the past year, 32 of our people were registered with the
program being assisted financially by WorkCover.
CPIP designation is recommended for anyone responsible for the management of
personal injury claims or involved in the claims management process, such as
claims officers, technical managers, injury management advisors and team leaders.
The CPIP is also highly relevant for those responsible for developing, implementing
and/or evaluating claims management policies and procedures, either within their
own organisation or across the broader industry.

Study Assistance program
Our study assistance program aims to support and assist employees to achieve
their career goals through tertiary education by providing leave and funding
options from graduate diplomas through to mastersANNUAL
programs.REPORT
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courses we have approved include Occupational Health and Safety, Personal Injury
Management, Certified Practising Accountant program, Business and Management.
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CPIP designation is recommended for anyone responsible for the management of
personal injury claims or involved in the claims management process, such as
claims officers, technical managers, injury management advisors and team leaders.
The CPIP is also highly relevant for those responsible for developing, implementing
and/or evaluating claims management policies and procedures, either within their
own organisation or across the broader industry.

Study Assistance program
Our study assistance program aims to support and assist employees to achieve
their career goals through tertiary education by providing leave and funding
options from graduate diplomas through to masters programs. Some of the
courses we have approved include Occupational Health and Safety, Personal Injury
Management, Certified Practising Accountant program, Business and Management.
During the year:
16 people were approved for financial assistance to study
36 people were reimbursed for their study during the financial year

Development opportunities
Our people undertake development activities on a range of topics and through a
variety of delivery methods. These have included:
Education initiatives: Topics include email etiquette, creating a positive
workplace (bullying/harassment), resilience training and career development.
Development through experiences, with stories about customer outcomes, claim
outcomes, injuries and industry information shared on internal communication
tool Yammer.
Return to Work Matters publication subscriptions including access to webinars to
ensure our people are able to keep abreast of external influences and factors in
workers’ compensation.
Online and workshop training for the new definition of worker introduced 1 July
2013.

Recruitment and onboarding
During the year we reviewed our recruitment practices to ensure we took on the
best applicants possible, those displaying the appropriate professionalism and with
the right skills we need for our roles. We also took the opportunity to revise our
corporate induction. Now all new recruits as well as being inducted in their own
areas, come to a half-day induction session run by general managers who share
our corporate vision and values as well as general information about WorkCover
and the way we work. We believe these strategies have been responsible
for improving our retention rate during the year.

Insight
Insight is our 12-week program designed to provide fundamental management
information for people who have been selected for their potential, aptitude and
interest in a management career with WorkCover. This year, four people
participated in the program. The program has been specifically developed for
people who have limited or no previous management experience, and delivers the
‘nuts and bolts’ of what is required for the role of manager at WorkCover.

Management development
Development of our existing managers is also important to ensure they
appropriately lead our organisation and its people towards achieving our goals.
Manager training and professional development activity has included:
A renowned motivational speaker presented to our managers in June 2013 on
different topics including leadership and motivation.
Workshops in time management, coaching and mentoring, communication,
presentations, and resilience and influencing workshops were delivered to our
managers.
Toolbox sessions included the topics conversations that count, email etiquette
and managing your inbox, back to basics, building resilience, and change
management.
Senior leaders from high performing external organisations have given
lunchtime talks to managers, which have been well received and will continue
on a quarterly basis.

Community involvement
Our people are dedicated to helping the community both personally and
professionally and we encourage our people to support community groups that
share our values.
In 2012–2013 we held fundraising events or contributed in other ways to the
following charities:
Jeans for Genes Day
Salvation Army Christmas appeal
RSPCA Christmas appeal
Tasmanian bushfires appeal
North Queensland floods appeal
Autism Queensland Go Blue for Autism Day
SIDS Red Nose Day

Operations

26

In response to customer and stakeholder feedback, in July 2011, WorkCover
replaced a geographical model of managing customers with an industry alignment
model to provide better service levels to employers and injured workers. This year,
we progressed with our industry alignment model and consolidated our operations.
This means our customers’ needs from end to end—from premium management to
deciding and managing claims, will all be handled in one place by teams who are
industry experts. Under this model, our people are better informed with industry
trends and injury management needs. We have seen the benefits of this model
over the past 18 months with improved return to work outcomes for our customers
and with this in mind, we are continuing with this approach.
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As part of consolidating our industry alignment model, a review of WorkCover

RSPCA Christmas appeal
Tasmanian bushfires appeal
North Queensland floods appeal
Autism Queensland Go Blue for Autism Day
SIDS Red Nose Day

Operations
In response to customer and stakeholder feedback, in July 2011, WorkCover
replaced a geographical model of managing customers with an industry alignment
model to provide better service levels to employers and injured workers. This year,
we progressed with our industry alignment model and consolidated our operations.
This means our customers’ needs from end to end—from premium management to
deciding and managing claims, will all be handled in one place by teams who are
industry experts. Under this model, our people are better informed with industry
trends and injury management needs. We have seen the benefits of this model
over the past 18 months with improved return to work outcomes for our customers
and with this in mind, we are continuing with this approach.
As part of consolidating our industry alignment model, a review of WorkCover
operations was conducted. It concluded that 10 small offices accommodating
between one and 11 staff members each, were relatively expensive to operate on a
per capita basis. In addition, lease agreements for some premises expired on 30
June 2013 providing an opportune time to review the operations of all these
smaller offices. Given the proven benefits of the industry alignment model and end
to end customer management, WorkCover’s smaller operations were consolidated
into the larger customer service centres located in the Brisbane metropolitan
area at Brendale, Cannon Hill, Oxley and Logan.
Staff from smaller offices were given the option to relocate to any one of these
large centres where a job would be made available for them or alternatively, they
were able to request a redundancy. To assist with the change, our people were
given access to a range of support options including professional career counselling
and a comprehensive employee assistance program.
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STATISTICS
Statutory and common
law payments
Statutory claims and
payments by industry
classification
Statutory claims and
payments by injury
nature
Statutory claims and
payments by injury
location
Common law claims and
payments by industry
classification
Common law claims and
payments by injury
nature
Common law claims and
payments by injury
location

We received over 88 000 claims this year, insured more than 153 000
employers, and managed approximately 90% of workers’ compensation
claims in Queensland.
Statutory and common law payments
2013

2012

$M

%

$M

%

Weekly compensation

299.6

24.9

270.2

22.6

Medical/rehabilitation

185.4

15.5

171.2

14.2

Lump sum

169.0

14.1

170.6

14.2

74.5

6.2

68.1

5.7

Travel

7.3

0.6

6.6

0.5

Legal

1.5

0.1

1.2

0.1

0.4

0.0

0.6

0.0

Statutory claims

Hospital

Funeral

737.7

Gross statutory payments

688.5

Common law claims
Settlement out of court

405.2

33.8

450.6

37.5

0.6

0.1

2.1

0.2

Legal costs for defendants

40.1

3.3

45.0

3.7

Outlays for defendants

12.7

1.1

13.4

1.1

2.2

0.2

2.3

0.2

0.7

0.1

0.5

0.0

Settlement in court

Legal costs for plaintiffs
Outlays for plaintiffs

461.5

Gross common law payments

1 199.2

Total gross payments

513.9
100.0

1 202.4

100.0

Statutory claims and payments by industry classification
Number of new statutory claims
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Accommodation and Food

2013

2013

2012

2012

2013

2013

2012

2012

No.

%

No.

%

$M

%

$M

%

6.2

5 447

5.8

31.9

4.3

29.2

4.2

WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
5 511
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Administrative and Support

Statutory claim payments

0.7

Outlays for plaintiffs

0.1

461.5

Gross common law payments

1 199.2

Total gross payments

0.5

0.0

513.9
100.0

1 202.4

100.0

Statutory claims and payments by industry classification
Number of new statutory claims

Statutory claim payments

2013

2013

2012

2012

2013

2013

2012

2012

No.

%

No.

%

$M

%

$M

%

Accommodation and Food
Services

5 511

6.2

5 447

5.8

31.9

4.3

29.2

4.2

Administrative and Support
Services

2 694

3.0

2 892

3.1

25.3

3.4

20.3

2.9

Agriculture, Forestry and
Fishing

2 006

2.3

2 063

2.2

23.5

3.2

26.7

3.9

Arts and Recreation
Services

1 120

1.3

1 241

1.3

8.7

1.2

7.1

1.0

10 367

11.7

11 319

12.1

118.2

16.0

110.2

16.0

Education and Training

6 381

7.2

6 707

7.2

38.6

5.2

37.7

5.5

Electricity, Gas, Water and
Waste Services

1 608

1.8

1 640

1.8

9.8

1.3

9.2

1.3

595

0.7

640

0.7

3.6

0.5

3.6

0.5

12 304

13.9

12 113

12.9

96.7

13.1

90.8

13.2

Construction

Financial and Insurance
Services
Health Care and Social
Assistance
Information Media and
Telecommunications

375

0.4

464

0.5

3.7

0.5

2.4

0.3

15 999

18.0

17 907

19.2

96.3

13.1

97.5

14.3

2 624

3.0

2 744

2.9

40.8

5.5

31.8

4.6

657

0.7

861

0.9

11.0

1.5

10.4

1.5

Other Services

2 852

3.2

3 073

3.3

21.5

2.9

20.4

3.0

Professional, Scientific and
Technical Services

1 857

2.1

2 027

2.2

18.2

2.5

16.3

2.4

Public Administration and
Safety

5 280

5.9

5 662

6.1

52.8

7.2

49.7

7.2

Rental, Hiring and Real
Estate Services

1 091

1.2

1 356

1.4

8.6

1.2

8.7

1.3

Retail Trade

5 590

6.3

5 830

6.2

35.3

4.8

34.0

4.9

Transport, Postal and
Warehousing

4 937

5.6

4 723

5.0

59.3

8.0

53.4

7.8

Wholesale Trade

4 927

5.5

4 843

5.2

33.9

4.6

29.1

4.2

88 775

100

93 552

100

737.7

100

688.5

100

Manufacturing
Mining
Other

Total

Statutory claims and payments by injury nature
Number of new statutory claims

2013

2013

2012

Statutory claim payments

2012

2013

2013

2012

2012

No.

%

No.

%

$M

%

$M

%

Burns

1 782

2.0

1 935

2.1

4.0

0.5

4.2

0.6

Fractures

4 908

5.5

4 908

5.2

92.7

12.6

82.0

11.9

421

0.5

415

0.4

14.5

2.0

12.3

1.8

4 163

4.7

4 038

4.3

48.6

6.6

47.8

6.9

46 823

52.7

48 414

51.9

353.4

47.9

313.1

45.6

Nervous system and
sense organ diseases

2 088

2.4

2 017

2.2

21.8

3.0

18.6

2.7

Other injuries and
diseases

Intracranial injuries and
injuries to nerves and
spinal cord
Mental disorders
Musculoskeletal injuries
and diseases

8 886

10.0

10 309

11.0

113.2

15.3

131.7

19.1

Respiratory system
diseases

435

0.5

590

0.6

13.4

1.8

13.4

1.9

Skin and subcutaneous
tissue diseases

651

0.7

766

0.8

3.0

0.4

1.5

0.2

Wounds, lacerations,
amputations and internal
organ damage
Total

18 618
88 775

21.0
20 160
21.5WORKCOVER
73.1 QUEENSLAND
9.9
63.9
ANNUAL
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100

93 552

100

737.7

100

688.5

9.3
29
100

Retail Trade
Transport, Postal and
Transport, Postal and
Warehousing
Warehousing
Wholesale Trade
Wholesale Trade

Total
Total

5 590

6.3

5 830

6.2

35.3

4.8

34.0

4.9

4 937
4 937
4 927
4 927
88 775
88 775

5.6
5.6
5.5
5.5
100
100

4 723
4 723
4 843
4 843
93 552
93 552

5.0
5.0
5.2
5.2
100
100

59.3
59.3
33.9
33.9
737.7
737.7

8.0
8.0
4.6
4.6
100
100

53.4
53.4
29.1
29.1
688.5
688.5

7.8
7.8
4.2
4.2
100
100

Statutory claims and payments by injury nature
Statutory claims and payments by injury nature
Number of new statutory claims
Number of new statutory claims

Burns
Burns
Fractures
Fractures
Intracranial injuries and
Intracranial
injuries
and
injuries to nerves
and
injuries
to nerves and
spinal cord
spinal cord
Mental disorders
Mental disorders
Musculoskeletal injuries
Musculoskeletal
injuries
and
diseases
and diseases
Nervous system and
Nervous
system
and
sense organ
diseases
sense organ diseases
Other injuries and
Other injuries and
diseases
diseases
Respiratory system
Respiratory system
diseases
diseases
Skin and subcutaneous
Skin
subcutaneous
tissueand
diseases
tissue diseases
Wounds, lacerations,
Wounds, lacerations,
amputations
and internal
amputations
and internal
organ
damage
organ damage
Total
Total

2013
2013
No.
No.
1 782
1 782
4 908
4 908

2013
2013
%
%
2.0
2.0
5.5
5.5

2012
2012
No.
No.
1 935
1 935
4 908
4 908

2012
2012
%
%
2.1
2.1
5.2
5.2

421
421
4 163
4 163

0.5
0.5
4.7
4.7

415
415
4 038
4 038

46 823
46 823

52.7
52.7

2 088
2 088

Statutory claim payments
Statutory claim payments

2013
2013
$M
$M
4.0
4.0
92.7
92.7

2013
2013
%
%
0.5
0.5
12.6
12.6

2012
2012
$M
$M
4.2
4.2
82.0
82.0

2012
2012
%
%
0.6
0.6
11.9
11.9

0.4
0.4
4.3
4.3

14.5
14.5
48.6
48.6

2.0
2.0
6.6
6.6

12.3
12.3
47.8
47.8

1.8
1.8
6.9
6.9

48 414
48 414

51.9
51.9

353.4
353.4

47.9
47.9

313.1
313.1

45.6
45.6

2.4
2.4

2 017
2 017

2.2
2.2

21.8
21.8

3.0
3.0

18.6
18.6

2.7
2.7

8 886
8 886

10.0
10.0

10 309
10 309

11.0
11.0

113.2
113.2

15.3
15.3

131.7
131.7

19.1
19.1

435
435

0.5
0.5

590
590

0.6
0.6

13.4
13.4

1.8
1.8

13.4
13.4

1.9
1.9

651
651

0.7
0.7

766
766

0.8
0.8

3.0
3.0

0.4
0.4

1.5
1.5

0.2
0.2

18 618
18 618
88 775
88 775

21.0
21.0
100
100

20 160
20 160
93 552
93 552

21.5
21.5
100
100

73.1
73.1
737.7
737.7

9.9
9.9
100
100

63.9
63.9
688.5
688.5

9.3
9.3
100
100

Statutory claims and payments by injury location
Statutory claims and payments by injury location
Number of new statutory claims
Number of new statutory claims

Back
Back
Foot and toes
Foot and toes
Hand and fingers
Hand and fingers
Head and face
Head and face
Lower limbs
Lower limbs
Multiple locations
Multiple locations
Neck
Neck
Systemic
Systemic
Trunk
Trunk
Unspecified location
Unspecified location
Upper limbs
Upper limbs
Total
Total

2013
2013
No.
No.
16 530
16 530
2 726
2 726
14 051
14 051
8 731
8 731
13 762
13 762
2 204
2 204
3 392
3 392
4 655
4 655
4 312
4 312
1 773
1 773
16 639
16 639
88 775
88 775

2013
2013
%
%
18.7
18.7
3.1
3.1
15.8
15.8
9.8
9.8
15.5
15.5
2.5
2.5
3.8
3.8
5.2
5.2
4.9
4.9
2.0
2.0
18.7
18.7
100
100

2012
2012
No.
No.
17 436
17 436
2 929
2 929
15 168
15 168
9 375
9 375
14 378
14 378
2 423
2 423
3 741
3 741
4 589
4 589
4 644
4 644
1 769
1 769
17 100
17 100
93 552
93 552

2012
2012
%
%
18.6
18.6
3.1
3.1
16.2
16.2
10.0
10.0
15.4
15.4
2.6
2.6
4.0
4.0
4.9
4.9
5.0
5.0
1.9
1.9
18.3
18.3
100
100

Statutory claim payments
Statutory claim payments

2013
2013
$M
$M
127.7
127.7
18.3
18.3
56.5
56.5
48.8
48.8
113.4
113.4
26.4
26.4
24.8
24.8
50.9
50.9
89.5
89.5
13.0
13.0
168.4
168.4
737.7
737.7

2013
2013
%
%
17.3
17.3
2.5
2.5
7.7
7.7
6.6
6.6
15.4
15.4
3.6
3.6
3.4
3.4
6.9
6.9
12.1
12.1
1.8
1.8
22.8
22.8
100
100

2012
2012
$M
$M
114.5
114.5
14.6
14.6
50.6
50.6
36.4
36.4
104.7
104.7
32.6
32.6
24.5
24.5
50.8
50.8
91.6
91.6
22.7
22.7
145.5
145.5
688.5
688.5

2012
2012
%
%
16.7
16.7
2.1
2.1
7.3
7.3
5.3
5.3
15.2
15.2
4.7
4.7
3.6
3.6
7.4
7.4
13.3
13.3
3.3
3.3
21.1
21.1
100
100

Common law claims and payments by industry classification
Common law claims and payments by industry classification
Number of new common law claims
Number of new common law claims
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Accommodation and Food
Accommodation and Food
Services
Services
Administrative and Support
Administrative and Support
Services
Services
Agriculture, Forestry and
Agriculture, Forestry and
Fishing
Fishing
Arts and Recreation
Arts and Recreation
Services
Services
Construction
Construction
Education and Training
Education and Training
QUEENSLAND
ANNUAL
REPORT
Electricity, Gas,
Water and
Electricity,
Gas, Water and
Waste
Services
Waste Services

2013
2013
No.
No.

2013
2013
%
%

2012
2012
No.
No.

2012
2012
%
%

197
197

5.3
5.3

196
196

112
112

3.0
3.0

107
107

Common law claim payments
Common law claim payments

2013
2013
$M
$M

2013
2013
%
%

2012
2012
$M
$M

2012
2012
%
%

5.2
5.2

23.4
23.4

5.1
5.1

24.3
24.3

4.7
4.7

108
108

2.9
2.9

12.5
12.5

2.7
2.7

13.0
13.0

2.5
2.5

2.9
2.9

99
99

2.6
2.6

12.4
12.4

2.7
2.7

14.6
14.6

2.8
2.8

49
49
516
516
105
105

1.3
1.3
13.8
13.8
2.8
2.8

47
47
462
462
126
126

1.3
1.3
12.3
12.3
3.4
3.4

6.0
6.0
77.2
77.2
15.9
15.9

1.3
1.3
16.7
16.7
3.4
3.4

5.0
5.0
91.3
91.3
14.2
14.2

1.0
1.0
17.8
17.8
2.8
2.8

53
53

1.4
1.4

44
44

1.2
1.2

8.9
8.9

1.9
1.9

5.9
5.9

1.1
1.1

2012–2013

Unspecified location
Upper limbs
Total

1 773

2.0

1 769

1.9

13.0

1.8

22.7

3.3

16 639

18.7

17 100

18.3

168.4

22.8

145.5

21.1

88 775

100

93 552

100

737.7

100

688.5

100

Common law claims and payments by industry classification
Number of new common law claims

Common law claim payments

2013

2013

2012

2012

2013

2013

2012

2012

No.

%

No.

%

$M

%

$M

%

Accommodation and Food
Services

197

5.3

196

5.2

23.4

5.1

24.3

4.7

Administrative and Support
Services

112

3.0

108

2.9

12.5

2.7

13.0

2.5

Agriculture, Forestry and
Fishing

107

2.9

99

2.6

12.4

2.7

14.6

2.8

49

1.3

47

1.3

6.0

1.3

5.0

1.0

Construction

516

13.8

462

12.3

77.2

16.7

91.3

17.8

Education and Training

105

2.8

126

3.4

15.9

3.4

14.2

2.8

Electricity, Gas, Water and
Waste Services

53

1.4

44

1.2

8.9

1.9

5.9

1.1

Financial and Insurance
Services

11

0.3

15

0.4

1.3

0.3

1.0

0.2

541

14.5

515

13.8

50.4

10.9

54.0

10.5

Arts and Recreation
Services

Health Care and Social
Assistance
Information Media and
Telecommunications

6

0.2

8

0.2

1.1

0.2

2.8

0.5

Manufacturing

749

20.0

831

22.2

89.4

19.4

106.6

20.9

Mining

157

4.2

148

4.0

28.0

6.1

30.5

5.9

Other

16

0.4

36

1.0

4.0

0.9

3.8

0.7

Other Services

87

2.3

92

2.5

11.7

2.5

14.7

2.9

Professional, Scientific and
Technical Services

38

1.0

51

1.4

5.8

1.3

5.5

1.1

208

5.6

211

5.6

26.2

5.7

23.8

4.6

Public Administration and
Safety
Rental, Hiring and Real
Estate Services

41

1.1

43

1.1

5.1

1.1

6.8

1.3

Retail Trade

265

7.1

222

5.9

24.3

5.3

32.2

6.3

Transport, Postal and
Warehousing

295

7.9

276

7.4

34.3

7.4

38.6

7.5

Wholesale Trade

182

4.9

210

5.6

23.6

5.1

25.3

4.9

3 735

100

3 741

100

461.5

100

513.9

100

Total

Common law claims and payments by injury nature
Number of new common law claims

2013

Burns
Fractures
Intracranial injuries and
injuries to nerves and
spinal cord
Mental disorders
Musculoskeletal injuries
and diseases
Nervous system and
sense organ diseases
Other injuries and
diseases

2013

2012

No.

%

33

0.9

316

Common law claim payments

2012

2013

2013

2012

No.

%

29

0.8

8.5

334

23

0.6

311

2012

$M

%

$M

%

2.4

0.5

6.5

1.3

8.9

52.5

11.4

57.2

11.1

33

0.9

5.8

1.3

6.4

1.2

8.3

319

8.5

41.5

9.0

38.9

7.6

2,341

62.7

2,315

61.9

283.3

61.3

309.0

60.1

74

2.0

69

1.8

7.7

1.7

6.4

1.2

267

7.1

207

5.5

25.8

5.6

30.8

6.0

Respiratory system
diseases

31

0.8

40

1.1

4.1

0.9

6.0

1.2

Skin and subcutaneous
tissue diseases

8

0.2

6

0.2

0.6

0.1

0.8

0.2

Wounds, lacerations,
amputations and internal
organ damage
Total

331
3 735

8.9
389 2012–2013
10.4 WORKCOVER
37.8
8.2
51.9
10.1
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100

3 741

100

461.5

100

513.9

100

Transport, Postal and
Warehousing

295

7.9

276

7.4

34.3

7.4

38.6

7.5

Wholesale Trade

182

4.9

210

5.6

23.6

5.1

25.3

4.9

3 735

100

3 741

100

461.5

100

513.9

100

Total

Common law claims and payments by injury nature
Number of new common law claims

2013

Burns
Fractures
Intracranial injuries and
injuries to nerves and
spinal cord
Mental disorders
Musculoskeletal injuries
and diseases
Nervous system and
sense organ diseases
Other injuries and
diseases

2013

2012

No.

%

33

0.9

316

Common law claim payments

2012

2013

2013

2012

No.

%

29

0.8

8.5

334

23

0.6

311

2012

$M

%

$M

%

2.4

0.5

6.5

1.3

8.9

52.5

11.4

57.2

11.1

33

0.9

5.8

1.3

6.4

1.2

8.3

319

8.5

41.5

9.0

38.9

7.6

2,341

62.7

2,315

61.9

283.3

61.3

309.0

60.1

74

2.0

69

1.8

7.7

1.7

6.4

1.2

267

7.1

207

5.5

25.8

5.6

30.8

6.0

Respiratory system
diseases

31

0.8

40

1.1

4.1

0.9

6.0

1.2

Skin and subcutaneous
tissue diseases

8

0.2

6

0.2

0.6

0.1

0.8

0.2

331

8.9

389

10.4

37.8

8.2

51.9

10.1

3 735

100

3 741

100

461.5

100

513.9

100

Wounds, lacerations,
amputations and internal
organ damage
Total

Common law claims and payments by injury location
Number of new common law claims

2013

2013

2012

2012

2013

2013

2012

2012

No.

%

No.

%

$M

%

$M

%

1 124

30.1

1 187

31.7

153.3

33.2

169.4

33.1

76

2.0

70

1.9

11.0

2.4

11.5

2.2

Hand and fingers

281

7.5

266

7.1

23.4

5.1

36.5

7.1

Head and face

114

3.1

138

3.7

16.1

3.5

21.8

4.2

Lower limbs

488

13.1

513

13.7

63.3

13.7

62.6

12.2

60

1.6

84

2.2

12.3

2.7

10.5

2.0

Neck

126

3.4

118

3.2

18.2

3.9

16.7

3.2

Systemic

327

8.8

345

9.2

45.3

9.8

40.3

7.8

Trunk

154

4.1

152

4.1

16.9

3.7

25.4

4.9

35

0.9

27

0.7

1.9

0.4

3.8

0.7

950

25.4

841

22.5

99.8

21.6

115.4

22.6

3 735

100

3 741

100

461.5

100

513.9

100

Back
Foot and toes

Multiple Locations

Unspecified location
Upper limbs
Total

32

Common law claim payments
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance
Ethics, compliance, and
risk management

WorkCover Queensland’s corporate governance structure guides the way we
manage our business, minimise our risks and ensure integrity. Our structure is
supported by an integrated framework for governance, ethics, compliance and risk
management. Reporting against this framework occurs monthly at board meetings
and quarterly at Audit Committee meetings.
Our systems are based on strong ethical foundations and our commitment to
fairness, accountability and transparency. Our corporate governance policy outlines
our commitment to best practice governance and the means by which we ensure
this. This policy is available on our website.

Strategic planning
Strategic planning
Board of directors
Senior executives
Stakeholder feedback
Mandatory online
reporting

A four year Corporate Plan and Statement of Corporate Intent are prepared
annually and approved by the Minister in accordance with the Workers’
Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003.
The Corporate Plan summarises our vision, values, goals, strategies and
performance indicators. The plan forms the basis for divisional business plans,
which define operational strategies to meet our business projections. The divisional
business plans outline our key financial and operational performance indicators,
which we monitor monthly.
Our Statement of Corporate Intent outlines our objectives and major activities, and
specifies various financial and non-financial performance targets for the financial
year.

Board of directors
The Board of directors sets the strategic direction for WorkCover and tracks
performance to ensure the organisation meets the financial and non-financial
targets set out in our Statement of Corporate Intent. The Board reports to the
Attorney-General and Minister for Justice, Honourable Jarrod Bleijie MP.
The statutory role and requirements of the Board are set out in section 427 of the
Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and chapter 8 outlines the
powers and functions of WorkCover. The WorkCover Board charter specifies the
role and responsibilities of the Board in detail and is available on our website.
The WorkCover Board consists of seven independent non-executive directors
appointed by the Governor-in-Council who is responsible for appointing directors,
based on experience and knowledge, and determining their remuneration. As at 30
June 2012, the Board of Directors contracts expired. A new Board was appointed
by the Governor-in-Council effective from 1 July 2012. Information on directors’
and executives’ benefits is detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

Directors’ length of service
Directors

First appointed

Expires

GW Ferguson, Chair

01/07/12

30/06/14

JR O’Connor, Deputy Chair

01/07/12

30/06/14

MJ Bailey (re-appointed)

01/07/09

30/06/14

I Winterburn

01/07/12

30/06/14

J Crittall

01/07/12

30/06/14

I Leavers

01/07/12

30/06/14

B Leahy

01/07/12

19/11/2012 (ceased)

S Blackwood

15/03/13

30/06/14

WorkCover maintains directors’ and officers’ insurance. The insurance conditions
provide indemnity for costs and expenses incurred by the relevant director or
officer defending either civil or criminal legal proceedings or other liabilities that
may arise from their position. It does not cover conduct involving a wilful breach of
duty or improper use of information for personal gain.
To assist directors in exercising their duties, WorkCover makes available
independent professional advice as required and at the expense of the
organisation. The Board also tracks its performance against the charter quarterly.

Audit Committee
The primary role of the Audit Committee is to assist the WorkCover Board in
monitoring our systems of internal control and ensuring integrity of the financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee charter, which is available on our website,
defines the role and responsibilities of the committee. The committee tracks its
performance against the charter each meeting, with due regard for Queensland
Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines: Improving Accountability and Performance.
The Audit Committee is made up of three independent, non-executive directors.
Internal Audit, External Audit, Queensland Audit Office, the Chairperson, the CEO
and the General Manager, Finance are invited to Audit Committee meetings at the
discretion of the committee. The committee meets quarterly.
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may arise from their position. It does not cover conduct involving a wilful breach of
duty or improper use of information for personal gain.
To assist directors in exercising their duties, WorkCover makes available
independent professional advice as required and at the expense of the
organisation. The Board also tracks its performance against the charter quarterly.

Audit Committee
The primary role of the Audit Committee is to assist the WorkCover Board in
monitoring our systems of internal control and ensuring integrity of the financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee charter, which is available on our website,
defines the role and responsibilities of the committee. The committee tracks its
performance against the charter each meeting, with due regard for Queensland
Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines: Improving Accountability and Performance.
The Audit Committee is made up of three independent, non-executive directors.
Internal Audit, External Audit, Queensland Audit Office, the Chairperson, the CEO
and the General Manager, Finance are invited to Audit Committee meetings at the
discretion of the committee. The committee meets quarterly.

Directors’ meetings
During the year, WorkCover held 11 formal Board meetings and 4 Audit Committee
meetings. The CEO attends all Board meetings and general managers are invited to
present and discuss relevant issues. A register of directors’ material interests is
updated at each Board meeting to avoid conflicts of interest.
Board meetings

Audit Committee
meetings

Directors

A

B

A

B

GW Ferguson, Chair

11

11

0

0

JR O’Connor, Deputy Chair

10

11

4

4

MJ Bailey (re-appointed)

10

11

4

4

I Winterburn

11

11

4

4

J Crittall

11

11

0

0

I Leavers

7

11

0

0

B Leahy

2

5

0

0

S Blackwood

3

4

0

0

A: Number of meetings attended
B: Number of meetings eligible to attend

Senior executives
The CEO assesses performance of senior executives on an annual basis as part of
the organisation’s performance review process. The Board also assesses the
performance of the CEO as part of this process.

Stakeholder feedback
All complaints are managed in accordance with Queensland Ombudsman’s Guide to
Developing Effective Complaints Management Policies and Procedures, which
incorporates AS ISO 10002:2006 Customer Satisfaction - Guidelines for complaints
handling in organizations and the Queensland Ombudsman’s Guide to Developing
Effective Complaints Management Policies and Procedures.
We believe that all customer feedback, positive or negative, presents an
opportunity for improvement. WorkCover is committed to resolving customer
complaints quickly and fairly, and we empower our people to resolve issues as they
arise.
Further details are available in the Customer and stakeholder engagement section
of this report.

Mandatory online reporting
WorkCover has reported online information in relation to the following topics, in
line with mandatory requirements:
information systems and recordkeeping
consultancies
overseas travel.
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ETHICS, COMPLIANCE, AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Ethics
Corporate governance
Ethics, compliance, and
risk management

Ethics
Compliance
Risk management

Ethics provide the overarching principles and rules that govern the behaviour of WorkCover Queensland’s people.

Code of conduct
WorkCover‘s code of conduct supports our values and provides a framework for high ethical standards. Our code of conduct
has been written to align with the requirements of the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 (PSEA). The code is communicated to
our people through the corporate induction program and is available on the WorkCover intranet and website. Annually our
staff receive refresher training on this document and the PSEA in general. All relevant internal policies and practices align
with the code and the PSEA, including the ethics principles and values detailed in this Act. All WorkCover staff are required to
comply with the code of conduct. Any non-compliance may result in disciplinary action, which could include termination of
employment.
The WorkCover Board is bound by ethical standards outlined in the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 (the
Act), which requires directors to act honestly, disclose interests, exercise due diligence and not use information or their
position inappropriately. Directors are bound by the PSEA and as such, WorkCover’s code of conduct. Additionally, the Board
follows the guidelines set out in Welcome Aboard: A Guide for Members of Government Boards, Committees and Statutory
Authorities. Integrity and accountability are integrated into WorkCover’s strategies, objectives and actions.

Compliance
We maintain a number of policies and procedures detailing our compliance obligations in relation to relevant legislation,
regulations, and codes of practice. We continually monitor our systems and processes to ensure these obligations are met.

Internal audit
Internal audit is responsible for assisting the WorkCover Audit Committee in meeting its charter and provide independent,
impartial advice to executive management and the Board. This is achieved through the systematic and disciplined evaluation
of the effectiveness of WorkCover’s risk management controls and corporate governance processes.
WorkCover’s independent internal audit function is currently outsourced to a specialised accounting firm. As part of the
agreed contract terms with this firm this function is to be performed in an economical manner. The internal audit charter
outlines the objectives, duties, authority and responsibilities of the internal audit function and is consistent with all relevant
audit and ethical standards. Both the strategic and annual audit plans prepared by the Internal Auditors are approved by the
Audit Committee. This Committee operates with due regard for Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines, including the
monitoring of the effectiveness, efficiency and economy of the Internal Audit function. Significant financial and operational
risks identified by the Internal Auditors are reported through to the Audit Committee, as per the Internal Audit Charter.
The 2012–2013 audit program is on track to be completed in line with budgeted time-frames and costs.

Quality assurance reviews
Our quality assurance reviews are designed to confirm that the controls in place to manage risks are effective and identify
potential areas for improvement to our processes, policies, and procedures.

Training
All staff complete regular training to remain up-to-date with compliance requirements in a number of key areas including
code of conduct, privacy, acceptable use of IT, equal employment opportunity, people policies and workplace health and
safety.

Customer compliance
To be able to provide a fair and balanced workers’ compensation scheme, compliance with workers’ compensation legislation
by all customers is extremely important.
To assist with this compliance, WorkCover has set up a dedicated compliance and prosecutions team. Their tasks include
educating stakeholders, conducting audits, investigating, recovering, and prosecuting individuals and entities who contravene
their legislative requirements, including failing to insure, defrauding the scheme and providing false and misleading
statements.
During the year we investigated 33 cases of potential fraud, mainly relating to statutory claims. A total of 8 prosecutions
were successfully completed, 8 matters remain before the Courts for determination, and 12 matters are being prepared to go
before the Courts.
There is also a comprehensive audit program to ensure employers are insuring their workers and declaring the correct
amount of wages. During 2012–2013, we conducted 3 675 random site visits through which we found 661 non-compliant
employers representing 18% of employers being non-compliant. We also carried out targeted data mining and as a result
conducted 1 827 targeted audits during the year and identified 911 employers to be non-compliant with the Act, representing
50% non-compliance.

Recordkeeping
WorkCover has made improvement during the financial year with further digitisation of files. The recordkeeping policy was
reviewed and updated in line with the organisation moving to digitised corporate records. As all staff at WorkCover are
responsible for keeping and maintaining records, yearly compliance training is completed to ensure that all staff are aware of
their obligations under the Public Records Act 2002. This is essential training given that all of our claims and policy records
have been digitised since 2008 and corporate records are currently being digitised.
The WorkCover Queensland Retention and Disposal Schedule QDAN 484 v. 4 was reviewed during the financial year with the
Queensland State Archives. The schedule continues to be relevant to the organisation and any records that were destroyed
were done so in accordance with this schedule or the General Retention and Disposal Schedule for Administrative Records.
WorkCover is currently reviewing all retained records to consider appropriate disposal. There have been no breaches in
WorkCover’s information security report as the security of our information is a high priority for the organisation and no
records have been reported as being lost during 2012–2013.

Risk management
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WorkCover follows a risk management policy basedANNUAL
on AS/NZS
ISO 31000:30009
Risk Management
– Principles
and
Guidelines, which involves the establishment of an appropriate infrastructure and culture designed to systematically identify,
analyse, treat, monitor and communicate key risks associated with its activities. Our risk management policy is available on

The WorkCover Queensland Retention and Disposal Schedule QDAN 484 v. 4 was reviewed during the financial year with the
Queensland State Archives. The schedule continues to be relevant to the organisation and any records that were destroyed
were done so in accordance with this schedule or the General Retention and Disposal Schedule for Administrative Records.
WorkCover is currently reviewing all retained records to consider appropriate disposal. There have been no breaches in
WorkCover’s information security report as the security of our information is a high priority for the organisation and no
records have been reported as being lost during 2012–2013.

Risk management
WorkCover follows a risk management policy based on AS/NZS ISO 31000:30009 Risk Management – Principles and
Guidelines, which involves the establishment of an appropriate infrastructure and culture designed to systematically identify,
analyse, treat, monitor and communicate key risks associated with its activities. Our risk management policy is available on
our website.

Workplace health and safety
WorkCover has maintained a strong culture of employee awareness of health and safety. WorkCover has improved reporting
of incidents and early intervention resulting in almost 80% of workers’ compensation claimants staying at work to recover.
Our workplace health and safety framework was audited for compliance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 introduced
in January 2012. In addition to updating our policies and procedures, training was provided for our people to educate them
on the changes to the new legislation and their responsibilities.
We also introduced a new Qudos system for recording workplace incidents. Reports from this system are used to provide
information to our Workplace Health and Safety Committee for review and setting of strategies to mitigate the risk of
injuries. These reports are also presented to the Board to assist in meeting their obligations of due diligence to our people
and maintaining a safe work environment.
Workplace Health and Safety training is delivered on a monthly basis to all staff via toolbox talks. The presentations are on
topical issues such as manual handling, flu prevention and repetitive injuries.

Business continuity management
Our business continuity and disaster recovery plan have been developed to ensure minimal disruption to our operations and
our customers in the event of a major incident. These plans are reviewed and tested on a regular basis.
During the year, there was one flood event which occurred in Brisbane and North Queensland. The event did not require a full
implementation of the Business Continuity Plan, however WorkCover was prepared for the situation impacting on critical
services.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Financial results
Premium revenue
Net claims incurred

Our core financial goal is to maintain a fully funded financial position that
allows an appropriate balance between worker benefits and employer
premiums.

Underwriting expenses

Financial results

Investment portfolio

WorkCover Queensland’s operating result for 2012-13 was $517.294 million, after tax. Our operating result this year is due
to higher than expected wages growth, lower than expected claims costs, a decrease in the outstanding claims liability, and a
strong investment return.

Capital adequacy
Looking to the future

2012-13
$’000

Financial Results

2011-12
$’000

Statement of comprehensive income
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
of financial position

Net premium revenue

1,606,474

1,441,670

(1,142,627)

(1,233,540)

Underwriting expenses (net of claims handling)

(25,791)

(22,033)

Investment income

301,334

100,039

1,349

897

(6,486)

(4,660)

(216,959)

(82,736)

517,294

199,637

Net claims incurred

Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

Other income

Consolidated statement
of cash flows

Other expenses

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Income tax equivalents expense

Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities

Operating result for the year after income tax equivalents
Statement of financial position

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland

Total assets

3,850,892

3,412,014

Independent audit report

Total liabilities

2,796,459

2,870,950

Declaration by directors

Net assets

1,054,433

541,064

Reserves

495,140

17,274

Accumulated surplus

559,293

523,790

1,054,433

541,064

Statement of changes in equity

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies

Total equity

Premium revenue

4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates

Our net premium revenue was $1.606 billion for the year, representing a 11.4% increase on the same period last year
(2011–12: $1.442 billion). This increase was primarily due to higher than expected wages growth in industries with greater
risk and hence above average premium rates.

5. Net premium revenue

As part of our commitment to maintaining a prudent financial position, we have announced the targeted premium rate for the
coming year remains unchanged at $1.45. This rate will allow us to continue balancing the needs of our policyholders with
the needs of injured workers whilst ensuring financial stability.

6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income

Average premium rate per $100 of wages
2012-13

10. Other expenses

2011-12

11. Income tax
equivalents

Queensland

1.45

1.42

12. Cash and cash
equivalents

New South Wales

1.68

1.68

Victoria

1.30

1.34

South Australia

2.75

2.75

Western Australia

1.69

1.57

16. Other assets

Tasmania

2.28

2.19

17. Property, plant, and
equipment

ComCare

1.77

1.40

18. Intangible assets

Note: Figures are based on information from individual workers’ compensation entities.

13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial

Net claims incurred
Net claims incurred was $1.143 billion (2011–12: $1.234 billion).
Net claims costs decreased in 2012–13 due to a decrease in the valuation of the net outstanding claims liability to $2.533
billion (2011–12: $2.682 billion). This is due to:
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common law claims;
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15. Investments
16. Other assets

Tasmania

2.28

2.19

17. Property, plant, and
equipment

ComCare

1.77

1.40

18. Intangible assets

Note: Figures are based on information from individual workers’ compensation entities.

19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities
28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees
30. Key management
personnel disclosures
31. Related parties
32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods
35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

Net claims incurred
Net claims incurred was $1.143 billion (2011–12: $1.234 billion).
Net claims costs decreased in 2012–13 due to a decrease in the valuation of the net outstanding claims liability to $2.533
billion (2011–12: $2.682 billion). This is due to:
A lower number of new common law claims than expected, resulting in a reduction in the ultimate number of projected
common law claims;
An increase in the anticipated common law claims finalised with no damage payment (nil finalisations);
A continued material reduction in the common law average settlement size;
A reduction in the allowance for claims impacted by the Cameron v Foster v Anor decision; and
Favourable movement in economic assumptions since 30 June 2012.
In addition, common law claims expense was lower than expected due to lower registrations and lower average settlements.
Statutory claims expenses were also below expectations overall due to lower than expected claim registrations and fatal lump
sum and latent onset lump sum payments being significantly lower than anticipated, however weekly compensation
payments were higher than expected.

Underwriting expenses
Underwriting expenses include WorkCover’s management and operational expenses and the annual levy payable to Q-COMP
and Workplace Health and Safety Queensland. To meet disclosure requirements under accounting standards, the claims
handling expense portion of underwriting expenses is added to gross claims expense to reflect the cost of administering
claims during the year. WorkCover continues to drive efficiencies throughout all our operations and we will continue to look
for efficiencies that further improve services to our customers.

Investment portfolio
In 2012–13, the net return on our investment portfolio was 9.7% (2011-12: 3.4%) as a result of sound investment strategy
and strong performance primarily in the Australian and International equities sectors. Our investment strategy targets a longterm return of 7% net of fees, by holding investments in a balanced portfolio.
QIC manages WorkCover’s investments and as at 30 June 2013, the net market value in funds invested was $3.228 billion
(30 June 2012: $2.653 billion).
We will continue to work with our investment fund manager to effectively manage our investment risk to ensure our portfolio
achieves its long term objectives.

Capital adequacy
The Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 and Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Regulation 2003
outline specific requirements WorkCover must meet to be considered fully funded. In keeping with other workers’
compensation schemes, WorkCover is fully funded if its total assets are at least equal to its total liabilities and WorkCover
aims to maintain a funding ratio of at least 110%. WorkCover satisfied this requirement at 30 June 2013.
As the funding ratio for WorkCover exceeded 120%, the excess of capital over this requirement has been transferred to the
investment fluctuation reserve. The investment fluctuation reserve acts to mitigate the effects of future volatility in the
investment return and supports stability in the setting of premium rates. The balance of the investment fluctuation reserve as
at 30 June 2013 is $481.791 million.

Looking to the future
We will continue to use prudent financial management to ensure a balanced, financially viable scheme for all customers and
stakeholders. WorkCover also continues to monitor and review the effectiveness of the legislative reforms implemented in
2010.
Part of this continuing prudent financial management entails a focus by WorkCover in continuing to operate within budget,
achieving value for money, and more generally, ensuring WorkCover continues to minimise its costs and risks in relation to
its liabilities and contingent liabilities. Premiums will be set, claims benefits reviewed, and operational expenses carefully
managed in order to deliver this balance and we will continue our long term investment strategy built around a balanced
portfolio.
Also during the 2012-13 financial year the Finance and Administration parliamentary committee undertook a review of the
Queensland Worker’s Compensation scheme. The recommendations of that review will continue to be investigated and
implemented to ensure that the long term viability of the scheme is assured and that the scheme is efficient, responsive and
cost-effective.

Disclaimer
The materials presented on the WorkCover Queensland website are provided for information purposes only. Users should
note that the electronic versions of financial statements on this site are not recognised as the official or authorised version.
The electronic versions are provided solely on the basis that users will take responsibility for verifying their accuracy,
completeness and currency. Although considerable resources are used to prepare and maintain the electronic versions,
WorkCover Queensland accepts no liability for any loss or damage that may be incurred by any person acting in reliance on
the electronic versions. The official copy of the annual report, as tabled in the Legislative Assembly of Queensland can be
accessed from the Queensland Parliament’s tabled papers website database: http://www.parliament.qld.gov.au/work-ofassembly/tabled-papers.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
For the year ended 30
June 2013

For the year ended 30 June 2013
Note

Financial performance
Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding
Leading
the way claim
– Chair
liabilities
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
Board
of directors
Queensland
Executive team
Independent audit report

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

1,606,474

1,441,670

Net premium revenue

5

Gross claims expense

6(a)

(1,212,995)

(1,286,417)

Claims recoveries revenue

6(a)

70,368

52,877

Net claims incurred

6(a)

(1,142,627)

(1,233,540)

(25,791)

(22,033)

438,056

186,097

Underwriting expenses
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors

7

Underwriting result

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Investment income

8

301,334

100,039

Other income

9

1,349

897

(6,486)

(4,660)

734,253

282,373

(216,959)

(82,736)

517,294

199,637

(5,607)

(1,641)

1,682

492

(3,925)

(1,149)

513,369

198,488

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Other expenses
Chair

10

Operating result for the year before income tax
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
equivalents
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Income tax equivalents expense
11(a)
Operating result for the year

Declaration by directors

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

Other comprehensive income
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chairwill not be reclassified subsequently to operating
Items that
result:
Justin
is ChiefofExecutive
the Queensland Hotels Association Union of 25
Revaluation
land andof
building
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd.
Justin
is effect
a member
of the Queensland
Responsible
Income
tax
on revaluation
of land and
building Gambling Advisory
11(b),25
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income
tax equivalents

Total comprehensive income for the year

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment

Ian Leavers
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2013
Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

12

87,950

68,166

13(a)

49,289

44,519

Receivables

14

21,662

22,096

Investments

15

1,017,380

1,033,422

Other assets

16

866

1,341

1,177,147

1,169,544

106,864

101,816

753

890

2,270,664

1,619,296

36,464

44,659

As at 30 June 2013
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilitiesthe way – Chair
Leading
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
Queensland
Board
of directors
Independent
audit report
Executive
team
Declaration by directors

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income

Recoveries receivable on outstanding claims

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Total current assets
Non-current assets

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recoveries receivable on outstanding claims

13(a)

14
Receivables
Glenn Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
15
Investments
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
17
Property,He
plant,
and equipment
Law Foundation.
is a Solicitor
of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
11(d)
Deferred tax assets

251,449

466,726

Intangible assets

18

7,293

8,733

Other assets

16

258

350

2,673,745

2,242,470

3,850,892

3,412,014

21,406

20,323

7,488

6,252

Total O’Connor
non-current
BA assets
Justin
Deputy Chair
Total assets
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Current liabilities
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
19
Payables
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
20(a)
Unearned premium liability
Outstanding claims liability
MelindaProvisions
Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Employee benefits

21(a)

1,066,669

1,077,941

22

715

252

23

14,837

13,449

1,111,115

1,118,217

Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Total Vehicle
currentNational
liabilities
Heavy
Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Non-current liabilities

10. Other expenses

Unearned premium liability

20(a)

364

-

11. Income tax
equivalents

Outstanding claims liability

21(a)

1,622,517

1,750,209

385

527

12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Provisions
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Employee benefits

22
23

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
24
Other financial liabilities
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Total non-current liabilities
Queensland.

1,722

1,997

60,356

-

1,685,344

1,752,733

16. Other assets

Total liabilities

2,796,459

2,870,950

17. Property, plant, and
equipment

Net assets

1,054,433

541,064

481,791

-

13,349

17,274

18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions

Equity
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director Investment fluctuation reserve

26

John is aAsset
Director
at Master
Builders, a role he has held for over nine years
25 and
revaluation
surplus
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal
and contractual
Accumulated
surplusservices and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Total equity

559,293

523,790

1,054,433

541,064

23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities

The above consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

25. Asset revaluation

Ian Leavers
Director

26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

surplusWORKCOVER
by class
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2013
Investment
fluctuation
reserve
$’000

Asset
revaluation
surplus
$’000

Accumulated
surplus
$’000

Balance as at 1 July 2011

-

18,423

324,153

342,576

Operating result for the year

-

-

199,637

199,637

-

(1,149)

-

(1,149)

-

(1,149)

199,637

198,488

-

17,274

523,790

541,064

Balance as at 1 July 2012

-

17,274

523,790

541,064

Operating result for the year

-

-

517,294

517,294

For the year ended 30
June 2013
Note

Financial performance

Other comprehensive income for the year

Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Consolidated statement
of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding
Leading
the way claim
– Chair
liabilities
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
Board
of directors
Queensland
Executive team
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

Balance as at 30 June 2012
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Glenn
FAAL, income
FAICD, FANZCN
25
Other Ferguson
comprehensive
for the year
Chair
Total comprehensive income for the year
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Transactions
recorded
Law
Foundation.with
He isowners,
a Solicitor
of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
directly
in equity
Court
of Queensland.
Transfer to investment fluctuation reserve from
accumulated surplus
Total transactions with owners
Balance
as at 30
BAJune 2013
Justin
O’Connor
Deputy Chair

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

25

26

Total
$’000

(3,925)

-

(3,925)

(3,925)

517,294

513,369

481,791

-

(481,791)

-

481,791

-

(481,791)

-

481,791

13,349

559,293

1,054,433

The amounts
net of tax.Hotels Association Union of
Justin
is Chiefdisclosed
Executiveabove
of theare
Queensland
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
The above
consolidated
statement
of changes
in equity Gambling
is to be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Ltd.
Justin is
a member of
the Queensland
Responsible
Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment

Ian Leavers
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Premiums received

1,635,206

1,456,169

Premiums refunded

(29,612)

(23,794)

7,579

4,056

106,542

118,665

(5,462)

(4,691)

160,840

143,735

807

2,631

(1,342,878)

(1,346,999)

61,719

46,133

(24,345)

(19,276)

1,017

898

For the year ended 30
June 2013

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Financial performance

Interest received

Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

Unit trust distributions received

Consolidated statement
of financial position

Investment management fees paid

Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding
Leading
the way claim
– Chair
liabilities
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
Board
of directors
Queensland
Executive team
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
GST collected on sales
GST refunded from ATO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Claims paid

Claims recoveries
received
Glenn Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD,
FANZCN
Chair
Underwriting expenses paid
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Other revenue
Law Foundation.
He is areceived
Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Other expenses paid
GST paid on purchases
GST remitted to the ATO
Net cash
from operating
activities
BA
Justin
O’Connor
Deputy Chair

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income

27

Cashisflows
investing
Justin
Chief from
Executive
of the activities
Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Acquisition
of
investments
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Proceeds from sale of investments
Association.
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Net cash
(used
in)
investing
activities
Melinda
is the
Chief
Financial
Officer
and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

10. Other expenses

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

11. Income tax
equivalents

12

13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset
revaluation
WORKCOVER
42
surplus by class
26. Investment

(45)
(19,088)

(142,290)

(120,411)

409,599

237,983

(888,639)

(938,545)

500,639

746,658

(577)

(441)

(1,479)

(7,396)

241

93

(389,815)

(199,631)

19,784

38,352

68,166

29,814

87,950

68,166

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
The above consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Director

12. Cash and cash
equivalents

18. Intangible assets

(848)
(18,676)

Ian Leavers
Director

QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Financial performance > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entityincome
of
comprehensive
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
financial position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of
in equity
4. changes
Critical accounting
7. Underwriting
expenses
judgements
and
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
flows income
8. cash
Investment
5.
premium
revenue
Notes
to
the
consolidated
9. Net
Other
income
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial
certificate on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8.
Investment income
liabilities
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
Declaration by directors
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15. Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3.
Summary
of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19. Payablesand
22. Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
liability
24.Net
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
liabilities
27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus
by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
27. Reconciliation of cash
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
activities
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
28.
Commitments
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets fees
29.
Consultancy
remuneration
17.
plant, and
30. Property,
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
equipment
personnel
disclosures
34. Intangible
Actuarialparties
assumptions
18.
assets
31.
Related
and methods
19.
Payables
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
20.
Unearned premium
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
liability
33.
Risk
37. Outstanding
Contingent
liabilities
21.
claims
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
liability
and
methods information
38. Segment

22.
35.
Financial
instruments
39. Provisions
Events after
reporting
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
36.
Operational
risk
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
37.
Contingent
liabilities
liabilities
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
date
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
41. Differences between
27. Reconciliation of cash
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
financial statements and
activities
WorkCover Queensland
28.
Commitments
financial
statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY
This financial report represents the financial statements for the consolidated entity ‘WorkCover’ consisting of WorkCover
Queensland, the parent entity, and its special purpose entity (SPE), the WorkCover Employing Office.
WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
controlled by the Queensland State Government. WorkCover is the main provider of workers’ compensation insurance in
Queensland and is a not-for-profit entity.
The WorkCover Employing Office is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff to perform work for
WorkCover Queensland.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
Annual
note
41.Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Financial performance > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4.
Critical
accounting
1. comprehensive
Reporting
entityincome
of
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
financial position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of
in equity
4. changes
Critical accounting
7.
Underwriting
expenses
judgements
and
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
cash
flows income
8.
Investment
5. Other
Net to
premium
revenue
Notes
the consolidated
9.
income
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial
certificate on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8. Investment income
liabilities
12.
Cash income
and cash
9. Other
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents by directors
Declaration
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3.
Summary of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19. Payablesand
22. Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
liability
24.
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
21.Net
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
liabilities
27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
27. Reconciliation of cash
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
activities
31.
Related
parties
15.
28. Investments
Commitments
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets fees
29.
Consultancy
remuneration
17.
plant, and
30. Property,
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
equipment
personnel
disclosures
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
18.
assets
31. Intangible
Related parties
and methods
19.
Payables
32. Auditors'
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
20.
Unearned premium
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
liability
33.
37.
Contingent
liabilities
21.
claims
34. Outstanding
Actuarial assumptions
liability
and Segment
methods information
38.
22.
35. Provisions
Financial
instruments
39.
Events
after
reporting
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
36.
Operational
risk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB, Financial
Accountability Act 2009, Financial Accountability Regulation 2009, Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009,
Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 and the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Regulation 2003.
This financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as described in the accounting policies below.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying WorkCover’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements have been disclosed in note 4.
WorkCover Queensland’s Chair, Mr Glenn Ferguson, authorised this report for issue on 27 August 2013.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
40.
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
28.
Commitments
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Financial performance > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entityincome
of comprehensive
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of financial
position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting
policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of changes
in equity
4.
Critical accounting
7. Underwriting expenses
judgements
Consolidatedand
statement
estimates
of
flows income
8. cash
Investment
5.
premium
revenue
Notes
to
the
consolidated
9. Net
Other
income
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial
certificate on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8.
Investment income
liabilities
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10.
Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
Declaration by directors
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15. Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3.
Summary
of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19.
Payablesand
22. Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
liability
24.Net
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
liabilities
27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus
by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
27. Reconciliation of cash
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
activities
31. Commitments
Related parties
15.
Investments
28.
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
16.
Other
assets fees
29.
remuneration
17. Key
Property,
plant, and
30.
management
33. Insurance
Risk
equipment
personnel
disclosures
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
18.
Intangible
assets
31.
and methods
19.
Payables
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
20. Unearned premium
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
liability
33.
Risk
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
21.
Outstanding
claims
34.
assumptions
liability
and
methods information
38. Segment

22.
Provisions
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational
23.
Employee benefits
36.
risk
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
24.
Other
financial
37.
liabilities
liabilities
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
date
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
41. Differences between
27. Reconciliation of cash
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
financial statements and
activities
WorkCover Queensland
28. Commitments
financial
statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied for all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-entity balances and transactions, and income and expenses
resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.
Special purpose entities
A SPE is consolidated if, based on an evaluation of the substance of its relationship with the consolidated entity and the SPE’s
risks and rewards, the consolidated entity concludes that it controls the SPE.
SPEs are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the consolidated entity and cease to be consolidated
from the date on which control is no longer with the consolidated entity.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
The financial statements of the SPE are prepared on the basis of WorkCover’s reporting period and accounting policies.

(b) Changes in accounting
policies and disclosures
BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for the period beginning 1 July 2012.
None of these have had a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the current
year’s is
presentation,
reclassifications
are not
material.
Glenn
a Director ofthese
Ferguson
Cannon, Lexon
Insurance
and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
(c) Reinsurance
Court
of Queensland.
WorkCover does not enter into any reinsurance arrangements.

(d) Premium revenue
Premium revenue includes amounts charged to the policyholder, excluding stamp duty and goods and services tax (GST)
received on behalf of the state and federal governments.
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Premium
revenue, including that on unclosed business, is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the date of attachment of risk i.e. when it has been earned. The pattern of recognition over the policy period is based
Justin
is
Chief
of the
Hotels Association
Union
of underwritten.
on time, whichExecutive
is considered
to Queensland
closely approximate
the pattern
of risks
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
The proportion
premium
or receivable
earned
in the Hotels
consolidated statement of comprehensive income at the
Committee
and of
delegate
to received
the National
Executivenot
of the
Australian
reporting date is recognised as an unearned premium liability in the consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying
Association.
value is deemed to reflect its fair value.
A discount is offered to policyholders for early payment subject to certain conditions. The discount is reflected in net premium
revenue.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Section 382(2) of the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 provides that all insurance policies issued by or on
Director
behalf of WorkCover are guaranteed by the Queensland State Government.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy
Vehicle National
Regulator.
Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
(e) Investment
income
and expenses
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Interest income, investment expenses and distributions from unit trusts are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on an accruals basis. Changes in the fair value of investments are recognised as income or losses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they occur.

(f) Liability adequacy test
At each reporting period WorkCover assesses whether the unearned premium liability is sufficient to cover all expected future
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
cash flows relating to future claims against current insurance contracts. This assessment is referred to as the liability
Director
adequacy test. This test is performed at a contract portfolio level using contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and
managed together as a single portfolio.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
WorkCoverRelations,
applies a Electrical
risk margin
of 13.3%
(2012: 13.5%)
theSafety
present value calculation of expected future cash flows
Industrial
Safety
and Workplace
Healthtoand
arising from future claims. This allows for a 75% (2012: 75%) probability of sufficiency.
Queensland.
If the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims and the additional risk margin reflecting the
inherent uncertainty in the central estimate exceeds the unearned premium liability, the unearned premium liability is
deemed to be deficient. If there is a deficiency, the entire deficiency is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
For the purpose of the liability adequacy test, the present value of future cash flows for future claims, including the risk
margin is $6.936 million (2012: $6.240 million); comprising the discounted central estimate of $6.124 million (2012: $5.497
John
is aand
Director
at Master
Builders,
a role
he has
heldmillion).
for over nine years and
million)
a margin
of $0.812
million
(2012:
$0.743
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety,
legal
services liability
and training.
Johnmillion
is a Director
the million), the liability adequacy test for the
Compared
toand
the contractual
unearned premium
of $7.852
(2012:of
$6.252
Workplace
Healthyear
and therefore
Safety Queensland
andofa$0.916
Director
of QLeave.
current financial
identifies aBoard
surplus
million
(2012: $0.012 million) for the portfolio of contracts that
WorkCover holds.

(g) Claims expense
Claims expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the costs are incurred, which is
Ian
Leavers
usually
the point in time when the event giving rise to the claim occurs. Further information is included at note 4(a).
Director

(h) Outstanding claims liability
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WorkCover between
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For the purpose of the liability adequacy test, the present value of future cash flows for future claims, including the risk
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
margin is $6.936 million (2012: $6.240 million); comprising the discounted central estimate of $6.124 million (2012: $5.497
million) and a margin of $0.812 million (2012: $0.743 million).
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
Compared to the unearned premium liability of $7.852 million (2012: $6.252 million), the liability adequacy test for the
note 41.
current financial year therefore identifies a surplus of $0.916 million (2012: $0.012 million) for the portfolio of contracts that
WorkCover holds.
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(g) Claims expense
Claims expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the costs are incurred, which is
usually the point in time when the event giving rise to the claim occurs. Further information is included at note 4(a).

(h) Outstanding claims liability
The liability for outstanding claims is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future payments for
claims incurred at the end of the reporting period with an additional risk margin to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the
central estimate. This liability is calculated by an independent actuary in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and
Rehabilitation Act 2003.
The expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid, claims incurred but not yet
reported (IBNR), claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER), and anticipated claims handling costs.
Future payments are estimated on the basis of the ultimate cost of settling claims, which is affected by factors arising during
the period to settlement, such as normal and superimposed inflation. The expected future payments are discounted to
present value at the reporting date using a risk free rate. The details of inflation and discount rates applied are included in
note 34.
The outstanding claims liability includes a 9.3% risk margin (2012: 9.5%). This allows for a 75% (2012: 75%) probability of
sufficiency for the liability in recognition that there are inherent uncertainties in the actuarial assumptions underlying the
present value calculation. This risk margin was determined having regard to the inherent uncertainties in the actuarial models
Annual
Report assumptions,
2012-2013 > the
Leading
theofway
Board of data
directors
and
economic
quality
the >
underlying
used in the models, and industry and market conditions. The
analysis of these inherent uncertainties was performed considering the statutory, common law, and asbestos related gross
outstanding claims estimates separately.
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The liability is calculated with reference to both the AASBs and the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003. In
respect of latent onset injuries, subdivision 3A of the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 states that the
definition
of the date
ofFAICD,
injuryFANZCN
for a latent onset injury, such as those caused by asbestos, is the date at which a medical
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL,
practitioner diagnoses the injury. No liability is held for latent onset injuries where a medical practitioner has not yet
Chair
diagnosed the injury.
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
(i) Deferred
acquisition
costs of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Law
Foundation.
He is a Solicitor
Court
of Queensland.
Acquisition
costs incurred in obtaining and recording general insurance contracts should be deferred and recognised as an
asset where it is probable that they will give rise to premium revenue that will be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in subsequent reporting periods, and where the value of the asset can be reliably measured. The
general insurance contracts entered into by WorkCover tend to only give rise to immaterial amounts of premium revenue that
will be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in subsequent reporting periods. As a result, no
deferred acquisition costs have been recognised.
Justin O’Connor BA
(j) Self-insurance
Deputy Chair
Payments and receipts
Justin
Chief Executive
of the
the Workers’
Queensland
Hotels Association
Union of
Compensation
and Rehabilitation
Act 2003, an employer may provide their own
Under is
chapter
2, part 4 of
Employers
and is a for
Director
at Intrust
Super of
Fund
and IS
Financial
Planning
Ptyseparation, WorkCover will make a payment to
accident insurance
their workers
instead
insuring
with
WorkCover.
Upon
Ltd.
Justin is a member
of the Queensland
Advisorywhich relate to the period of insurance covered by
the self-insurer
for the estimated
liability ofResponsible
outstandingGambling
claim payments,
Committee
WorkCover.and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
If a self-insurer returns to WorkCover as a policyholder, WorkCover will receive payment from the self-insurer for the
estimated liability of outstanding claim payments for the period of self-insurance. Net self-insurance payments are disclosed
in note 6(b).
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Bank guarantees and cash deposits
Director
Bank guarantees and cash deposits are held by the Workers’ Compensation Regulatory Authority Q-COMP on behalf of selfinsurers and are not recognised as financial assets under chapter 2, part 4 of the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Act 2003. Such guarantees have increased from $590.285 million in 2012 to $591.722 million in 2013. No cash deposits were
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
held at 30 June 2013 (2012: $0). A net fair value has not been recognised.
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

(k) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Current tax
Director
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authority based on the current period’s taxable income. The amount is calculated using tax rates and tax
Simon
is the
Deputy
Director-General,
ofreporting
Fair and Safe
laws that
are Acting
enacted
or substantively
enactedOffice
at the
date.Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Deferred income tax
Queensland.
Deferred income tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method and is provided on all
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax base of those items at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible
temporary
differences,
carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent it is probable that
OAM BEcon
(Hons), MAdmin
(IR)
John
Crittall
future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised. However, deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
Director
recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a
business
whichBuilders,
affects neither
thehas
accounting
profitnine
nor years
taxable
profit or loss.
John
is a combination)
Director at Master
a role he
held for over
and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
Deferred
income
tax assets and
liabilities
measured
the
tax rates
that are expected to apply for the year when the
safety,
legal
and contractual
services
and are
training.
John at
is a
Director
of the
asset is realised
theSafety
liabilityQueensland
is settled, based
rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
Workplace
Healthorand
Board on
andtax
a Director
of QLeave.
by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect WorkCover’s expected tax consequences
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.
41. Differences between
Ian
Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
Director
financial
statements
and
The
carrying
amount ofREPORT
deferred2012–2013
tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
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WorkCover Queensland
probable that taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Ian
is
General
President
and
CEO
of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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WorkCover
Queensland
is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
Deferred
income
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of tax
judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
Office
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estimates
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Queenslanddifferences
and is a not-for-profit
temporary
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carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax base of those items at the reporting date.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003,
and
is
controlled
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WorkCover
Queensland.
A
work
performance
arrangement
exists
WorkCover
Queensland
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred between
tax assets
are recognised
for all
This
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report
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WorkCover
Queensland’s
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statements
due
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and the WorkCover
Employing
Office,
where the of
WorkCover
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workthat
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deductible
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unused tax
credits and
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extent
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entity’s
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statements.
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immaterial
differences
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disclosed
in
WorkCover
Queensland.
future
taxable
profit will be available against which they can be utilised. However, deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
note 41.
recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a
WorkCover’s
principal place
business
is 280
Street,
Brisbane,
Queensland,
Australia.
business
combination)
whichofaffects
neither
theAdelaide
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profit
nor taxable
profit or loss.
This financial
report
not
separately
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
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due for
to the immaterial
Deferred
income
tax does
assets
and
liabilitiesdisclose
are measured
at the
tax rates that
are expected
to apply
year when the
differences
between
theliability
consolidated
and based
parenton
entity’s
financial
statements.
These
differences
are disclosed
in
asset
is realised
or the
is settled,
tax rates
(and tax
laws) that
haveimmaterial
been enacted
or substantively
enacted
note
41.
by
the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect WorkCover’s expected tax consequences
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(l) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities (excluding receivables and payables respectively) are recognised net of the
amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In
these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or in the amount of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included, where applicable.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables, respectively,
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Cash flows are included in the consolidated statement of cash flows net of the amount of GST. The GST component of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is classified as part of
operating
cash 2012-2013
flows.
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Commitments and contingencies are disclosed inclusive of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO,
where applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WorkCover is grouped for GST purposes.

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Chair
Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits held with financial institutions.
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Individual bank accounts are managed so that a collective net positive balance is maintained at year end. WorkCover does
Court of Queensland.
not currently maintain any borrowings or overdraft facilities. Cash flow requirements are managed through a cash offset
account and, if necessary, further cash can be obtained through available investment funds.

(n) Receivables
Receivables, which generally have 30 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, less an allowance for impairment.
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Allowance
for impairment

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. An allowance for impairment of receivables is established when
Justin
is objective
Chief Executive
of the
Hotels
Association
Union
of collected in accordance with the original terms of the
there is
evidence
thatQueensland
the amounts
due will
not be able
to be
Employers
a Director
at Intrust
Super
Fund
and IS Financial
Ptycarrying amount and the present value of
receivables.and
Theisamount
of the
allowance
is the
difference
betweenPlanning
the asset’s
Ltd.
Justin future
is a member
of theThe
Queensland
Gambling
Advisory
estimated
cash flows.
discount isResponsible
calculated using
a risk
free rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables
Committee
and delegate
the of
National
Executive
of the Australian
Hotels
are not discounted
if the to
effect
discounting
is immaterial.
The amount
of the allowance raised, used or derecognised is
Association.
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(o) Claim recoveries receivable
Claim recoveries received or receivable on outstanding claims liabilities are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
BCom (Hons), FCPA,
FAICD
Melinda
statementBailey
of comprehensive
income,
and the receivable is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position. This
Director
receivable is calculated by an independent actuary in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act
2003.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy
National
Regulator.
Melinda isasa the
Fellow
CPA value
and is of
a Fellow
of the future receipts, calculated on the same basis
Claims Vehicle
recoveries
receivable
are measured
present
the expected
Australian
Institute
of Company
Directors.
as the liability
for gross
outstanding
claims.
Details of inflation and discount rates applied are included in note 34.

(p) Property, plant, and equipment
Recognition and measurement
(Hons),
PhD
Simon
Blackwood
All items
of property,BSc
plant,
and
equipment are recognised at their cost of acquisition, being the fair value of the
Director
consideration provided plus incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
With respect to plant and equipment, an asset recognition threshold of $5,000 exists. With respect to property, an asset
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
recognition threshold of $10,000 exists for buildings and $1 for land. Property, plant, and equipment with a lesser cost are
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
expensed.
Queensland.
Items or components that form an integral part of an asset are recognised as a single asset. The recognition threshold is
applied to the aggregate cost of each functional asset.
Plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
Subsequent additional costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
John
is a Director
at Master
Builders,ofa the
roleasset,
he haswill
held
fortoover
years
and years. Costs that do not meet the criteria for
the originally
assessed
performance
flow
the nine
entity
in future
is
responsible are
for the
key areas
of industrial relations, workplace health and
capitalisation
expensed
as incurred.
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace
Valuation Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on annual valuations by an external independent valuer, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the
carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Any revaluation increase is credited, net of tax equivalents, to the asset revaluation surplus of the appropriate class, except
Ian Leavers
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset class previously recognised as an expense, in which
Director
case the increase is recognised as income.
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report
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statutory
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Compensation
and Rehabilitation
Act
PlantWorkCover
and equipment
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less accumulated
depreciation
andWorkers’
any accumulated
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2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to
the
immaterial
and
the WorkCover
Employing
Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff to perform work for
Subsequent
additional
costs
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
Queensland.
Costs incurred
subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
note 41.
the originally assessed performance of the asset, will flow to the entity in future years. Costs that do not meet the criteria for
WorkCover’s
place as
of incurred.
business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
capitalisation principal
are expensed
This
financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
Valuation
differences
betweenare
theshown
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and parent
financial
statements.
These immaterial
differences
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note
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for buildings. On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the
carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Any revaluation increase is credited, net of tax equivalents, to the asset revaluation surplus of the appropriate class, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset class previously recognised as an expense, in which
case the increase is recognised as income.
Any revaluation decrease is recognised as an expense, except to the extent that it offsets a previous revaluation increase for
the same asset class, in which case the decrease is debited, net of tax equivalents, directly to the asset revaluation surplus to
the extent of the credit balance existing in the asset revaluation surplus for that asset class.
Depreciation
Land is not depreciated.
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued amount of
each asset, less its estimated residual value, over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:
Building

5 to 60 years

Plant and equipment:
Computer equipment

3 to 8 years

Office equipment and furniture

2 to 10 years
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Fixtures
and fittings
2 to 10 years
Motor vehicles

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4 to 6 years

Derecognition
Property, plant, and equipment assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
Glenn
FAAL, FAICD,
FANZCN
from itsFerguson
use or disposal.
Derecognition
of property, plant, and equipment assets includes writing back accumulated
Chair
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses against the cost of acquisition. Any resulting gain or loss is represented
by the difference between the proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the assets are recognised in the consolidated
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
statement
of comprehensive
income.
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court
of Queensland.
The assets’
residual values, useful lives, and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end.

(q) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
WorkCover has two classes of intangible assets, being purchased computer software and internally generated computer
Justin
O’Connor BA
software.
Deputy Chair
Both software types have an asset recognition threshold of $100,000. Software with a lesser cost is expensed.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Intangible assets are measured at their cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
losses.
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Subsequent additional costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed performance of the asset, will flow to the entity in future years. Costs that do not meet the criteria for
capitalisation are expensed as incurred.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Amortisation
Director
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period in which the related benefits are expected to be realised.
Current is
amortisation
periods range
3 andManager
11 years.
Melinda
the Chief Financial
Officerbetween
and General
Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute of Company Directors.
Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Derecognition of intangible assets includes writing back accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses
against the cost of acquisition. Any resulting gain or loss is represented by the difference between the proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives, and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
Simon
financialBlackwood
year end. BSc (Hons), PhD
Director

(r) Impairment

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland,
which
is responsible
for overseeing
divisions
Private Sector
All non-current
physical
and intangible
assets arethe
assessed
forofindicators
of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of
Industrial
Relations, Electrical
Safety and
Workplacethe
Health
andrecoverable
Safety
possible impairment
exists, WorkCover
determines
asset’s
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
Queensland.
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The asset’s recoverable amount is determined as the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
treated as a revaluation increase.
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

(s) Investments
As part of its investment strategy, WorkCover actively manages its investment portfolio to ensure that sufficient cash liquid
assets are on hand to meet the expected future cash flows arising from general insurance liabilities.

41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
Classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. As the entity’s strategy is to
Director
financial
statements
and
manage financial
investments
to back its insurance contract liabilities, WorkCover classifies all its investments as
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(s) Investments
As part of its investment strategy, WorkCover actively manages its investment portfolio to ensure that sufficient cash liquid
assets are on hand to meet the expected future cash flows arising from general insurance liabilities.
Classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. As the entity’s strategy is to
manage financial investments acquired to back its insurance contract liabilities, WorkCover classifies all its investments as
follows:
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset or liability is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated
as such upon initial recognition. Fair value for managed unit trusts is based on the quoted bid price of the investment at reporting

date. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of financial assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date.
Investments that are required to back current insurance liabilities are classified as current investments for the purposes of
Annual Reportin2012-2013
> Leading
the way
Board of
directors
classification
the consolidated
statement
of >
financial
position.
While this classification policy may result in a reported
working capital deficit, included in non-current investments is a large proportion of liquid investments which QIC uses to
ensure it is available to meet WorkCover’s operating requirements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Further disclosures on investments are included in note 15 and 35.

Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD,
FANZCN
(t) Derivative
financial
instruments
and hedge accounting
Chair
WorkCover’s investment manager utilises derivative financial instruments as part of the entity’s approved investment
strategy.
derivatives
are carried
as assets
their fair
are positive and as liabilities when their fair values are
Glenn
is aAll
Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexonwhen
Insurance
andvalues
the Queensland
negative.
Derivatives
categorised
asHigh
heldCourt
for trading
unlessand
theythe
areSupreme
designated as hedges.
Law
Foundation.
He isare
a Solicitor
of the
of Australia

Court of Queensland.
Derivative financial instruments held for trading
Such derivatives are entered into with the intention to settle in the near future. These instruments are initially recorded at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are remeasured at fair value. Fair value for these instruments
is based on settlement price. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on fair value are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
BA derivatives is to ensure liquidity as well as offset movements in the general investment funds in
Justin
O’Connor
The purpose
of these
Deputy
Chair
particular
risk areas and to help achieve particular exposures by taking advantage of, and protecting against, market
conditions.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
and is a Director
at Intrust
Superas
Fund
and IS
Financial Planning Pty
Derivative financial
instruments
designated
hedging
instruments
Ltd.
Justin is a
member of
themeet
Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
WorkCover’s
derivatives
that
the definition
of a hedge
have Advisory
been classified as fair value hedges on the basis that they
Committee
and delegate
to the
National
Executive
of the Australian
hedge exposure
to changes
in the
fair value
of a recognised
asset orHotels
liability or an identified portion of such asset or liability
Association.
that is attributable to a particular risk.

With respect to hedge contracting, as required under the overall hedging strategy, the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as the risk management objective, strategy and purpose for undertaking the hedge, is
formally documented in the Investment Management Agreement between the investment manager and WorkCover. Such
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value and are assessed on an ongoing basis
Director
to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting period, for which they are
designated.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Hedges areInstitute
initially of
recognised
fair value on the date at which the derivative contract is entered into. The carrying amount
Australian
CompanyatDirectors.
of the hedged item is adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being hedged. The derivative is remeasured at fair
value and gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
WorkCover has the following fair value hedge:
Foreign currency overlay
BSc (Hons),
PhD
Simon
Blackwood
The purpose
of the foreign
currency
overlay is to hedge the foreign exchange risks on the market value of international
Director
equity assets held by WorkCover, via its investments in managed unit trusts. This activity is facilitated by holding a portfolio
of forward exchange contracts within the overlay. The fair value is based on various independent price sources and is
Simon
is the
Acting
disclosed
in note
35.Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial
Relations,
Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Embedded derivatives
Queensland.
WorkCover has embedded derivatives in some of its managed unit trust investments, but these derivatives are closely related
to the underlying securities that are the subject of the derivative transactions.
Further disclosures on investments are included in note 35.

(u) Payables
John
Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
Payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short-term nature they are not discounted. They represent trade
creditors, premiums in credit and claims creditors. Trade creditors are liabilities recognised for amounts to be paid in the
John
a Director
at Master
Builders,
a rolereceived.
he has held
for overinnine
years
futureisfor
administrative
goods
or services
Premiums
credit
are and
liabilities recognised for premiums received in
is
responsible
for the in
key
areasClaims
of industrial
relations,
workplace
health and
advance
and policies
credit.
creditors
are liabilities
for amounts
owed directly related to claims payments or claims
safety,
legalamounts
and contractual
services
and
training.
is a Director
of of
therecognition.
made. The
are unsecured
and
are
usually John
paid within
30 days
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
(v) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Ian
Leavers
If the
effect of the time value of money is material, a provision is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
Director
(adjusted for expected future risks) required to settle the obligation at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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(u)
Payablesprincipal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
WorkCover’s

Payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short-term nature they are not discounted. They represent trade
creditors,
premiums
in credit
claims disclose
creditors.
Trade creditors
are liabilities
recognised
for amounts
to immaterial
be paid in the
This financial
report does
not and
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WorkCover
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for administrative
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recognised differences
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inin
differences
between the consolidated
and parent
entity’s
financial
statements.
These immaterial
arereceived
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note 41. and policies in credit. Claims creditors are liabilities for amounts owed directly related to claims payments or claims
made. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(v) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, a provision is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(adjusted for expected future risks) required to settle the obligation at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Provision for lease restoration
A provision for lease restoration is recognised in relation to the dismantling, removal or make-good restoration costs of
leased office buildings following the cessation of a lease. The provision relates to all office buildings leased by WorkCover as
lessee.
The lease restoration provision is determined based on an estimated market rate per square metre to return the premises to
the same condition and standard prior to its rental. The market rate is inflated to the end of the lease period and then
discounted to determine fair value.
Details of the process used to determine the inflation and discount rates applied are the same as the process included in note
34(b).

(w) Employee benefits
(i)
Short-term
employee>benefits
Annual
Report 2012-2013
Leading the way > Board of directors
Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for salaries and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting period represent current
obligations resulting from employees’ services provided up to the reporting date, and are calculated at undiscounted amounts
based on salary rates, which are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Related on-costs such as workers’
compensation, superannuation and payroll tax have been included in the liability.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Sick leave
Chair
Sick leave entitlements are non-vesting and are only paid upon valid claims for sick leave by employees. Sick leave expense
is brought
to account
in the reporting
period
in Insurance
which it occurs.
NoQueensland
liability for sick leave has been recognised as experience
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon
and the
indicates
on average,
leave taken
is less
than
entitlement accruing in that year.
Law
Foundation.
He is sick
a Solicitor
of theeach
Highfinancial
Court ofyear
Australia
and
thethe
Supreme
Court of Queensland.

(ii) Post-employment benefits

Superannuation
WorkCover contributes to superannuation funds for the purpose of providing benefits for employees and their dependants on
retirement, disability, or death. Contributions are charged as expenses when incurred.
Employer
superannuation
contributions for employees are paid to superannuation funds as nominated by employees including
BA
Justin
O’Connor
QSuper,Chair
the superannuation plan for Queensland Government employees. The rates for contributions to QSuper’s defined
Deputy
benefit plans are determined by the Treasurer on the advice of the State Actuary.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
No liability and
is recognised
for at
accruing
in these
consolidated
financial statements. The liability is held
Employers
is a Director
Intrustsuperannuation
Super Fund andbenefits
IS Financial
Planning
Pty
on a Justin
whole-of-government
basis
and reported
in the financial
report
prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 Whole of Government
Ltd.
is a member of the
Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Advisory
and Generaland
Government
Sector
Financial
Reporting.
Committee
delegate to
the National
Executive
of the Australian Hotels
Association.

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits

Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respectBailey
of services
by FAICD
employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future salary rates,
BCom provided
(Hons), FCPA,
Melinda
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using interest rates on
Director
national government securities with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
Related on-costs
such
as workers’
compensation,
superannuation
andServices,
payroll tax have been included in the liability.
Melinda
is the Chief
Financial
Officer
and General Manager
Corporate
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
(iv) Termination
Australian
Institutebenefits
of Company Directors.

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when WorkCover is demonstrably committed, to either terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or provide
termination benefits for voluntary redundancies where an offer of voluntary redundancy is probable and can be reliably
estimated.

(x) Operating
leases
BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood
Director
Lease income and expenses derived/incurred under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease in accordance with the requirements of AASB 117
Simon
Leases.is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial
Relations,
Electrical
Safety
and Workplace Health and Safety
(y) Presentation
currency
and
rounding
Queensland.
This financial report is presented in Australian dollars and amounts included in the consolidated financial statements have
been rounded to the nearest $1,000 or, where that amount is less than $500, to zero.
Amounts mentioned in the commentary in the notes to the consolidated financial statements have been rounded to the
nearest $1,000.
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
(z) New and revised Australian Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective
A number
of new standards,
amendments
interpretations
John
is a Director
at Master Builders,
a roletohestandards
has held and
for over
nine years are
and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after
1 July 2013,
andkey
have
not of
been
appliedrelations,
in preparing
these consolidated
is
responsible
for the
areas
industrial
workplace
health and financial statements. The upcoming standards
relevantlegal
to WorkCover
are AASB
13 Fair
AASB
9 Financial
Instruments
and the revised standard AASB 119 Employee
safety,
and contractual
services
andValue,
training.
John
is a Director
of the
Benefits (September
of theseBoard
are expected
to haveofaQLeave.
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
Workplace
Health and2011).
SafetyNone
Queensland
and a Director
and WorkCover does not plan to adopt these standards early.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. AASB 13 provides a
single definition for fair value to be used for most accounting standards and also requires new disclosures where fair value is
used.
Ian Leavers
Director
It specifies the valuation techniques that can be used which may have an impact on the valuation methodology of
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(z) New and revised Australian Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. The upcoming standards
relevant to WorkCover are AASB 13 Fair Value, AASB 9 Financial Instruments and the revised standard AASB 119 Employee
Benefits (September 2011). None of these are expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements
and WorkCover does not plan to adopt these standards early.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. AASB 13 provides a
single definition for fair value to be used for most accounting standards and also requires new disclosures where fair value is
used.
It specifies the valuation techniques that can be used which may have an impact on the valuation methodology of
WorkCover’s property and building class of assets. All fair value assets will also have to disclose where they fall in the three
tier fair value hierarchy which will determine the extent of the disclosures required. The extent of the impact is expected to
be immaterial.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (2009 and 2010) applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. AASB 9
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets (2009) and financial liabilities (2010).
The standard contains two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. For
investments not held for trading (excluding derivatives) the standard permits an irrevocable election on initial recognition to
present all fair value changes from the investment in the operating result. Investment income on such investments would be
Annual Report
2012-2013
Leading
the way
Board represent
of directors
recognised
in the
operating>result,
unless
they>clearly
a partial recovery of the cost of the investment. Otherwise,
investments would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the operating result.
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Under AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts, WorkCover is required to value financial instruments at fair value through
profit and loss. Other than this requirement, WorkCover is yet to determine the approach it will adopt to comply with the
requirements of AASB 9 and the extent of the impact has not yet been determined.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
WorkCover makes estimates and assumptions in respect of certain key assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas in which critical estimates have
been applied are described below.

(a) The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts
Provision is made at year end for the estimated cost of claims incurred, including the cost of claims IBNR, but not settled as
at the reporting date. An independent actuary undertakes this calculation.
The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims net of the expected value of salvage
and other recoveries. The actuary takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims
exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be
different from the original liability established.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to WorkCover as more information about the claim event is generally available. IBNR claims
may often not be apparent until many years after the claim event. Claims reported soon after the claim event typically tend
to display lower levels of volatility. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the actuary uses a variety of estimation
techniques, generally based upon statistical analyses of historical experience. These techniques assume that the development
pattern of the current claims will be consistent with past experience.
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Large claims are generally assessed separately, being measured on a case by case basis or projected separately in order to
allow for the possible distortive effect of the development and incidence of these large claims.
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(b) Estimation of claims recoveries receivable
In addition to the calculation of the gross outstanding claims liability, estimates for potential claim recoveries are also derived
using the above methods. These calculations are also based on past recovery experience and include adjustments to these
assumptions where appropriate. In addition, the recoverability of the assets are assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that
the balance is reflective of the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking into consideration such factors as credit risk.
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Movement in unearned premiums
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2013
$’000

2012
$’000

1,632,045

1,462,943

(26,152)

(25,251)

2,181

2,357

1,608,074

1,440,049

(1,600)

1,621

1,606,474

1,441,670
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Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. NET CLAIMS INCURRED
(a) Net claims incurred
2013
$’000

2.
of preparation
(a)Basis
Net claims
incurred
3.
Summary
of significant
(b) Reconciliation
of net
accounting
policies
claims incurred
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates

3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
Financial
performance
7.
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of comprehensive income
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.
Other
expenses
of financial
position
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11.
Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
income
of changes
in equity
12.
Cash income
and statement
cash
9.
Other
Consolidated
equivalents
of cash
flows
10.
Other
expenses
13.
Recoveries
receivable
Notes
to thetax
consolidated
11.
Income
on
outstanding
claims
financial
statements
equivalents
14.
Receivables
Leading
the
way – Chair
Actuarial
certificate
12. Cash
and cash on
and
CEO report
net outstanding
claim
15.
Investments
equivalents
liabilities
Board
of directors
16. Recoveries
Other
assets
13.
receivable
Certificate
of WorkCover
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
17.
Property,
plant,
and
Queensland
equipment
14. Receivables
Independent audit report
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
Declaration by directors
19.
Payables
16. Other assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20.
Unearnedentity
premium
1. Reporting
23.
Employee benefits
liability
2. Basis of preparation
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
3. Summary of significant
liabilities
liability
accounting policies
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
4. Critical
surplus
byaccounting
class
23.
Employee
benefits
judgements
and
26. Investment
estimates
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
5. Net premium revenue
27. Reconciliation of cash
25.
Asset
revaluation
6. Net
claims
incurred
flows
from
operating
surplus by class
activities
7. Underwriting expenses
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
8. Investment
income
fluctuation
reserve
29. Consultancy fees
9. Other
income of cash
27.
Reconciliation
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
10. Other
expenses
personnel
activities disclosures
11. Income tax
31.
Related
parties
28.
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
12. Cash and cash
remuneration
equivalents
30.
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
13. Recoveries
receivable
on outstanding
claims
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31.
Related parties
and methods
14.
Receivables
32. Auditors'
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
15. Investments
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
16. Other assets
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34.
17. Actuarial
Property, assumptions
plant, and
and
methods information
equipment
38.
Segment
35.
Financial
instruments
18. Events
Intangible
assets
after
reporting
39.
date
36.
risk
19. Operational
Payables
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
20. Unearned premium
liability
41.
Differences
between
38.
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
21.
Outstanding
claims
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
liability
date
WorkCover Queensland
22. Subsidiaries
Provisions
financial
statements
40.

Note

2012
$’000

Current
year

Prior
years

Total

Current
year

Prior
years

Total

1,568,034

(339,149)

1,228,885

1,644,086

(508,869)

1,135,217

Gross claims expense
Gross claims expense—
undiscounted
Discount
21(b)

(69,333)

53,443

(15,890)

(69,333)

220,533

151,200

1,498,701

(285,706)

1,212,995

1,574,753

(288,336)

1,286,417

(49,543)

2,842

(46,701)

3,286

(9,462)

(6,176)
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Claims recoveries revenue—
(52,133)
(19,467)
(71,600)
undiscounted
Glenn
Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
3,849
(2,617)
1,232
Discount
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
(22,084)
(70,368)
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor 13(b)
of the High(48,284)
Court of Australia
and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
1,450,417 (307,790) 1,142,627
Net claims incurred

(46,257)

(6,620)

(52,877)

1,528,496

(294,956)

1,233,540

Current year claims relate to risks borne in the current financial year. Prior year claims relate to a reassessment of the
expense for risks borne in all previous financial years.
Injury years
prior to
BA 2013 provide a $358.6m release for net claims incurred before unwinding one year of discounting on
Justin
O’Connor
future payments.
This is driven by a release for common law benefits and a flow on reduction in risk margin, offset by a
Deputy
Chair
strengthening in the liability for statutory benefits.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
The reduction
common
provision
largely
favourable
Employers
andinisthe
a Director
atlaw
Intrust
SuperisFund
andattributable
IS FinancialtoPlanning
Pty recent experience which was driven by:
- Lower
average
settlement
sizes
Ltd.
Justin
is a member
of the
Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
-Committee
Reductionsand
in projected
ultimate
intimations.
delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
The increase in statutory benefits is caused by increases in expected future weekly, medical and rehabilitation payments,
reflecting the recent higher experience.

(b) Reconciliation
of net
claims
FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
Bailey BCom (Hons),
Director

incurred
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Gross claims paid - statutory

737,688

688,499

Gross claims paid - common law

461,486

513,870

152,755

160,810

30

559

1,351,959

1,363,738

(57,482)

(46,636)

Note
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Gross claims
expense/payments
made
Australian
Institute
of Company Directors.

Claims handling expenses

7

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Net self insurance payments
Director
21(b)
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Claims recoveries revenue received
Gross claims recovered - statutory
Gross claims recovered - common law
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director

13(b)

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
Movement in net outstanding claims liability
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Gross claims liability
Recoveries receivable

23. Differences
Employee benefits
41.
between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover
consolidated
24. Other financial
Director
financial
statements
and
liabilities
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
25. Assetstatements
revaluation
financial
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
surplus by class

(3,068)

(2,535)

(60,550)

(49,171)

(138,964)

(77,321)

(9,818)

(3,706)

(148,782)

(81,027)

1,142,627

1,233,540

Certificate
WorkCover
of financialof
position
Financial performance
Queensland
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
statement
Independent
report
of changes inaudit
equity
of comprehensive income
Declaration
bystatement
directors
Consolidated
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities
1.
Reporting
entity
Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland
2.
Basis of
preparation

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit
report
3.
Summary
of
significant
net outstanding
claim
accounting
policies
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
4. Critical accounting
Certificate
WorkCover
judgementsofand
Queensland
estimates
Independent
audit
report
5. Net premium
revenue
Declaration
byincurred
directors
6.
Net claims

7. Underwriting expenses
1. Reporting entity
8. Investment income
2. Basis of preparation
9. Other income
3. Summary of significant
10.
Other expenses
accounting
policies
11.
Incomeaccounting
tax
4. Reporting
Critical
1.
entity
equivalents
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
12. Cash and cash
3.
of significant
equivalents
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
13.
Recoveries
receivable
6. Net
claims incurred
4. Critical
accounting
on
outstanding
claims
7. Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
14.
Receivables
estimates
8. Investment income
15.
Investments
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
16.
Other
assets
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10. Other
expenses
17.
Property, plant,
and
7.
Underwriting
11. Income tax expenses
equipment
equivalents
8. Investment income
18. Intangible assets
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
19.
Payables
equivalents
10. Other expenses
20.
13. Unearned
Recoveriespremium
receivable
11.
Income tax claims
liability
on outstanding
equivalents
21.
14. Outstanding
Receivables
Leading
the way claims
– Chair
12. Cash
and cash
liability
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
22. Provisions
Board
of directors
16. Recoveries
Other
assets
13.
receivable
23.
Employee
benefits
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
17. Property,
plant,
and
24.
Other
financial
equipment
14.
Receivables
liabilities
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
25. Asset revaluation
19.
Payables
16. Other
surplus
byassets
class
20.
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
Property,
and
26. Investment
liability
equipment
fluctuation
reserve
21. Reconciliation
Outstanding
claims
18.
Intangible
assets
27.
of cash
liability
flows
from operating
19. Payables
activities
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
28.
23. Commitments
Employee benefits
liability
29.
fees
24. Consultancy
Other financial
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
30.
Key management

personnel
disclosures
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
surplus
by class
31.
Related
parties
23. Employee
benefits
26. Auditors'
Investment
32.
24.
Other
financial
fluctuation
reserve
remuneration
liabilities
27. Insurance
Reconciliation
33.
Riskof cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus
by class
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
activities
and
methods
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
35. Financial
instruments
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
36. Operational risk
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
37.
Contingent
liabilities
personnel disclosures
activities
38.
information
31. Segment
Related parties
28.
Commitments
39.
Events
after reporting
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
date
remuneration
30. Key management
40.
33. Subsidiaries
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures

41.
between
34. Differences
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
Related
WorkCover
consolidated
and methods
32. Auditors'
financial
statements and
35. Financial
instruments
remuneration
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
34.
assumptions
and
methods information
38. Segment
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational risk
36.
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
Current year claims relate to risks borne in the current financial year. Prior year claims relate to a reassessment of the
expense
for Queensland’s
risks
borneplace
inChair,
allofprevious
financial
years. Street, Brisbane,
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
principal
business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
establishedthis
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
Injury
years prior
to does
2013 not
provide
a $358.6m
release
for net Queensland’s
claims incurred
before statements
unwinding one
year
of immaterial
discounting on
This
financial
report
separately
disclose
WorkCover
financial
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
to perform work for
future
payments.
This
is consolidated
driven by a release
for common
benefits
and a flow
on reduction
in risk
margin,are
offset
by a in
differences
between
the
and parent
entity’s law
financial
statements.
These
immaterial
differences
disclosed
WorkCover
Queensland.
strengthening
in the liability for statutory benefits.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
The reduction in the common law provision is largely attributable to favourable recent experience which was driven by:
- Lower average settlement sizes
financial in
report
does ultimate
not separately
disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
-This
Reductions
projected
intimations.
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
The increase in statutory benefits is caused by increases in expected future weekly, medical and rehabilitation payments,
reflecting the recent higher experience.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Reconciliation of net claims incurred
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Gross claims paid - statutory

737,688

688,499

Gross claims paid - common law

461,486

513,870

152,755

160,810

30

559

1,351,959

1,363,738

(57,482)

(46,636)

Note
Gross claims expense/payments made

7

Claims handling expenses
Net self insurance payments

21(b)

Claims recoveries revenue received
Gross claims recovered - statutory
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Gross claims recovered - common law
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13(b)

Movement
in net
outstanding
claims liability
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL,
FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Gross claims liability
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Recoveries
receivable
Law
Foundation.
He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

(3,068)

(2,535)

(60,550)

(49,171)

(138,964)

(77,321)

(9,818)

(3,706)

(148,782)

(81,027)

1,142,627

1,233,540

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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Consolidated statement
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of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8. cash
Investment
of
flows income
12.
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9. Other
Notes
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the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstandingclaims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15.
Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
19.
16. Payables
Other assets
20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
Summary
significant
23.
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
28.
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel
activities disclosures
12. Cash and cash
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
equipment
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and Segment
methods information
38.
19. Payables
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
date
36. Operational risk
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
39. Provisions
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland

Note
Employee benefits expense1
Contractors
Consultancy fees

29

Computer costs
Operating lease rental expense

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

76,901

74,310

4,291

5,139

-

56

3,750

4,684

3,479

2,308

7,132

11,010

17

3,313

3,719

Amortisation of intangible assets

18

1,970

3,110

Net loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment

27

519

765

1,039

4,051

9,936

7,263

23,667

25,318

42,549

41,110

178,546

182,843

(152,755)

(160,810)

Other administration expenses
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Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, for
FAICD,
FANZCN
Transfer
to allowance
impairment
of receivables
Chair
Bad debts expense
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Q-COMP
levy He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Law
Foundation.
Court of Queensland.
WHSQ grant

ClaimsO’Connor
handling expenses
allocated to gross claims expense
BA
Justin
Deputy Chair

6(b)

25,791
22,033
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
1 Recognised within employee benefits expense, is $6.261 million (2012: $6.172 million) of superannuation contributions
Ltd.
Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
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Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
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Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
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2013
$’000

2012
$’000

3,064

1,927

4

12

119,915

104,371

5,316

(160,205)

179,184

133,894

20,771

9,799

(74,769)

6,779

253,485

96,577

4,754

2,117

Realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

44,728

(22,279)

Unrealised (loss)/gain on derivatives

(1,633)

23,624

47,849

3,462

301,334

100,039

Designated upon initial recognition
Interest from bank deposits
Interest from fair value hedge
Managed unit trust distributions
Realised gain/(loss) on managed unit trusts
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Realised gain on fair value hedge

Unrealised (loss)/gain on fair value hedge

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
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Foundation.
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Held
for trading
Court of Queensland.
Interest from overlay instruments

Justin O’Connor BA
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Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
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Director
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Director
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Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
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safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
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Justin O’Connor BA
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Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
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safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
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statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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4,615

943

45

6,486

4,660

All investment expenses arise from financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss.
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Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
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Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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10.Net
Other
expenses
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
equivalents
8. Investment income
Financial performance
12.
Cash income
and cash
9. Other
Consolidated statement
equivalents
10.
Other
expenses
of comprehensive
income
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income
tax
Consolidated
statement
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
of financial position
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12.
Cash
and statement
cash
Consolidated
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
of changes
in equity
Board
of
directors
16.
Other assets
13.
Recoveries
receivable
Consolidated
statement
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
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17.
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18.
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19.
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23.
Employee benefits
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24.
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21. Other
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25.
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22. Asset
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23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
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reserve
1. Reporting
entity
liabilities
27.
Reconciliation
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2. Basis
of preparation
25. Asset
flows
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operating
3. Summary
of significant
surplus
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26. Commitments
Investment
28.
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fluctuation
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29.
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27.
Reconciliation
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30.
Key
management
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from
operating
personnel
disclosures
5. Net premium
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activities
31.
Related
6. Net
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28.
Commitments
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7. Underwriting
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29.
Consultancy
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8. Investment
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30.
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33.
Insurance
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disclosures
9. Other income
34.
Actuarialparties
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10. Related
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11. Auditors'
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34.
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38.
13. Segment
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claims
35.
Financial
instruments
Events
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39.
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36.
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37.
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16. Differences
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38.
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WorkCover consolidated
17.
Property,
plant,
and
39. Events
after reporting
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statements
and
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date
WorkCover
Queensland
18. Subsidiaries
Intangible
assets
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statements
40.
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11. INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS
(a) Income tax equivalent expense
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

216,959

82,736

216,959

82,736

Operating result for the year before income tax equivalent

734,253

282,373

Income tax equivalent at the standard tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%)

220,276

84,712

Deferred income tax equivalent expense

Reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense

Tax effect
of adjustments
income the
tax way
equivalent
expense:
Annual
Report
2012-2013 >toLeading
> Board
of directors
124

59

1,323

1,128

368

182

474

400

(4,410)

(3,761)

(412)

-

(136)

(78)

(21)

-

Gross up of foreign income tax offset received

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Gross up of franking tax offset received

Current year capital losses
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Non-deductible expenses
Glenn is aTax
Director
Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
offset of
forFerguson
franked dividends
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Tax offset for foreign income
Other deductible expenses
Non-assessable income
Adjustments for income tax equivalent of prior years
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Income
tax equivalent expense attributable to operating result
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
(b) Income
equivalent
(benefit)
recognised
in other
comprehensive
Committee
andtax
delegate
to the National
Executive
of the Australian
Hotels
Association.

Revaluation of land and building
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director

(627)

94

216,959

82,736

income

Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

25,27

(1,682)

(492)

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

3,800

2,408

386

579

102

80

4,288

3,067

1,286

920

Melinda
is the Chief Financial
Officer
and
General Manager Corporate Services,
(c) Unrecognised
deferred
tax
assets
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items:
Capital losses
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Lease restoration provision
Simon
is the Acting
Deputy Director-General,
Office of Fair and Safe Work
Non-deductible
demolition
costs (leases)
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Potential tax effect at 30%

WorkCover has capital losses which are available indefinitely for offset against future capital gains subject to continuing to
meet relevant statutory tests. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these capital losses and future
capitalCrittall
losses because
is not MAdmin
probable
OAM BEconit(Hons),
(IR)that future capital gains will be available against which WorkCover can utilise these
John
losses.
Director
John
is a Director atdeferred
Master Builders,
a role he
has liabilities
held for over nine years and
(d) Recognised
tax assets
and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
WorkCover
entitled
to offset
the deferred
tax assets
has disclosed the net balance in the consolidated
safety,
legalisand
contractual
services
and training.
Johnand
is aliabilities
Director and
of the
statement of
financial
Workplace
Health
and position.
Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets
Liabilities
19. Differences
Payables
41.
between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover
consolidated
20. Unearned premium
2013
2012
2013
2012
Director
financial
statements andQUEENSLAND
liabilityWORKCOVER
ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
60
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
21. Outstanding
claims
financial
statements
355,143
Income
tax equivalent
losses
and
has held
this position
since 2009. He has been167,981
involved with
the Queensland

Net
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

167,981

355,143

of Net
financial
position
5.
premium
revenue
Financial performance
Consolidated
6.
Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
7.
Underwriting expenses
of comprehensive
income
Consolidated statement
8.
Investment income
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial
position
9.
Other income
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial
10.
Otherstatements
expenses
of changes in equity
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
equivalents
of
cash flows
liabilities
12. Cash and cash
Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
equivalents
financial
statements
Queensland
13. Recoveries receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit
report
on
outstanding
claims
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
14.
Receivables
liabilities
15.
Investments
Certificate
of WorkCover
Queensland
16.
Other assets
Independent
17.
Property, audit
plant,report
and
equipment
Declaration by directors
18. Intangible assets
1. Reporting
19.
Payables entity

2. Basis
of preparation
20.
Unearned
premium
liability
3. Summary of significant
accounting
policies
21.
Outstanding
claims
liability
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements
and
22.
Provisions
2.
Basis
of preparation
estimates
23.
Employeeofbenefits
3.
significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting
policies
24.
Other financial
6. Net claims incurred
liabilities
4. Critical accounting
7. Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
25.
Asset revaluation
estimates
surplus
by classincome
8. Investment
5.
premium
26.
Investment
9. Net
Other
income revenue
fluctuation
reserve
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
7.
Underwriting
11. Income
tax expenses
flows
from operating
equivalents
8. Investment income
activities

12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
28.
Commitments
equivalents
10.
Other
expenses
29. Consultancy
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income
tax claims
30.
Key
management
on outstanding
equivalentsdisclosures
personnel
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Related
Cash
and
cash
31.
parties
and
CEO report
15. Investments
equivalents
32. Auditors'
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
remuneration
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
17.
Property,
plant,
33. Insurance Risk and
equipment
14.
Receivables
34. Actuarial assumptions
18. Investments
Intangible
15.
and
methods assets
19. Financial
Payables
16.
Other
assets
35.
instruments
20.
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
Property,
36. Operational
risk and
liability
equipment
37. Contingent liabilities
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
38.
Segment information
liability
19. Payables
39.
after reporting
22. Events
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
date
23. Employee benefits
liability
40. Subsidiaries
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
41.
Differences between
liabilities
liability
WorkCover consolidated
25. Provisions
Assetstatements
revaluationand
22.
financial
surplus by class
WorkCover
Queensland
23. Employee
benefits
financial
statements
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
fluctuation reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus
by class
activities
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel disclosures
activities
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
and methods
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
34.
assumptions
and
methods information
38. Segment
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational risk
36.
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
for
3,800
2,408
Capital
losses
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
386
579
Lease restoration provision
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
102WorkCover Queensland
80
Non-deductible
demolition
costs (leases)
2003,
and is controlled
by WorkCover
Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between
This the
financial
reportEmploying
does not separately
disclose
WorkCoverEmploying
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due staff
to the
and
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Office
is required
to provide
toimmaterial
perform work for
3,067
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial4,288
differences are disclosed
in
WorkCover
note 41.
1,286
920
Potential tax effect at 30%
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
WorkCover
has
capital
losses
which are available
indefinitely Queensland’s
for offset against
future
capital gains
continuing to
This financial
report
does
not separately
disclose WorkCover
financial
statements
duesubject
to the to
immaterial
meet
relevant
statutory
Deferred
taxparent
assetsentity’s
have not
been recognised
respect
of these capital
losses
and
future in
differences
between
the tests.
consolidated
and
financial
statements.inThese
immaterial
differences
are
disclosed
capital
losses because it is not probable that future capital gains will be available against which WorkCover can utilise these
note 41.
losses.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(d) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
WorkCover is entitled to offset the deferred tax assets and liabilities and has disclosed the net balance in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Assets

Liabilities

Net

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Income tax equivalent losses

167,981

355,143

-

-

167,981

355,143

Unrealised investment losses

21,323

52,157

-

-

21,323

52,157

Indirect claims handling expenses

62,728

60,674

-

-

62,728

60,674

60

60

-

-

60

60

900

1,532

-

-

900

1,532

Other items
649
687
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Employee benefits
Other provisions

-

-

649

687

284

-

-

(1,440)

284

(1,440)

Intangibles

-

-

(1,799)

(2,075)

(1,799)

(2,075)

Other items

-

-

(677)

(12)

(677)

(12)

253,925

470,253

(2,476)

(3,527)

251,449

466,726

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
$’000

Balance 30
June 2013
$’000
167,981

Property, plant and equipment

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Tax assets (liabilities)
Chair

Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,during
Lexon Insurance
Movement
in deferred
tax balances
the year and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Balance
1 July
2011
$’000

Recognised
in
operating
result
$’000

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
$’000

Balance 30
June 2012
$’000

Recognised
in
operating
result
$’000

Income tax equivalent losses

393,530

(38,387)

-

355,143

(187,162)

-

Unrealised
investmentBA
losses
Justin
O’Connor
Indirect claims
Deputy
Chairhandling expenses

101,402

(49,245)

-

52,157

(30,834)

-

21,323

56,798

3,876

-

60,674

2,054

-

62,728

57

3

-

Employee benefits

Justin
is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels
Other provisions
945 Association
587Union of
Employers
Planning- Pty
Other items and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund
697 and IS Financial
(10)
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Property, plant and equipment
(2,381)
448
492
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Intangibles
(2,057)
(18)
Association.
Other items

60

-

-

60

1,532

(632)

-

900

687

(38)

-

649

(1,441)

43

1,682

284
(1,799)

(2,075)

276

-

(21)

10

-

(11)

(666)

-

(677)

548,970

(82,736)

492

466,726

(216,959)

1,682

251,449

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1. Reporting entity
Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

35(a), (d)

87,950

68,166

2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
Summary
of significant
5.
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6.
Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of comprehensive
income
7.
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.
Other
expenses
of changes
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11.
Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
of cash
flows income
12.
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9.
Other
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10.
Otherstatements
expenses
13.
Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on
netoutstanding
outstandingclaims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14.
Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15.
Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14.
Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
19.
16. Payables
Other assets
20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1. Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2. Basis
of preparation
22.
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3. Summary
significant
23.
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
4. Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25.
Asset
revaluation
22.
Provisions
estimates
surplus by class
23.
Employee
benefits
5. Net
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6. Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7. Underwriting
expenses
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8. Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9. Other
income
26.
Investment
28.
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10. Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel
activities disclosures
12. Cash and cash
31.
Related
parties
28.
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on outstanding
claims
30.
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14. Receivables
34.
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
15. Related
Investments
and methods
32.
16. Auditors'
Other assets
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
equipment
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34.
18. Actuarial
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and Segment
methods information
38.
19. Payables
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
date
36.
Operational risk
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21. Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41.
Differences
between
38.
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
22. Events
Provisions
39.
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
23. Employee
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland

Current
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at bank. WorkCover has no unused borrowing or overdraft facilities.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

financial
40.
24. Subsidiaries
Otherstatements
financial
liabilities
41.
Differences between
Ian Leavers
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
26. Investment
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
fluctuation reserve
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Actuarial certificate on
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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23.Summary
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(a) Recoveries receivable on outstanding claims

Expected future recoveries undiscounted
Discount to present value

Represented by:
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Non-current

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

164,791

153,740

(8,638)

(7,405)

156,153

146,335

49,289

44,519

106,864

101,816

156,153

146,335

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

146,335

142,629

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland

(b)
Reconciliation
movement
during
year and the Supreme
Law Foundation.
He is aofSolicitor
of the High
Courtthe
of Australia
Court of Queensland.

Note
Balance at 1 July
Effect of changes in assumptions to prior year provisions
Justin O’Connor BA
Recoveries
Deputy
Chairprovision made during the year

6(a)

22,084

6,620

6(a)

48,284

46,257

(60,550)

(49,171)

156,153

146,335

Recoveries
received
during
theQueensland
year
Justin
is Chief
Executive
of the
Hotels Association Union of 6(b)
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Balance
30
June of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Ltd.
Justin at
is a
member
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
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provide
staff
to the
to perform
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controlled
by the
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Government.
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is the mainOffice
provider
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compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
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statements
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been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
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WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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14. RECEIVABLES

1. Reporting entity
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Premiums and related penalties

12,563

13,525

Claims and related penalties

11,756

13,715

320

299

20

3
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accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
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judgements and
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4. Critical accounting
of
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Summary
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23.
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21. Other
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4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
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25.
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22. Asset
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estimates
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23.Net
Employee
benefits
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Other
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Net
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reserve
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expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
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25. Asset
flows
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Investment
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26.Other
Investment
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Reconciliation
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Key
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flows
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32. Consultancy
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29.
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Key management
33.
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15.
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32. Other
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OperationalRisk
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equipment
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liabilities
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18.
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Note

Other recoveries
Unclosed business
Sundry debtors
Less allowance for impairment of receivables
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756

349

(3,000)

(4,905)

22,415

22,986

21,662

22,096

753

890

22,415

22,986

Represented by:

Current

Glenn
Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Non-current
Chair

35(a),
(b), (d)
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Reconciliation
of allowance for impairment of receivables
Court
of Queensland.
Balance at 1 July
Net debts written off during the year
Unused allowance reversed during the year
Justin O’Connor BA
Allowance
made during the year
Deputy
Chair
Balance
at 30
June of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of 35(b)
Justin
is Chief
Executive
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

financial
statements
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
liabilities
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Ian Leavers
WorkCover
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25.
Asset revaluation
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statements
and
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by
class
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
26.
Investment
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
fluctuation reserve

4,905

3,150

(2,944)

(2,296)

(1,961)

(854)

3,000

4,905

3,000

4,905

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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2. Basis of preparation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENTS
All investments are financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss.

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
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entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
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4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
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estimates
8. Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
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statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
of
cash
flows income
12.Other
Cash
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cash
9.
Notes
to income
the
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10.
Otherstatements
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13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
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tax
on outstanding
net
outstanding claims
claim
equivalents
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14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
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and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15. Investments
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Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
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13.
receivable
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audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
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equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
19. Other
Payables
16.
assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
significant
23.Summary
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
estimates
surplus by class
23.
Employee
benefits
5. Net
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8. Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9. Other
income
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10. Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel disclosures
activities
12. Cash and cash
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on outstanding
claims
30.
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14. Receivables
34. Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
15. Related
Investments
and methods
32.
16. Auditors'
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35. Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
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37. Contingent
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34.
18. Actuarial
Intangibleassumptions
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and
methods information
38. Segment
19. Payables
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
dateOperational risk
36.
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40. Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
21. Contingent
Outstanding claims
liability
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
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22.
Provisions
39.
Events
after reporting
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statements
and
date
23.
Employee
benefits
WorkCover
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40.
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24.
Otherstatements
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41.
Differences between
WorkCover
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and
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26.
Investment
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fluctuation reserve

Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

35(d)

2,873,478

2,433,607

-

14,317

35(a)

2,873,478

2,447,924

35(d)

414,566

204,794

35(a)

414,566

204,794

3,288,044

2,652,718

1,017,380

1,033,422

2,270,664

1,619,296

3,288,044

2,652,718

Designated upon initial recognition
Managed unit trusts
Derivative financial instrument designated as a fair
value hedge

Held for
trading
Annual
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Represented by:

35(a), (d)

Glenn is Current
a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Non-current
Queensland.
35(a), (d)

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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statement
net
outstanding
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Queensland
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. OTHER ASSETS

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8. cash
Investment
of
flows income
12.
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9. Other
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstandingclaims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15.
Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
19.
16. Payables
Other assets
20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
Summary
significant
23.
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
28.
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel
activities disclosures
12. Cash and cash
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
equipment
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and Segment
methods information
38.
19. Payables
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
date
36. Operational risk
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
39. Provisions
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland

Prepayments
Lease security bonds

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

1,124

1,682

-

9

1,124

1,691

866

1,341

258

350

1,124

1,691

Represented by:
Current
Non-current
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

financial
statements
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
Director
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
66
WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
26.
Investment
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
fluctuation reserve

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

1. Reporting entity
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Land at fair value

14,000

14,000

Building

36,622

41,363

(18,622)

(17,363)

18,000

24,000

32,000

38,000

9,045

11,441

(4,613)

(4,819)

4,432

6,622

32

37

32

37

36,464

44,659

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Work in
progress
$’000

Total
$’000

5,036

244

43,780

2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
Consolidated
estimates
8. Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
of
cash
flows income
12.Other
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9.
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstanding claims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15. Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
19. Other
Payables
16.
assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
significant
23.Summary
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
Other income
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel disclosures
activities
12. Cash and cash
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
15.
Investments
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
equipment
37. Actuarial
Contingent liabilities
34.
18.
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and
methods information
38. Segment
19. Payables
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
dateOperational risk
36.
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
Provisions
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
23.
Employee
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
24.
Other
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
financialby
statements
and
surplus
class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Less accumulated depreciation
Building at fair value
Total property
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Plant and equipment at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Total plant
and equipment
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Building
work inHe
progress
Law
Foundation.
is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Total work in progress

Justin O’Connor BA
Reconciliation
of property, plant, and equipment
Deputy
Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Building
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Land
Financial Planning
Pty
Note
$’000
$’000
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland
Responsible Gambling
Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
14,000
24,500
Balance at 1 July 2011
Association.
Acquisitions
Disposals
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Transfers
Director

-

2,685

4,420

37

7,142

-

(168)

(735)

-

(903)

201

27
(1,577)
Depreciation
Melinda
is the Chief Financial Officer and7,General
Manager Corporate
Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
(1,641)
Revaluation
decrement
Australian
Institute
of Company Directors.25
Balance at 30 June 2012

14,000

24,000

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director

Land
Building
Note
$’000
$’000
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland,
which
is
responsible
for
overseeing
the
divisions
of
Private
Sector
14,000
24,000
Balance at 1 July 2012
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
939
Acquisitions
Disposals
Transfers

-

43

(244)

-

(2,142)

-

(3,719)

-

-

(1,641)

6,622

37

44,659

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Work in
progress
$’000

Total
$’000

6,622

37

44,659

530

30

1,499

-

(760)

(14)

(774)

21

-

(21)

-

John
Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
7, 27
(1,353)
(1,960)
(3,313)
Depreciation
Director
25
(5,607)
(5,607)
Revaluation decrement
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
isBalance
responsible
forJune
the key
areas of industrial relations, workplace
and
14,000 health
18,000
4,432
32
36,464
at 30
2013
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
The valuation basis of land and building is fair value, being the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged between
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, having regard to the highest and best use of the asset. An independent
valuation of land and building was performed as at 30 June 2013. The independent valuer determined fair value by reference
to market based evidence. This means that valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, adjusted
for any differences in the nature, location or condition of the specific property. The independent valuer provided a report
detailing
the assumptions used to value the land and building in line with industry standard benchmarks.
Ian
Leavers
Director
REPORT
2012–2013
QUEENSLAND
Plant and equipment with an original cost of $0.946ANNUAL
million (2012:
$1.081
million) and WORKCOVER
a written down value
of zero is still 67
Ian
is used
General
President
andofCEO
of the AQueensland
Policeassets
Union with
of Employees
being
in the
provision
services.
portion of these
a gross cost of $0.154 million are expected to be
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Consolidated
statement
Financial
performance
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
Notes
to the consolidated
of
comprehensive
income
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
Actuarial
certificate
of
financial
position on
Notes
to the consolidated
net outstanding
claim
Consolidated
statement
financial
liabilities statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial
on
Certificatecertificate
of WorkCover
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
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Queensland
of cash flows
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Independent audit report
Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
Declaration
by directors
financial
statements
Queensland
Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
9,045
11,441
Plant and
equipment
at cost
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland

Reconciliation of property, plant, and equipment

(4,613)
(4,819)
Less accumulated
depreciation
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003,
controlled
by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover
Queensland
4,432
6,622
Total and
plantisand
equipment
This
financial
report Employing
does not separately
disclose
WorkCover Employing
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due staff
to thetoimmaterial
and the
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Office
is required
to provide
perform work for
differences
between
the
consolidated
and
parent
entity’s
financial
statements.
These
immaterial
differences
are
disclosed
in
WorkCover Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s
principal
place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
Building work
in progress

4.
accounting
5. Critical
Net premium
revenue
1.
Reporting
entity
judgements and
6. Basis
Net claims
incurred
2.
of preparation
estimates
7. Summary
Underwriting
expenses
3.
of significant
5.
Net
premium
revenue
accounting policies
8.
Investment
income
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
9. Underwriting
Other incomeexpenses
7.
judgements
and
10.Investment
Other expenses
estimates
8.
income
11.Other
Income
tax revenue
5.
Net
premium
9.
income
equivalents
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
12. Cash and cash
7.
Underwriting
11.
Income tax expenses
equivalents
equivalents
8. Investment income
13. Recoveries receivable
12.
Cash income
and cash
on Other
outstanding
claims
9.
equivalents
14. Other
Receivables
10.
expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
15.outstanding
Investments
11.
Income
tax claims
on
equivalents
16.
Other
assets
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
17. Investments
Property,
plant, and
15.
equivalents
equipment
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
18. Intangible
assets
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
19. Payables
equipment
14. Receivables
20. Unearned premium
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
liability
19.
Payables
16. Other assets
21. Outstanding claims
20.
Unearned plant,
premium
liability
17.
Property,
and
liability
equipment
22. Provisions
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
23. Employee benefits
liability
19. Payables
24. Provisions
Other financial
22.
liabilities
20.
Unearned premium
23.
Employee benefits
liability
25. Asset revaluation
24.
Other
surplus
byfinancial
class claims
21.
Outstanding
liabilities
liability
26. Investment
25.
Asset
revaluation
fluctuation
reserve
22.
Provisions
surplus by class
27. Employee
Reconciliation
of cash
23.
benefits
26.
Investment
flows
from operating
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
activities reserve
liabilities
27.
28. Reconciliation
Commitments of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
29. Consultancy
surplus
by class fees
activities
30. Commitments
Key management
26.
Investment
28.
personnel disclosures
fluctuation
reserve
29. Consultancy fees
31. Reconciliation
Related partiesof cash
27.
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
32. Auditors'
personnel
activities disclosures
remuneration
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
33. Insurance Risk
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
34. Actuarial assumptions
remuneration
and Key
methods
30.
management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
35. Financial instruments
34.
assumptions
31. Actuarial
Related parties
36. Operational
risk
and
methods
32. Auditors'
37. Financial
Contingent
liabilities
35.
instruments
remuneration
38. Operational
Segment information
36.
risk
33.
Insurance Risk
39.
Events afterliabilities
reporting
37. Actuarial
Contingent
34.
assumptions
date
and Segment
methods information
38.
40. Subsidiaries
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
41. Differences between
date
36. Operational risk
WorkCover consolidated
40.
Subsidiaries
financial
statements
and
37.
Contingent
liabilities
WorkCover Queensland
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
financial statements
WorkCover
consolidated
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries

37

37
Total
work inreport
progress
This
financial
does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the 32
immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
36,464
44,659
note 41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land
$’000

Building
$’000

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Work in
progress
$’000

Total
$’000

14,000

24,500

5,036

244

43,780

Acquisitions

-

2,685

4,420

37

7,142

Disposals

-

(168)

(735)

-

(903)

201

43

(244)

-

7, 27

-

(1,577)

(2,142)

-

(3,719)

25

-

(1,641)

-

-

(1,641)

14,000

24,000

6,622

37

44,659

Land
$’000

Building
$’000

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Work in
progress
$’000

Total
$’000

14,000

24,000

6,622

37

44,659

-

939

530

30

1,499

(760)

(14)

(774)

-

(21)

-

Independent audit report
1. Reporting entity
Declaration by directors
2. Basis of preparation
3. Reporting
Summary entity
of significant
1.
accounting policies
2. Basis of preparation
4. Critical accounting
3.
Summary and
of significant
judgements
accounting
estimates policies

32

Note
Balance at 1 July 2011

Transfers
Depreciation
Revaluation decrement
Balance at 30 June 2012
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Note

Balance at 1 July 2012
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Acquisitions
Chair

Disposals
Glenn
is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the QueenslandLaw Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
21
Transfers
Court
of Queensland.
Depreciation

7, 27

-

(1,353)

(1,960)

-

(3,313)

25

-

(5,607)

-

-

(5,607)

Revaluation decrement

14,000
18,000
4,432
32
36,464
Balance at 30 June 2013
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
The valuation basis of land and building is fair value, being the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged between
willing isparties
in an arm’soflength
transaction,
having
regard toUnion
the highest
and best use of the asset. An independent
Justin
Chief Executive
the Queensland
Hotels
Association
of
valuation ofand
land
building
performed
as atand
30 June
2013. The
independent
valuer determined fair value by reference
Employers
is and
a Director
at was
Intrust
Super Fund
IS Financial
Planning
Pty
to market
evidence.
ThisQueensland
means thatResponsible
valuations performed
by the valuer are based on active market prices, adjusted
Ltd.
Justin based
is a member
of the
Gambling Advisory
for any differences
in the to
nature,
locationExecutive
or condition
of the
specificHotels
property. The independent valuer provided a report
Committee
and delegate
the National
of the
Australian
detailing the assumptions used to value the land and building in line with industry standard benchmarks.
Association.
Plant and equipment with an original cost of $0.946 million (2012: $1.081 million) and a written down value of zero is still
being used in the provision of services. A portion of these assets with a gross cost of $0.154 million are expected to be
replaced in 2013-14. There are currently no assets with a written down value equal to their residual value above zero still
being used
in theBCom
provision
services
(Hons),ofFCPA,
FAICD(2012: $0.045 million). During 2012-13, plant and equipment at cost of $2.927 million
Melinda
Bailey
(2011-12: $14.152 million) was disposed.
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
Director
financial
statements
and
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
Consolidated
estimates
8. Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
of
cash
flows income
12.Other
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9.
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstanding claims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15. Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
19. Other
Payables
16.
assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
significant
23.Summary
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
Other income
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel disclosures
activities
12. Cash and cash
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
15.
Investments
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
equipment
37. Actuarial
Contingent liabilities
34.
18.
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and
methods information
38. Segment
19. Payables
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
dateOperational risk
36.
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
Provisions
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
23.
Employee
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
24.
Other
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
financialby
statements
and
surplus
class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Purchased computer software at cost
Less computer software written off
Less accumulated amortisation
Add accumulated amortisation write-back on disposals
Total purchased computer software
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Internally generated computer software at cost

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Less software written off

Less accumulated amortisation

Glenn
Ferguson FAAL,
FAICD, FANZCN
Add accumulated
amortisation
write-back on disposals
Chair
Total internally generated computer software
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Software work in progress

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

1,655

1,888

-

(232)

(1,583)

(1,795)

-

232

72

93

29,811

32,920

-

(4,030)

(22,590)

(24,670)

-

4,030

7,221

8,250

-

390

7,293

8,733

Work in
progress
$’000

Total
$’000

10,917

317

11,421

32
Acquisitions
Melinda
Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
317
Transfers
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
7,27
(94)
(3,016)
Amortisation
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Balance at 30
June 2012
93
8,250

390

422

Justin O’Connor BA
Reconciliation
of intangible assets
Deputy
Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union Internally
of
Purchased
generated
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund
and IS Financial Planning
Pty
computer
computer
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible
Gambling Advisory
software
software
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Note
$’000
$’000
Association.
Balance at 1 July
2011

187

Balance at 1 July
93
8,250
2012 Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon
Director
530
Acquisitions
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Transfers which is responsible for overseeing the divisions
390
Queensland,
of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
(21)
(1,949)
Amortisation
7,27
Queensland.
Balance at 30
June 2013

72

7,221

(317)

-

-

(3,110)

390

8,733

390

8,733

-

530

(390)

-

-

(1,970)

-

7,293

Software with an original cost of $1.179 million (2012: $1.041 million) and a written down value of zero is still being used in
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
the provision of services.
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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of financial position
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Consolidated statement
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equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
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of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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19. PAYABLES

1. Reporting entity
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Trade creditors

8,238

11,747

Premiums in credit

4,953

658

Claims creditors

1,755

2,230

14,946

14,635

(1,423)

(1,523)

7,883

7,211

6,460

5,688

21,406

20,323

2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8. cash
Investment
of
flows income
12.
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9. Other
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstandingclaims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15.
Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
19.
16. Payables
Other assets
20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
Summary
significant
23.
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
28.
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel
activities disclosures
12. Cash and cash
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
equipment
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and Segment
methods information
38.
19. Payables
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
date
36. Operational risk
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
39. Provisions
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland

Note
Current

GST receivable
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GST payable
Net GST payable

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

35(a), (c), (d)

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

financial
statements
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
Director
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
26.
Investment
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
fluctuation reserve

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Declaration
by
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20. UNEARNED PREMIUM LIABILITY

1. Reporting entity
2.(b)
Basis
of preparation
Reconciliation
of
unearned
premium
3. Summary
of significant
liabilities
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Criticalperformance
accounting
Financial
7. Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
Consolidated statement
estimates
8. comprehensive
Investment income
of
income
5.
premium
revenue
9. Net
Other
income
Consolidated
statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
of
position
10.financial
Other
expenses
7.
Underwriting
Consolidated
statement
11. Income tax expenses
of
changes
in equity
equivalents
8.
Investment
income

Consolidated
12.Other
Cashincome
and statement
cash
9.
of
cash flows
equivalents
10. Other expenses
Notes
to the consolidated
13. Recoveries
receivable
11.
Income
tax claims
financial
statements
on outstanding
equivalents
Actuarial
certificate
on
14. Receivables
Leading
the
way – Chair
12. outstanding
Cash
and cash
net
claim
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
liabilities
Board
of directors
16. Recoveries
Other
assets
13.
receivable
Certificate
of WorkCover
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
Queensland
17. Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
Independent
audit report
18. Investments
Intangible
15.
Declaration
by assets
directors
19.
Payables
16. Other assets

Note

(a) Aggregate liability for unearned premium

Current
Non-current

7,852

6,252

7,488

6,252

364

-

7,852

6,252

6,252

7,873
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(b) Reconciliation of unearned premium liabilities

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Balance at 1 July
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Movement in unearned premium:
Glenn is Deferral
a Director
Fergusonon
Cannon,
Lexon
Insurance
the Queensland
of of
premiums
contracts
written
during and
the year
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Earning
Queensland.
of premiums written in previous years
5
Balance at 30 June
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
1.
20.Reporting
Unearnedentity
premium
23. Employee benefits
liability
2. Basis of preparation
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
3.
Summary of significant
liabilities
liability
accounting
policies
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
4.
Critical accounting
surplus by class
judgements
and
23. Employee
benefits
26. Investment
estimates
24.
Other
financial
fluctuation reserve
5.
Net premium revenue
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
6.
Net
claims incurred
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus
by class expenses
7.
Underwriting
activities

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

17.
plant,
and
37. Property,
Contingent
liabilities
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
equipment
and
methods information
38. Segment
18.
Intangibleinstruments
assets
35.
39. Financial
Events after reporting
19.
datePayables
36.
Operational risk
20.
premium
40. Unearned
Subsidiaries
37.
Contingent
liabilities
liability
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
21.
Outstanding
claims
WorkCover
consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
liability
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
22. Provisions
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
23. Employee benefits
41. Differences between
24.
Other financial
WorkCover
consolidated
liabilities
financial statements and
WorkCover
Queensland
25.
Asset revaluation
financialby
statements
surplus
class

2012
$’000

Represented by:

20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment

26.
Investment
8.
income
28.Investment
Commitments
fluctuation reserve
9.
income fees
29.Other
Consultancy
27. Reconciliation of cash
10.
expenses
30. Other
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel disclosures
activities
11.
Income tax
equivalents
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
12.
and cash
32. Cash
Auditors'
29.
Consultancy
fees
equivalents
remuneration
30. Key management
13.
receivable
33. Recoveries
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
on outstanding claims
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
14.
andReceivables
methods
32. Auditors'
15.
Investments
35.
Financial
remuneration instruments
16.
assets
36. Other
Operational
risk
33.
Insurance
Risk

2013
$’000

7,852

5,903

(6,252)

(7,524)

1,600

(1,621)

7,852

6,252

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
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71

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
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statements
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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21. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY
(a) Gross outstanding claims liability
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2,418,025

2,533,326

Risk margin

243,854

259,061

Claims handling expenses

203,209

195,774

2,865,088

2,988,161

(175,902)

(160,011)

2,689,186

2,828,150

1,066,669

1,077,941

Central estimate

Less discount to present value
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Gross outstanding claims liability at present value

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Represented by:
Current

Glenn Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Non-current
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

1,622,517

1,750,209

2,689,186

2,828,150

(b) Reconciliation of movement during the year
Note
Justin
O’Connor
Balance
at 1 July BA
Deputy Chair
6(a)
Effect of changes in assumptions to prior year provisions
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
is aduring
Director
Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning
Pty
6(a)
Provisionsand
made
theat
year
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee
and delegate
to the
National Executive of the Australian Hotels6(b)
Payments made
during the
year
Association.
Balance at 30 June

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2,828,150

2,905,471

(285,706)

(288,336)

1,498,701

1,574,753

(1,351,959)

(1,363,738)

2,689,186

2,828,150

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
(c) Claims development
The following
show theOfficer
development
of gross
and net
undiscounted
outstanding claims relative to the ultimate
Melinda
is the tables
Chief Financial
and General
Manager
Corporate
Services,
expected
claims.
Heavy
Vehicle
National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
(i) Gross
Injury Year

2003
& prior
$’000

2004
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

722,634

855,054

768,959

863,763

2009
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

955,826

1,061,688 1,249,278 1,332,474 1,315,327

1,264,555

992,169

1,181,424 1,234,048 1,204,512 1,209,599

Total
$’000

Estimate of
ultimate
claims cost:
At end of

(Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood BSc
injury year
652,210
645,866
Director
One year later
589,858 625,647
Two years

Simon
is the Acting Deputy
Director-General,
Office
of Fair1,072,324
and Safe Work
later
570,148
659,338 782,458
908,667
1,189,127 1,116,051 1,090,711
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Three years
Industrial
Relations,
Electrical
Safety
and
Workplace
Health
and
Safety
later
579,685 657,462 813,309 939,236 1,088,519 1,119,791 1,058,083
Queensland.
Four years

12.
and
cash
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Cash
Related
parties
equivalents
and methods
later
580,269 659,957 823,624 953,557 1,050,185 1,098,402
32. Auditors'
13.
Recoveries
receivable
35.
Financial instruments
Five years
remuneration
on outstanding claims
later
583,946 664,463 834,494 941,539 1,053,167
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
Six years later
582,218 666,511 823,120 943,185
14. Receivables
37.
liabilities
34. Contingent
Actuarial assumptions
Seven years
15.
Investments
OAM
BEcon
(Hons), MAdmin
John
Crittall
later
575,949
659,996(IR)
824,976
and Segment
methods information
38.
Director
Eight years
16.
Other
assets
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
later
572,701 663,985
17.
plant,
date
John
is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
36. Property,
Operational
risk and
Nine years
equipment
later
582,084
is
responsible for the key
areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
40.
37. Subsidiaries
Contingent liabilities
safety,
Current legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
18. Intangible assets
41.
Differences
between
estimate of Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
38. Segment information
Workplace
cumulative
19.
Payables
WorkCover
consolidated
claims cost
582,084 663,985 824,976 943,185 1,053,167 1,098,402 1,058,083 1,090,711 1,209,599 1,264,555 9,788,747
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
20.
Unearned
premium
date
Cumulative
WorkCover
Queensland
liability
payments
(573,403) (652,858) (809,129) (917,919) (1,006,733) (1,023,536) (875,563) (722,918) (570,187) (287,159) (7,439,405)
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries
Central
21. Outstanding claims
estimate
41.
Differences
between
liability
outstanding
Ian
Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
claims Director
22.
Provisions
financial
statements
and
undiscounted
8,681
11,127
15,847
25,266
46,434
74,866 182,520 367,793 639,412
977,396 2,349,342
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Basis of preparation
7.
expenses
3. Investment
Summary ofincome
significant
8.
accounting policies
9. Other income
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
10.
Other expenses
judgements
and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
11. Income tax
3.
of significant
equivalents
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
12.
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Other
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incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
15.
Investments
7.
Underwriting
11. Other
Income
tax expenses
16.
assets
equivalents
8.
Investment income
17. Property, plant, and
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
equipment
equivalents
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14. Unearned
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the way
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12. Cash
and cash
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CEO report
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Investments
equivalents
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claims
Board
of directors
16. Recoveries
Other
assets
13.
receivable
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Executive
team
on
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claims
17. Provisions
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22.
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14.
Receivables
23. Employee benefits
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
24. Other financial
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
liabilities
20. Asset
Unearned
premium
17.
Property,
plant,
and
25.
revaluation
liability by class
equipment
surplus
21. Investment
Outstanding
claims
18.
Intangible
assets
26.
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fluctuation
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19. Payables
22. Provisions
27.
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20. Reconciliation
Unearned premium
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23. Employee
benefits
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activities
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Other financial
21.
claims
28.
Commitments
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29.
fees
25. Consultancy
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22.
Provisions
surplus
by
class
30.
Key
management
23. Employee benefits
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disclosures
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
31.
Relatedreserve
parties
liabilities
27. Auditors'
Reconciliation of cash
32.
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
remuneration
surplus
by class
activities
33.
Insurance Risk
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
29. Consultancy
fees
and
methods
27. Reconciliation
of cash
30. Financial
Key
management
flows
from
operating
35.
instruments
personnel disclosures
activities
36. Operational risk
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
37. Contingent liabilities
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
38.
Segment information
remuneration
30. Key management
39.
after
reporting
33. Events
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
date
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Related parties
40.
andSubsidiaries
methods
32. Auditors'
41.
Differences
between
35.
Financial
remuneration instruments
WorkCover consolidated
36. Insurance
Operational
risk and
33.
Risk
financial
statements
WorkCover
Queensland
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
34.
assumptions
financial
statements
and
methods
38. Segment
information
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational risk
36.
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

WorkCover
Queenslandof
is a
statutory body
established
under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
(b)
Reconciliation
movement
during
the year
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
2013
2012
Note
$’000
$’000
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of
business
Mr
Glenn
is
Ferguson,
280
Adelaide
authorised
Street,
Brisbane,
this
report
Queensland,
for
issue
on
Australia.
27
August
2013.
The WorkCover Employing Office is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act
2,905,471
Balance
July
2003,
andatis1controlled
by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists2,828,150
between WorkCover Queensland
This the
financial
reportEmploying
does not separately
disclose
WorkCoverEmploying
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due staff
to the
and
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Office
is required
to provide
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences
between
the
consolidated
and
parent
entity’s
financial
statements.
These
immaterial
differences
are
disclosed
in
6(a)
(285,706)
(288,336)
Effect
of
changes
in
assumptions
to
prior
year
provisions
WorkCover Queensland.
note 41.
6(a)
1,498,701
1,574,753
Provisions made
during
theof
year
WorkCover’s
principal
place
business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland,
Australia.
6(b)
(1,351,959)
(1,363,738)
Payments made during the year
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
2,689,186
2,828,150
Balance at 30 June
note 41.
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(c) Claims development
The following tables show the development of gross and net undiscounted outstanding claims relative to the ultimate
expected claims.
(i) Gross
Injury Year

2003
& prior
$’000

2004
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2009
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

At end of
injury year

652,210

645,866

722,634

855,054

One year later

589,858

625,647

768,959

863,763

955,826

1,061,688 1,249,278 1,332,474 1,315,327

1,264,555

992,169

1,181,424 1,234,048 1,204,512 1,209,599

Two years
later

570,148

659,338

782,458

908,667

1,072,324

1,189,127 1,116,051 1,090,711

Three years
later

579,685

657,462

813,309

939,236

1,088,519

1,119,791 1,058,083

Four years
later

580,269

659,957

823,624

953,557

1,050,185

1,098,402

Five years
later

583,946

664,463

834,494

941,539

1,053,167

Six years later

582,218

666,511

823,120

943,185

later

575,949

659,996

824,976

Eight years
later

572,701

Nine years
later

582,084

Total
$’000

Estimate of
ultimate
claims cost:

Annual
Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Seven years

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
663,985

Current

Glenn
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
estimateFerguson
of
cumulative
Chair
claims cost

582,084

663,985

824,976

943,185

1,053,167

1,098,402 1,058,083 1,090,711 1,209,599

1,264,555

9,788,747

Cumulative
Glenn
is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
payments
(573,403) (652,858) (809,129) (917,919) (1,006,733) (1,023,536) (875,563) (722,918) (570,187) (287,159) (7,439,405)
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Central
Court
of
Queensland.
estimate
outstanding
claims undiscounted

8,681

11,127

15,847

25,266

46,434

74,866

182,520

367,793

639,412

977,396 2,349,342

Central
estimate of
outstanding
claims for
prior injury
Justin
O’Connor BA
years
68,683

68,683

Deputy Chair

Total central
estimate of
Justin
is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels
outstanding
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund
claims

Association Union of
and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd.
Justin is a(6,984)
member(1,270)
of the Queensland
Responsible
Advisory
Discount
(1,555)
(2,114)
(2,940)Gambling
(4,183)
(6,369) (10,618) (19,610)
Committee
and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Central
Association.
estimate
outstanding
claims discounted

61,699

7,411

9,572

Claims
handling
Melinda
expenses

BCom (Hons),
FAICD
Bailey5,176
1,059FCPA,1,199
Director
Risk margin
6,222
788
1,002

13,733

22,326

42,251

68,497

1,568

1,930

2,285

1,423

2,257

4,143

2003 &
prior
2004
2005
$’000
$’000
$’000
BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon Blackwood
Estimate
of
Director
ultimate
claims cost:

2006
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

(58,555)

(148,980)

918,841 2,269,045

171,902

348,183

604,630

3,073

5,995

14,765

39,987

114,221

191,258

6,658

16,550

33,765

59,969

96,106

228,883

Provision for
Melinda
is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
outstanding
claims Vehicle
Heavy
National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
discounted
73,097of Company
9,258
11,773
16,724
26,513
48,679
78,228 194,447
Australian Institute
Directors.

(ii) Net1
Injury
Year

2,418,025
(34,782)

2009
$’000

2010
$’000

396,713

2011
$’000

704,586 1,129,168 2,689,186

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

Total
$’000

Simon
is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
At end of
Queensland,
which is responsible
for overseeing
divisions
of Private
Sector1,207,018 1,287,647 1,270,052 1,217,658
injury year
626,007 619,941
693,874 the
821,166
917,850
1,024,774
Industrial
Relations, Electrical
and 741,518
Workplace
Health and
Safety
One year later
565,921 Safety
599,843
829,892
955,230
1,139,274 1,191,502 1,160,950 1,162,090
Queensland.
Two years
later

545,200

633,659

755,236

874,805 1,030,179 1,146,233 1,075,612 1,042,773

Three years
later

558,032

629,062

784,931

902,207 1,047,310 1,075,537 1,017,274

Four years
later

558,678

633,936

793,758

919,587 1,008,737 1,050,100

Six years later

560,903

639,123

791,782

909,641

Nine years
later

559,903

633,106

792,742

909,641 1,012,822 1,050,100 1,017,274 1,042,773 1,162,090

John
Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Five years
later
562,443 637,525
803,494
Director

908,364 1,012,822

John
a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
Sevenis
years
later
554,531
631,104
792,742
is
responsible for the key
areas of
industrial
relations, workplace health and
safety,
legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Eight years
later
550,743Queensland
633,106
Workplace
Health and Safety
Board and a Director of QLeave.
Current
estimate of
cumulative
claims cost

Ian
Leavers
Cumulative
Director
payments
Central

559,903

(551,237) (622,002) (776,970) (885,549) (970,331) (983,526) (850,668) (704,844) (565,858)

1,217,658

9,398,109

(286,861) (7,197,846)
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Ian
is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
estimate
outstanding
and
has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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outstanding Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
WorkCover
claims
2,418,025
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
Queensland.
been disclosed
in note 4.
Discount statements
(6,984)
(1,270)
(1,555)
(2,940)
(4,183)
(6,369) (10,618) (19,610) (34,782)
(58,555) (148,980)
Queensland
and
is a have
not-for-profit
entity.(2,114)
Central

estimate
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
outstanding
claims and
2003,
is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
discounted
61,699
7,411
9,572
13,733
22,326
42,251
68,497
171,902
348,183
604,630
918,841
2,269,045
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work
for
Claims
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
Queensland.
handling
note
41.
expenses

5,176

1,059

1,199

1,568

1,930

2,285

3,073

5,995

14,765

WorkCover’s
principal
of business
Brisbane,6,658
Queensland,
Risk margin
6,222 place
788
1,002 is 280
1,423Adelaide
2,257Street,4,143
16,550 Australia.
33,765

39,987

114,221

191,258

59,969

96,106

228,883

Provision for
outstanding
This
financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
claims differences
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
discounted
73,097
9,258
11,773
16,724
26,513
48,679
78,228 194,447 396,713 704,586 1,129,168 2,689,186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

note 41.

(ii) Net1
Injury
Year

2003 &
prior
$’000

2004
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2009
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

At end of
injury year

626,007

619,941

693,874

One year later

565,921

599,843

741,518

821,166

917,850 1,024,774 1,207,018 1,287,647 1,270,052

1,217,658

829,892

955,230 1,139,274 1,191,502 1,160,950 1,162,090

Two years
later

545,200

633,659

755,236

874,805 1,030,179 1,146,233 1,075,612 1,042,773

Three years
later

558,032

629,062

784,931

902,207 1,047,310 1,075,537 1,017,274

Four years
later

558,678

633,936

793,758

919,587 1,008,737 1,050,100

Five years
later

562,443

637,525

803,494

908,364 1,012,822

Six years later

560,903

639,123

791,782

909,641

Seven years
later

554,531

631,104

792,742

Eight years
later

550,743

633,106

Total
$’000

Estimate of
ultimate
claims cost:

Nine years

Annual
Report 2012-2013
> Leading the way > Board of directors
later
559,903
Current
estimate of
cumulative
claims cost

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
559,903

Cumulative
payments

633,106

792,742

909,641 1,012,822 1,050,100 1,017,274 1,042,773 1,162,090

(551,237) (622,002) (776,970) (885,549) (970,331) (983,526) (850,668) (704,844) (565,858)

Glenn
CentralFerguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
estimate
Chair
outstanding
claims -

Glenn
is a Director of Ferguson
Insurance
the Queensland
undiscounted
8,666 Cannon,
11,104 Lexon
15,772
24,092 and
42,491
66,574 166,606
Law
Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Central
estimate
of
Court
of Queensland.
outstanding
claims for
prior injury
years

337,929

596,232

1,217,658

930,797 2,200,263

66,995

66,995

Total central
estimate of
outstanding
claims

Justin O’Connor BA
Discount
Deputy
Chair (6,829)

9,398,109

(286,861) (7,197,846)

2,267,258
(1,269)

(1,553)

(2,110)

(2,923)

(4,101)

(6,142)

(10,085)

(18,446)

(32,549)

(55,070)

Central
estimate
Justin
is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
outstanding
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
claims discounted
7,397
9,551
13,662
21,169
38,390
60,432 156,521
Ltd. Justin is a60,166
member of
the Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Advisory

319,483

563,683

875,727 2,126,181

Claims
Committee
and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
handling
Association.

(141,077)

expenses

5,176

1,059

1,199

1,568

1,930

2,285

3,073

5,995

14,765

39,987

114,221

191,258

Risk margin

6,080

787

1,000

1,417

2,149

3,784

5,908

15,119

31,095

56,160

92,095

215,594

Provision for
outstanding
claims BCom (Hons),
FAICD
Melinda
Bailey
discounted
71,422
9,243FCPA,
11,750

16,647

25,248

44,459

69,413

177,635

365,343

Director

659,830 1,082,043 2,533,033

1 The claims development table has also been presented on a net of other recoveries basis to give the most meaningful
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
insight into the impact on the operating result. The net outstanding claims liability can be reconciled by taking the gross
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
outstanding claims liability per note 21 and offsetting the recoveries receivable as per note 13.
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
Director
financial
statements
and
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
74
WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
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of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
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of cash flows statement
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Notes to the consolidated
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statement
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of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
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statement
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claim
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cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
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WorkCover
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orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
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is required
are
tosignificant
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controlled
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Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
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compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
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statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Declaration
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22. PROVISIONS
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Other
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10.comprehensive
Other
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statement
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of
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Investment
income
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12.Other
Cashincome
and statement
cash
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equivalents
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statement
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flowstax claims
oncash
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equivalents
Notes
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theway
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14. Receivables
Leading
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12.
Cash
and cash
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CEO statements
report
15.
Investments
equivalents
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certificate on
Board
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16. outstanding
Other
assets
13.
Recoveries
receivable
net
claim
Executive
team
on
outstanding
claims
liabilities
17. Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
Certificate
of WorkCover
Queensland
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.

(a) Aggregate provision for property obligations

Provision for lease restoration
Provision for lease obligation
Provision
for building
cost> Leading the way > Board of directors
Annual
Report
2012-2013

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

779

-

52

715

-

-

200

715

252

385

527

1,100

779

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

252

18

Non-current:

Provision for lease restoration
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

(b) Reconciliation of provision for property obligations

21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23. Employee benefits
liability

Justin
is Chief
Executiveduring
of thethe
Queensland
Hotels Association Union of
Provision
movements
year
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd.
Justin is in
a member
Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Reductions
provisionof
asthe
a result
of payments
made during
theAdvisory
year
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Unused provision reversed during the year

10.
Other
expenses
31. Commitments
Related
parties
28.
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Income
32. Consultancy
Auditors'tax fees
29.
equivalents
remuneration
30. Key management
12.
and
cash
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Risk
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34. Related
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31.
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32.
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35.
Financial
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14. Receivables
36. Insurance
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risk
33.
Risk
15. Investments
37. Actuarial
Contingent
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34.
assumptions
16. Other
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and
methods
38. Segment
information
17.
Property,
plant, and
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
equipment
dateOperational risk
36.
18. Intangible assets
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
19. Payables
41. Segment
Differences
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information
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Unearned
premium
WorkCover
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39.
Events
after reporting
liability
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
21. Outstanding claims
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
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41.
Differences
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WorkCover consolidated
23. Employee
benefits
financial
statements
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WorkCover
Queensland
24. Other financial
financial
liabilities statements

1,100

Current:

Current:
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Balance
at 1 July

6. Net
claims incurred
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
7. Underwriting
expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
8. Investment income
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
9.
Other
income
personnel disclosures
activities

2012
$’000

Represented by:

Independent
audit report
19. Other
Payables
16.
assets
Declaration
byplant,
directors
20. Property,
Unearned
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment

24.Reporting
Other financial
1.
entity
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
2. Basis of preparation
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
3. Summary
of significant
surplus by class
accounting
policies
23. Employee
benefits
26. Investment
4. Critical
24.
Other accounting
financial
fluctuation
reserve
judgements and
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
estimates
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
5. Net premium
surplus
by class revenue
activities

2013
$’000

Balance at 30 June
Non-current:
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Balance at 1 July
Melinda
is the
Chief Financial
and General Manager Corporate Services,
Provision
movements
during Officer
the year
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute
of Company
Directors.
Reductions
in provision
as a result
of payments made during the year
Unused provision reversed during the year
Discount rate adjustments
Balance at 30 June
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director

715

234

(43)

-

(209)

-

715

252

527

465

(43)

-

(74)

-

(44)

-

19

62

385

527

1,100

779

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

75

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities
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WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
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Certificate
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WorkCover
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statements
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Declaration
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20.
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and
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1. Reporting
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Unearnedentity
premium
23.
Employee benefits
liability
2. Basis of preparation
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Other
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Outstanding
claims
3. Summary
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accounting policies
25.
Asset
revaluation
22.
Provisions
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surplus by class
judgements
and
23. Employee
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26.
Investment
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24.
Other
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5. Net premium revenue
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27. Reconciliation of cash
6. Net
claims incurred
25.
Asset
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operating
surplus
by class expenses
7. Underwriting
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26.
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8. Investment
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28.
fluctuation reserve
9. Other
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27. Reconciliation of cash
10. Key
Other
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30.
management
flows
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operating
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disclosures
activities
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equivalents
31.
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28.
Commitments
12. Consultancy
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32.
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fees
equivalents
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30. Key management
13. Insurance
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receivable
33.
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disclosures
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34.
assumptions
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methods
32. Auditors'
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35.
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risk
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Risk

2013
$’000

(a) Aggregate liability for employee benefits

16 559

2012
$’000
15 446

Represented by:
Current:
Accrued wages and other benefits
Accrued annual leave
Provision
for long
service >
leave
Annual
Report
2012-2013
Leading the way > Board of directors
Provision for termination benefits
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Provision for other benefits

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Non-current:
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Provision
for long service
leaveCannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

-

290

4,220

4,612

7,805

8,547

2,625

-

187

-

14,837

13,449

1,722

1,997

16,559

15,446

(b) Reconciliation of provision for employee benefits
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Current:
Justin
is Chief
Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Balance
at 1 July
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd.
Justin movements
is a memberduring
of the the
Queensland
Responsible Gambling Advisory
Provision
year
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Reductions in provision as a result of payments made during the year

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

13,449

12,474

8,502

7,046

(7,110)

(6,489)

-

(55)

(4)

473

14,837

13,449

Balance at 1 July

1,997

1,461

Provision movements during the year

(305)

352

30

184

Unused provision reversed during the year
Discount rate adjustments
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Balance at 30 June
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute of Company Directors.
Non-current:

Discount rate adjustments
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Balance at 30 June
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

1,722

1,997

16,559

15,446

The following assumptions have been adopted to measure the present value of annual and long service leave:

3.0%
3.0%
Assumed rate of increase for contract salaries
17. Contingent
Property, assumptions
plant,
and
liabilities
37.
34.
Actuarial
equipment
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
and
methods information
38.
Segment
3.7%
5.0%
Assumed rate of increase for non-contract salaries
Director
18. Financial
Intangibleinstruments
assets
35.
39.
Events after
reporting
3.2%
3.0%
Discount
rate
19. Operational
Payables
date
John
is a Director
at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
36.
risk
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
20. Contingent
Unearned premium
40.
Subsidiaries
37.
liabilities
Settlement
term
for
long
service
leave
6.5
years
7.0
years
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
liability
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
21. Outstanding
claims
WorkCover
consolidated
The number of employees including both full-time employees and part-time employees measured on a full-time equivalent
39.
Events
after reporting
liability
financial
statements
and
basis is 796 (2012: 813)
date
WorkCover
Queensland
22. Provisions
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries
23. Employee benefits
41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
24. Other financial
WorkCover
consolidated
Director
liabilities statements and
financial
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
76
WorkCover
Queensland
25. Asset revaluation
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial
statements
surplus by
class
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The derivatives stated below are financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss.

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
Consolidated
estimates
8. Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8.
Investment
of
cash
flows income
12.Other
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9.
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstanding claims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15. Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
19. Other
Payables
16.
assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
significant
23.Summary
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
Other income
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel disclosures
activities
12. Cash and cash
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
15.
Investments
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
equipment
37. Actuarial
Contingent liabilities
34.
18.
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and
methods information
38. Segment
19. Payables
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
dateOperational risk
36.
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
Provisions
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
23.
Employee
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
24.
Other
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
financialby
statements
and
surplus
class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

60,356

-

Non-current:
Designated upon initial recognition
Derivative financial instruments designated as a fair value
hedge

35(a),
(c), (d)
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ASSET REVALUATION SURPLUS BY CLASS

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
Financial
performance
accounting policies
6. Net claims statement
incurred
Consolidated
4. Critical accounting
of
income
7. comprehensive
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
Consolidated
estimates
8.
Investmentstatement
income
of financial position
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
Consolidated statement
6.
Net
claims
incurred
10.changes
Other
expenses
of
in equity
7.
Underwriting
expenses
11. Income tax
Consolidated
statement
equivalents
8. cash
Investment
of
flows income
12.
Cash
andconsolidated
cash
9. Other
Notes
to income
the
equivalents
financial
10. Otherstatements
expenses
13. Recoveries
receivable
Actuarial
certificate
on
11.
Income
tax
on outstanding
net
outstandingclaims
claim
equivalents
liabilities
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
Certificate
of WorkCover
15.
Investments
equivalents
Queensland
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Independent
audit
report
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
Declaration
by directors
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
19.
16. Payables
Other assets
20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
1.
Reporting entity
liability
19. Payables
2.
of preparation
22.Basis
Provisions
20. Unearned premium
3.
Summary
significant
23.
Employeeofbenefits
liability
accounting policies
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
4.
Critical accounting
liabilities
liability
judgements and
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
estimates
surplus by class
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
26. Investment
24.
Other
financial
6.
Net
claims
incurred
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
7.
expenses
27.Underwriting
Reconciliation
of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
activities
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
28.
Commitments
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
of cash
11. Income tax
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
equivalents
personnel
activities disclosures
12. Cash and cash
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
equivalents
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
13. Recoveries receivable
remuneration
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
and methods
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
equipment
37.
Contingent
liabilities
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and Segment
methods information
38.
19. Payables
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
20. Unearned premium
date
36. Operational risk
liability
40. Contingent
Subsidiaries
37.
21.
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
22.
39. Provisions
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
WorkCover
Queensland

Land
$’000

Building
$’000

Total
$’000

6,720

11,703

18,423

17

-

(1,641)

(1,641)

11(b),27

-

492

492

Note
Balance at 1 July 2011
Movements for the prior year revaluation:
Revaluation of land and building
Income tax effect on revaluation of
land and building

-

(1,149)

(1,149)

Balance
at 30
June 2012
Annual
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2012-2013
> Leading the way > Board of directors

6,720

10,554

17,274

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6,720

10,554

17,274

(5,607)

(5,607)

1,682

1,682

-

(3,925)

(3,925)

6,720

6,629

13,349

Balance at 1 July 2012

Movements for the current year
revaluation:
Glenn
Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
17
Revaluation of land and building
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Income tax
on revaluation
of Court of Australia and the Supreme
Law Foundation.
He effect
is a Solicitor
of the High
11(b),27
and building
Court of land
Queensland.

Balance at 30 June 2013
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

financial
statements
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
Director
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
26.
Investment
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
fluctuation reserve

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE
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2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
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4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
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5. Summary
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Investment
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12.Other
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Notes
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23.Summary
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Employee
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8. Investment
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9. Other
income
26.
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29. Consultancy fees
27.
Reconciliation
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operating
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Related parties
28.
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30.
Key management
33. Insurance
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32.
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information
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date
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Differences between
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financial
statements
and
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class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Balance at 1 July
Transfer from accumulated surplus
Balance at 30 June

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

-

-

481,791

-

481,791

-

The investment fluctuation reserve is held to mitigate the effects of financial volatility in the investment markets.

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Note
Operating result for the year

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

517,294

199,637

(186,969)

22,594

519

765

Adjustments for:
Investment (income)/loss - change in fair value of
financial assets
Annual Report
2012-2013
> of
Leading
the way
Board
of directors
Net loss
on disposal
property,
plant>and
equipment

7

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

17

3,313

3,719

Amortisation of intangible assets

18

1,970

3,110

11(b),25

1,682

492

(9,247)

(7,632)

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

567

(290)

Decrease in net deferred tax assets

215,277

82,244

2,723

8,859

(137,530)

(75,515)

409,599

237,983
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Tax effectFAAL,
of revaluation
on land and building
Glenn Ferguson
FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
(Increase) in receivables

Increase in payables and unearned premium liability
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
(Decrease) in provisions, outstanding claims liability and
employee benefits
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Net cash from operating activities
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. COMMITMENTS
(a) Support and maintenance expenditure commitments
WorkCover is committed to the expenditure on support and maintenance agreements for intangible assets (inclusive of
anticipated GST) as follows:
2013
$’000
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

2012
$’000

2,889

3,624

80

3,142

2,969

6,766
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(b) Operating lease payable

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WorkCover leases office premises at various locations throughout Queensland under non-cancellable operating leases. The
leases have remaining terms of between two and five years and include inflation escalation clauses and renewal options.
There are no restrictions placed upon WorkCover by entering these leases.

Glenn
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Future Ferguson
minimum rentals
(inclusive of anticipated GST) payable under non-cancellable operating leases at reporting date are
Chair
as follows:
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Not later than one year

1,810

2,305

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,764

7,122

-

210

6,574

9,637

Later than five years
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee
and delegate
the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
(c) Operating
lease to
receivables
Association.
WorkCover has six lease agreements with respect of the 280 Adelaide Street building. The non-cancellable leases have
remaining terms of between four and ten years and includes clauses to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an
annual basis according to a fixed percentage.
Future minimum
rentals
(inclusive
of anticipated GST) revenue under non-cancellable operating leases at reporting date are
(Hons),
FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
Bailey BCom
as follows:
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

478

572

Later than one year and not later than five years

2,438

-

Later than five years

1,913

-

4,829

572

Not later than one year

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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30. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a) WorkCover key management personnel disclosures
Details of key management personnel
Directors

Position Title

Appointment Date

G W Ferguson

Chair (non-executive)

01/07/2012

J R O’Connor

Deputy Chair (non-executive)

01/07/2012

M J Bailey

Director (non-executive)

01/07/2009

S Blackwood

Director (non-executive)

15/03/2013

J M Crittall

Director (non-executive)

01/07/2012

Director
(non-executive)
B Leahy
Annual
Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way
> Board
of directors

01/07/2012 (ceased 19/11/2012)

I J Leavers

Director (non-executive)

01/07/2012

I R Winterburn

Director (non-executive)

01/07/2012

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
CEO and Senior Executives
Chair

Chief Executive Officer
A J Hawkins
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
T A Barrenger
General Manager Business Solutions
Court of Queensland.

19/01/1998
19/06/2006

D E Heley

General Manager Finance

01/10/2002

S L Stratford

General Manager Customer Services

11/06/2007

I A Violet

General Manager Corporate Services

08/06/2009

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy
Chair
Responsibilities
of key management personnel
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Responsibilities
Position Title
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust Super
Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Directors
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
The Chair’s principal responsibility is to lead and direct the activities of the Board,
and to fulfil all its legal and statutory obligations in accordance with the Board
Chair (non-executive)
charter.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Deputy Chair (non-executive)

The Deputy Chair, in addition to Director’s responsibilities, assists the Chair in
meeting their obligations as required. In the absence of the Chair at a meeting,
the Deputy Chair will preside.

Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
areand
responsible
forofthe
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. MelindaThe
is aDirectors
Fellow CPA
is a Fellow
thestrategic guidance, monitoring of
Australian Institute of Company Directors.management, ensuring good governance and the successful operation of
Director (non-executive)
WorkCover.
CEO and Senior Executives
Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible to the Board of Directors for the overall
performance and strategic management of WorkCover.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director

The General Manager Business Solutions is responsible for the delivery of
technology solutions to maximise the efficiency and effectiveness of the business
General Manager Business Solutions
operations to meet WorkCover’s business needs.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
The General Manager Finance acts as Company Secretary and is responsible for
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
ensuring prudent financial management and strong internal controls systems are
Queensland.
General Manager Finance
in place to support the achievement of the organisation’s financial objectives.

General Manager Customer Services
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director

The General Manager Customer Services is responsible for balancing the interests
of both injured workers and employers, the delivery of claims management end to
end on an industry aligned basis, and ensuring customers and stakeholders are
engaged with WorkCover.

The General Manager Corporate Services is responsible for ensuring that customer
service activity is supported by efficient and effective central processing as well as
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
the effective delivery of human resources, property, facilities and communications
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
functions.
General Manager Corporate Services
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Remuneration of key management personnel
Remuneration policy
Remuneration
Ian
Leavers levels for key management personnel are competitively set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and
experienced directors, the CEO, and senior executives.
Director
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Remuneration of key management personnel
Remuneration policy
Remuneration levels for key management personnel are competitively set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and
experienced directors, the CEO, and senior executives.
Payments to the CEO and the directors are paid by WorkCover Queensland. All other staff are remunerated by the WorkCover
Employing Office.
Directors
The remuneration of directors is approved by the Governor-in-Council as part of the terms of appointment.
Each director is entitled to receive a fee for being a director of WorkCover Queensland, with the exception of appointed public
service employees.
CEO and Senior Executives
The Chair of the Board of Directors is responsible for determining and reviewing the remuneration arrangements for the CEO.
The remuneration arrangements for the senior executives is determined by the CEO, in consultation with the Chair of the
Board
Directors.
AnnualofReport
2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Remuneration and other terms of employment for the CEO and each senior executive are formalised in executive
employment contracts. The notice period is four months for all key management personnel.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The CEO and senior executives are given the opportunity to receive their fixed remuneration in a variety of forms, including
cash and
fringe benefits.
Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually to ensure the CEO’s and senior executives’ pay is
Glenn
Ferguson
FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
competitive with the market.
Chair
Details
remuneration
Glenn
is of
a Director
of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
DetailsofofQueensland.
the remuneration of the directors and key management personnel of WorkCover Queensland are set out in the
Court
following tables:

Directors

Short-term

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

Fees1
$’000

Other2
$’000

Post
employment

Other
long-term
benefits

Termination
benefits

Total

Superannuation
$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

G W Ferguson
2013
50Association
4 Union of
5
Justin
is Chief Executive of the Queensland
Hotels
Chair
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
2012
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
2013
37
4
3
J R O’Connor
Association.
Deputy Chair
2012
-

-

-

59

-

-

-

-

-

44

-

-

-

2013
M J Bailey
Director Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Melinda
2012
Director

28

4

3

-

-

35

28

3

3

-

-

34

-

-

1

-

-

31

5
2013
1
S Blackwood
Melinda
is the Chief Financial Officer
and General -Manager Corporate
Services,Director
Heavy
Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
2012
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

2013

25

4

2

-

-

2012

2013
I J Leavers4
Director
Simon
Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
2012
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-
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-

-

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

4
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-
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2
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2
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John
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Details of remuneration
Details of the remuneration of the directors and key management personnel of WorkCover Queensland are set out in the
following tables:

Directors

Short-term
Fees1
$’000

Other2
$’000

Post
employment

Other
long-term
benefits

Termination
benefits

Total

Superannuation
$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

G W Ferguson
Chair
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-

-

-

-

J R O’Connor
Deputy Chair

2013

37

4

3

-

-

44

2012

-

-

-

-

-

-

M J Bailey
Director

2013

28

4

3

-

-

35

3

-

-

34

-

-

-

1

-

2012
28
3
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2013
1
S Blackwood
Director
2012
-
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-

-

-

2013
25
4
2
J M Crittall3
Director
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
2012
Chair
4
2013
4
I J Leavers
Glenn
is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Director
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of2012
the High Court- of Australia
and
the
Supreme
Court of Queensland.
2013
27
4
2
I R Winterburn
Director
2012
-

-

-

31

-

-

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

-

-

33

-

-

-

2013
2
B Leahy (ceased 19
November 2012)5
BA
Justin
O’Connor
2012
Director
Deputy Chair
I Brusasco AO (ceased 30
2013
Justin
is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
June 2012)
Employers
Planning Pty
Chairman and is a Director at Intrust
2012Super Fund
55and IS Financial
4
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee
and(ceased
delegate30to the National
Hotels
2013 Executive- of the Australian
T A White AO
Association.
June 2012)
2012
38
4
Deputy Chairman

-

-

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

59

-

-

-

-

-

42

2013
C L Lohman (ceased 30
June 2012)
Melinda
2012
25
5
2
Director Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
2013
W P Ludwig OAM (ceased
Melinda
the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
30 Juneis2012)
Heavy
Vehicle National Regulator. 2012
Melinda is a Fellow
CPA and
27
4 is a Fellow of the
Director
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
2013
R W Monaghan (ceased 30
June 2012)6
2012
27
3
Director

-

-

-

-

-

32

-

-

-

-

-

31

-

-

-

-

-

30

2013
H A Skippen (ceased 30
June 2012)
Simon
Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD 2012
27
4
2
Director
Director
Total remuneration:
2013
167
27
15
Simon
is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
directors
Queensland, which is responsible 2012
for overseeing
the divisions
227
27of Private Sector
7
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
1 Directors do not receive cash bonuses.

-

-

-

-

-

33

-

-

209

-

-

261

2 Short-term other benefits received by all directors includes an allocation of insurance premiums paid by WorkCover
Queensland in respect of their duties.

OAM BEcon
(Hons),
John
3 The Crittall
fee payments
were
madeMAdmin
to the(IR)
Queensland Master Builders Association.
Director
4 Voluntary election to receive no remuneration.
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is
responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
5 Public service employee.
safety,
legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
6 The fee payments were made to the Queensland Council of Unions.

CEO and Senior
Executives

Ian Leavers
Director

Short-term

Post
employment

Annual
leave
Nonaccruals3
monetary2
Salary1
Other4
Superannuation
$’000Union $’000
$’000
$’000
CEO
of the Queensland
Police
of Employees $’000

Other
long-term
benefits

Termination
benefits

Long
service
leave
accruals5
$’000

$’000

Total

85
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Ian is General President and
and
has held this position
with the Queensland
2013 since 2009.
399 He has been
25 involved
(4)
4
A J Hawkins

25

6

$’000
-

455

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities
Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland
Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory
body established
under the Workers’ Compensation
and- Rehabilitation Act
and
is
2012
227
7is required
- 2003,
261
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where 27
assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have
been
disclosed
in
note
4.
Queensland and is a not-for-profit entity.
1 Directors do not receive cash bonuses.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2
2003,
and is controlled
by WorkCover
Queensland.
work performance
arrangement
between
Queensland
Short-term
other benefits
received by
all directorsAincludes
an allocation
of insuranceexists
premiums
paidWorkCover
by WorkCover
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and
the WorkCover
Employing
Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
Queensland
in respect
of their duties.
differences
between
the
consolidated
and
parent
entity’s
financial
statements.
These
immaterial
differences
are
disclosed
in
WorkCover Queensland.
note
3
The41.
fee payments were made to the Queensland Master Builders Association.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
4 Voluntary election to receive no remuneration.
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
5
Public service
employee.
note 41.

NOTES
TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The fee payments were made to the Queensland Council of Unions.

6

CEO and Senior
Executives

Short-term

Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
7.
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
estimates
8. Investment income
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
equivalents
8. Investment income
12.
Cash income
and cash
9. Other
equivalents
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income tax claims
on outstanding
equivalents
14.
Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
15.
19.
16.

Intangible
assets
Investments
Payables
Other assets

20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23.
Employee benefits
liability
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
surplus by class
23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus by class
activities
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
activities disclosures
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
32.
29. Auditors'
Consultancy fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34.
assumptions
31. Actuarial
Related parties
and methods
32. Auditors'
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
37.
liabilities
34. Contingent
Actuarial assumptions
and Segment
methods information
38.
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
date
36. Operational risk
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries

Nonmonetary2
$’000

Salary1
$’000
A J Hawkins
CEO
T A Barrenger
GM Business
Solutions
D E Heley
GM Finance

Annual
leave
accruals3
$’000

Other4
$’000

Post
employment

Other
long-term
benefits

Termination
benefits

Total

Superannuation
$’000

Long
service
leave
accruals5
$’000

$’000

$’000

2013

399

25

(4)

4

25

6

-

455

2012

373

24

(10)

4

50

18

-

459

2013

202

1

4

4

25

5

-

241

2012

177

2

2

4

48

7

-

240

2013

184

16

3

4

25

3

-

235

2012

190

11

6

3

24

12

-

246

2013

192

1

8

4

17

4

-

226

2012

202

1

-

3

18

5

-

229

I A Violet
GM Corporate
Services

2013

192

1

10

4

17

5

-

229

2012

194

2

(4)

3

18

8

-

221

P H Worthy
(ceased 16
September 2011)
GM Common Law

2013

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2012

103

-

(13)

S L Stratford
GM Customer
Services
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Total
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remuneration:
executives

2012

1,239

40

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(19)

1

5

7

107

210

20

109

23

-

1,386

18

163

57

107

1,605

Salary represents amounts paid in cash during the financial year and associated accrual adjustments. WorkCover
Queensland and WorkCover Employing Office do not pay the CEO and senior executives cash bonuses.

1

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
2 Short-term non-monetary benefits relate to fringe benefits provided to the CEO and senior executives.
Chair
3 Annual leave accruals as determined in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.
Glenn
is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
4 Short-term
Court
of Queensland.
other benefits received by all key management personnel includes an allocation of insurance premiums paid by
WorkCover Queensland in respect of their duties.
5

Long service leave accruals as determined in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.

(b) WorkCover Employing Office key management personnel disclosures

BA
Justin
DetailsO’Connor
of key management
personnel
Deputy Chair

Executive Officer (EO)
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
A J Hawkins
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Responsibilities
of key to
management
personnel
Committee
and delegate
the National Executive
of the Australian Hotels
Association.
The Executive Officer is responsible for the management and direction over WorkCover Employing Office.
Remuneration of key management personnel
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
No remuneration is paid to A J Hawkins for the role of EO of the WorkCover Employing Office.
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

41. Differences between
Ian Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
Director
financial
statements
and
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entityincome
of
comprehensive
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
financial position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of
in equity
4. changes
Critical accounting
7. Underwriting
expenses
judgements
and
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
flows income
8. cash
Investment
5.
premium
revenue
Notes
to
the
consolidated
9. Net
Other
income
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial
certificate on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8.
Investment income
liabilities
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
Declaration by directors
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15. Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3.
Summary
of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19. Payablesand
22. Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
liability
24.Net
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
liabilities
27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus
by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
27. Reconciliation of cash
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
activities
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
28.
Commitments
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets fees
29.
Consultancy
remuneration
17.
plant, and
30. Property,
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
equipment
personnel
disclosures
34. Intangible
Actuarialparties
assumptions
18.
assets
31.
Related
and methods
19.
Payables
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
20.
Unearned premium
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
liability
33.
Risk
37. Outstanding
Contingent
liabilities
21.
claims
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
liability
and
methods information
38. Segment

22.
35.
Financial
instruments
39. Provisions
Events after
reporting
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
36.
Operational
risk
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
37.
Contingent
liabilities
liabilities
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
date
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
41. Differences between
27. Reconciliation of cash
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
financial statements and
activities
WorkCover Queensland
28.
Commitments
financial
statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RELATED PARTIES
G W Ferguson is a director of the legal firm Ferguson Cannon Lawyers which provided legal services to injured workers. $0.71
million was paid in relation to claims for these injured workers during the 2012-13 financial year. WorkCover is independent
of the relationship between Ferguson Cannon Lawyers and the injured worker and these payments were made under normal
terms and conditions.
Terms and conditions of any transaction with directors, CEO, senior executives, and their related entities were no more
favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to nondirector or executive related entities on an arm’s length basis.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Amounts paid or payable to the auditors:

2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4.
Critical
accounting
1.
Reporting
entityincome
of comprehensive
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of financial position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting
policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of changes
in equity
4.
Critical accounting
7.
Underwriting expenses
judgements
Consolidatedand
statement
estimates
of cash
flows income
8.
Investment
5.
Net to
premium
revenue
Notes
the consolidated
Other
income
9.
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial certificate
on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8.
Investment income
liabilities
12.
Cash income
and cash
9.
Other
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10.
Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
Declaration by directors
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
assets
15. Intangible
Investments
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3. Summary of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4. Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19.
Payablesand
22.
Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.
Employee
benefits
5. Net
premium
revenue
liability
24.
Other
financial
6. Net
claims
incurred
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
8. Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9. Other
income
26.
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10. Other expenses
liabilities
27.
of cash
11. Reconciliation
Income tax
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29.
fees
13. Consultancy
Recoveries receivable
27. Reconciliation of cash
on outstanding
claims
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14. Receivables
activities
31.
parties
15. Related
Investments
28.
Commitments
32.
Auditors'
16. Consultancy
Other assets fees
29.
remuneration
17. Key
Property,
plant, and
30.
management
33.
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34.
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31.
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35.
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2013
$’000

2012
$’000

199

223

-

-

199

223

Audit services
Auditors of the organisation
Audit of the financial report

Non-audit services
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Total external audit fees relating to the 2012-13 financial year are estimated to be $199,000 (2012: $223,000). There are no
non-audit services included in this amount.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
40.
24. Subsidiaries
Other financial
37.
Contingent
liabilities
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
liabilities
41.
Differences
between
38. Segment information
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
WorkCover
consolidated
25. Asset revaluation
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus by class
date
WorkCover
Queensland
26. Investment
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
41. Differences between
27. Reconciliation of cash
Ian Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
Director
financial
statements
and
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activities
WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
28. Commitments
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
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equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to the
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
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Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entityincome
of
comprehensive
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
financial position
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
Consolidated
statement
6. Net claims incurred
of
in equity
4. changes
Critical accounting
7. Underwriting
expenses
judgements
and
Consolidated
statement
estimates
of
flows income
8. cash
Investment
5.
premium
revenue
Notes
to
the
consolidated
9. Net
Other
income
financial
statements
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
Actuarial
certificate on
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
net outstanding claim
equivalents
8.
Investment income
liabilities
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
Certificate
of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
Independent
audit report
11.
Income tax
on outstanding
claims
equivalents
Declaration by directors
14.
Receivables
Leading the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15. Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
1. Reporting entity
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
2. Basis of preparation
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
3.
Summary
of significant
liability
equipment
accounting policies
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements
19. Payablesand
22. Provisions
estimates
20. Unearned premium
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
liability
24.Net
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
21.
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
7. Underwriting expenses
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
23. Employee benefits
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses
liabilities
27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
equivalents
surplus
by class
activities
12. Cash and cash
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
equivalents
fluctuation reserve
29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
27. Reconciliation of cash
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
activities
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
28.
Commitments
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets fees
29.
Consultancy
remuneration
17.
plant, and
30. Property,
Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
equipment
personnel
disclosures
34. Intangible
Actuarialparties
assumptions
18.
assets
31.
Related
and methods
19.
Payables
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
20.
Unearned premium
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
liability
33.
Risk
37. Outstanding
Contingent
liabilities
21.
claims
34.
Actuarial
assumptions
liability
and
methods information
38. Segment

22.
35.
Financial
instruments
39. Provisions
Events after
reporting
dateEmployee
23.
benefits
36.
Operational
risk
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
37.
Contingent
liabilities
liabilities
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus
by
class
date
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
41. Differences between
27. Reconciliation of cash
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
financial statements and
activities
WorkCover Queensland
28.
Commitments
financial
statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. INSURANCE RISK
(a) Objectives in managing risks arising from insurance contracts and policies for mitigating those risks
WorkCover has an objective to control insurance risk, thus reducing the volatility of operating results. In addition to the
inherent uncertainty of insurance risk, which can lead to significant variability in the loss experience, operating results from
WorkCover’s insurance business are affected by market factors, particularly movements in asset values. Short-term
variability is, to some extent, a feature of the insurance business.
Key aspects of processes established to mitigate insurance risks include:
The maintenance and use of management information systems, which provide up-to-date, reliable data on the risks to
which WorkCover is exposed to at any point in time.
Actuarial models, using information from the management information system, are used to monitor claims patterns and
calculate premiums. Past experience and statistical methods are used as part of the process.
The mix of assets in which WorkCover invests is driven by the nature and term of insurance liabilities. The management of
assets and liabilities is closely monitored to attempt to match maturity dates of assets with the expected pattern of claim
payments.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors

(b) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The terms and conditions attaching to insurance contracts affect the level of insurance risk accepted by WorkCover. All
insurance contracts entered into are in the same standard form and are subject to substantially the same terms and
conditions under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003.

Glenn
Ferguson FAAL,
FAICD, FANZCN
(c) Concentration
of insurance
risk
Chair
WorkCover’s exposure to a concentration of insurance risk is due to injury caused through an event or disaster that occurred
er’sLexon
outstanding
claims
liability
includes an amount estimated to cover any such
duringisthe
reportingofperiod.
WorkCov
Glenn
a Director
Ferguson
Cannon,
Insurance
and the
Queensland
occurrences.
This
is reviewed
a Court
bi-annual
basis. and the Supreme
Law
Foundation.
Hefigure
is a Solicitor
of the on
High
of Australia
Court of Queensland.

(d) Development of claims

There is a possibility that changes may occur in the estimate of WorkCover’s obligations over time. The tables at note 21(c)
show WorkCover’s estimates of total net and gross claims outstanding for each underwriting year at successive year ends.

(e) Interest rate risk

BA
Justin
O’Connor
WorkCover
is exposed
to the risk that interest rate movements may materially impact the value of the outstanding claims
Deputy
Chair
provision.
The financial impact of changing interest rates on outstanding claims is expected to be offset in the longer term by
similar changes in claims inflation.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
The discount rates being applied to future claims payments in determining the valuation of outstanding claims is disclosed in
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
note 34.
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
The exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial
liabilities is set out in note 35(d)(ii).

(f) Liquidity risk

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
WorkCover’s exposure to liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that investments held to match policyholder liabilities are
Director
matched to the expected duration of those liabilities and sufficient cash deposits are available to meet day-to-day operations.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
The following
setsRegulator.
out the liquidity
risk
outstanding
claims
byofWorkCover.
It represents the maturity of
Heavy
Vehicletable
National
Melinda
is of
a Fellow
CPA and
is a held
Fellow
the
outstanding
claims liabilities,
calculated
based on discounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date.
Australian
Institute
of Company
Directors.

Note

1 year or
less
$’000

1-3
years
$’000

Simon
2013 Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
21
1,066,669
1,107,183
Outstanding claims liability
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the1,066,669
divisions of Private
Sector
1,107,183
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
2012
Outstanding claims liability

21

3-5
years
$’000

More than
5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

323,617

191,717

2,689,186

323,617

191,717

2,689,186

1,077,941

1,207,206

360,926

182,077

2,828,150

1,077,941

1,207,206

360,926

182,077

2,828,150

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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Notes
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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34. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
WorkCover writes one class of business, workers’ compensation. It provides two types of insurance - accident insurance and
contracts of insurance.
All employers in Queensland are required to have accident insurance coverage for all employees that meet the definition of a
’worker’.
WorkCover also provides optional insurance instruments (i.e. contracts of insurance). These instruments provide cover to
individuals, employees, or members of associations who do not meet the definition of ’worker’ and are, therefore, not
covered by the accident insurance policies.
The process to determine the value of net outstanding claims liability is detailed below.
Claims estimates are derived from analysis of the results of several different actuarial models. Ultimate numbers of claims
are projected based on past reporting patterns. Payments experience is analysed based on averages paid per claim incurred
and averages paid per claim settled, active or finalised. The resulting average claim sizes from these models are analysed in
order to determine a final estimate of gross outstanding claims.
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Recoveries are analysed separately using similar payments based models. Estimated outstanding recoveries are then
subtracted from gross outstanding claims to arrive at net outstanding claims estimate.
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Claims inflation is incorporated into the resulting projected payments to allow for general economic inflation. Projected
payments are discounted to allow for the time value of money, which is the investment return expected based on risk free
Glenn
FAICD, FANZCN
rates inFerguson
the periodFAAL,
to settlement.
Chair

(a) Actuarial assumptions

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
The following
assumptions
have been
determining
the and
net outstanding
Law
Foundation.
He is a Solicitor
of themade
Highin
Court
of Australia
the Supremeclaims liability.
Court of Queensland.
2013

2012

2.5%

2.8%
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4.5%
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2.8%
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4.0%
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Justin O’Connor BA
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Deputy Chair
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Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Inflation rates
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1

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
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Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
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outstanding
claims
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Director
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Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which
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Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
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John
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John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
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of the
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different
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Projected
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(a) Actuarial assumptions

2013

2012

Not later than one year

2.5%

2.8%

Later than one year

2.8%

2.4%

Not later than one year

4.0%

4.5%

Later than one year

4.0%

4.5%

1.9 years

2.0 years

2.5%

2.8%

3.0%

2.5%

Not later than one year

4.0%

4.5%

Later than one year

4.0%

4.5%

2.0 years

2.0 years

74,426

77,711

3,833

3,857

209

256

$8,338

$7,131

$136,017

$160,275

$266,542

$209,993

30.0%

30.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

Variable
Recoveries receivable on outstanding claims
Discount rates

Inflation rates

1
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Average weighted term to settlement from claims reporting date
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Gross outstanding claims
Discount rates

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Not later than one year
Chair
Later than one year
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Inflation rates (average weekly earnings)

2

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Average weighted term to settlement from claims reporting date
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
and isnumbers
a Director
Intrust–Super
Fund
and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ultimate claim
peratannum
statutory
claims
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee
and delegate
the
National
Executive
Ultimate claim
numbers to
per
annum
– common
lawof the Australian Hotels
Association.
Ultimate claim numbers per annum – asbestos related
Ultimate claims size – statutory claims
FCPA,law
FAICD
Melinda
UltimateBailey
claims BCom
size –(Hons),
common
Director
Ultimate claims size – asbestos related
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy
Vehicle
Regulator.
Expense
rate National
– statutory
claims Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Expense rate – common law

Expense rate – asbestos related

1 The inflation rate for later than one year is based on a weighted average of the uninflated and undiscounted recovery
outstanding
cashflow.
BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood
2 The inflation rate for later than one year is based on a weighted average of the uninflated and undiscounted gross
Director
outstanding cashflow.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland,
is responsible
for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
(b) Process which
used to
determine assumptions
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
A description of the processes used to determine these assumptions is provided below.
Queensland.

Discount rates
Discount rates derived from market yields on Commonwealth Government securities at reporting date have been adopted.
Inflation rates
OAM BEcon
(Hons), MAdmin
(IR)
John
Crittall
Economic
inflation
assumptions
are set
by reference to current economic indicators.
Director
Average weighted term to settlement
John
is a Director
at Master
a roleis he
has heldseparately
for over nine
years
The average
weighted
term Builders,
to settlement
calculated
based
on and
historic settlement patterns.
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Ultimate claim numbers per annum
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
The incurred claims total for the current underwriting year has been estimated based on past reporting patterns for statutory
and common law claims separately, taking into account trends or changes in reporting patterns. The ratio of numbers of
common law to statutory claims is also examined for reasonableness. The incurred claims total for asbestos related claims for
the current underwriting year is an estimate of all claims diagnosed in the current year. This is estimated using past reporting
patterns and delays from diagnosis to report for asbestos-related claims.
Ian Leavers
Ultimate claim size
Director
ANNUALyear
REPORT
2012–2013
WORKCOVER
QUEENSLAND
The average ultimate claim size for the current underwriting
has been
estimated based
on past payment
patterns for 91
statutory,
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law, and
related
claims Police
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into account trends or changes in payment patterns.
Ian
is General
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and asbestos
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Queensland
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of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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orState
Office,
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insurance
in for
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lawGovernment. WorkCover is the main provider of workers’$136,017
WorkCover
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Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
$266,542
$209,993
Ultimate claims size – asbestos related
WorkCover’s
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principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
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for
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–
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WorkCover Queensland.
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(b) Process used to determine assumptions
A description of the processes used to determine these assumptions is provided below.
Discount rates
Discount rates derived from market yields on Commonwealth Government securities at reporting date have been adopted.
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Ultimate claim numbers per annum
The incurred claims total for the current underwriting year has been estimated based on past reporting patterns for statutory
and common law claims separately, taking into account trends or changes in reporting patterns. The ratio of numbers of
common law to statutory claims is also examined for reasonableness. The incurred claims total for asbestos related claims for
the current underwriting year is an estimate of all claims diagnosed in the current year. This is estimated using past reporting
patterns and delays from diagnosis to report for asbestos-related claims.
Ultimate claim size
The average ultimate claim size for the current underwriting year has been estimated based on past payment patterns for
statutory,
common
law, and
related
separately,
taking into account trends or changes in payment patterns.
Annual Report
2012-2013
> asbestos
Leading the
way claims
> Board
of directors
Expense rate
Claims handling expenses are calculated by reference to past experience of claims handling costs as a percentage of past
payments.
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(c) Sensitivity analysis - insurance contracts

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
(i) Summary
Chair

Glenn
is a Director
of sensitivity
Ferguson Cannon,
Lexon
Insurance
and the to
Queensland
WorkCover
conducts
analysis to
quantify
the exposure
risk of changes in the key underlying variables. The
Law
Foundation.
He in
is the
a Solicitor
of results
the High
Court
of Australia
the assumptions
Supreme
valuations
included
reported
are
calculated
using and
certain
about these variables as disclosed above.
Court
of Queensland.
The movement
in any key variable will impact the operating result and equity of WorkCover.
The table below describes how a change in each assumption will affect the insurance liabilities and show an analysis of the
sensitivity of the operating result and equity to changes in these assumptions.
Variable
Justin O’Connor BA
Discount
rates
Deputy
Chair

Impact of movement in variable

The outstanding claims liability is calculated by reference to expected future
payments. These payments are discounted to adjust for the time value of
money.
An increase
orof
decrease in the assumed discount rate will have an
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels
Association
Union
opposing
on total
claims
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund
and ISimpact
Financial
Planning
Ptyexpense.
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Inflation and delegate to the National Executive
Expected
payments
Committee
of thefuture
Australian
Hotelsare inflated to take account of inflationary
increases. An increase or decrease in the assumed level of inflation would
Association.
have a corresponding impact on claims expense, with particular reference to
longer tail business.
Average weighted term
to settlement
Melinda
Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director

A decrease in the average term to settlement rates would lead to more claims
being paid sooner than anticipated. Expected payment patterns are used to
determine the gross outstanding claims liability. Given the assumed future
inflation rate is currently lower than the assumed discount rates, an increase
or decrease
the average
weighted term would have an opposing impact on
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General
Manager in
Corporate
Services,
expense.
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a claim’s
Fellow CPA
and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Ultimate claim
Numbers of claims incurred are used in determining the estimates in respect
numbers
of claims IBNR for statutory and common law claims and in respect of claims
per annum
diagnosed but not reported (DBNR) for asbestos related claims. An increase
or decrease in the estimated numbers of claims incurred would have a
corresponding impact on the claims expense.
Ultimate
claim size BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood
Director

Ultimate claim sizes are used in determining the estimates in respect of all
claim payments made in the future. An increase or decrease in the estimated
ultimate claim sizes would have a corresponding impact on the claims
expense.
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office
of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Expense rate
An estimate
the
internal costs of handling claims is included in the
Industrial
Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace
Healthfor
and
Safety
outstanding claims liability. An increase or decrease in the expense rate
Queensland.
assumption would have a corresponding impact on claims expense.
(ii) Impact of changes in key variables
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
Variable

Movement in
variable

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace
Health
and Safety
Queensland
Board
Discount rates
- claims
expected
to be paid
not and
latera Director of QLeave.
+1%
than one year
-1%

Discount rates - claims expected to be paid later than
41. Differences between
Ian
+1%
oneLeavers
year
WorkCover consolidated
Director
financial
statements
and
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92
-1%
WorkCover Queensland
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
financial statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

Impact on operating result and equity
2013
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2012
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+28,788

+30,054
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Notes to the consolidated
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financial statements
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Actuarial certificate on
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Notes
to the
Certificate
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Declaration
by
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in respect
WorkCover
financial
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have been disclosed in note
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of claims IBNR for statutory and common law claims and in respect of claims
per annum
diagnosed but not reported (DBNR) for asbestos related claims. An increase
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
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principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
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this report
for
issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
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WorkCover
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numbers Compensation
of claims incurred
have a Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland.
A work performance
arrangement
exists between WorkCover Queensland
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WorkCover
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financial
statements
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the
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and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff to perform work for
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financial
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are disclosed
WorkCover
Queensland.
Ultimate claim
size the consolidated and parent
Ultimate
claim
sizes statements.
are used in determining
the estimates
in respect
of all in
note 41.
claim payments made in the future. An increase or decrease in the estimated
sizes
would have
a corresponding
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 ultimate
Adelaide claim
Street,
Brisbane,
Queensland,
Australia.impact on the claims
expense.
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
Expense rate
An entity’s
estimate
for the statements.
internal costs
of handling
claims
is included
indisclosed
the
differences
between the consolidated and parent
financial
These
immaterial
differences
are
in
outstanding claims liability. An increase or decrease in the expense rate
note 41.
assumption would have a corresponding impact on claims expense.
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(ii) Impact of changes in key variables
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Impact on operating result and equity

Discount rates - claims expected to be paid not later
than one year

Discount rates - claims expected to be paid later than
one year

Inflation rates - claims expected to be paid not later
than one year
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Average weighted term to settlement - years
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

-1%

+26,038

+27,625

+0.5

-27,598

-40,956

-0.5

+26,997

+39,922

-109,664

-115,938

Ultimate
numbers
per annum
- latest
year
Glenn
is a claim
Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon
Insurance and the+10%
Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
-10%
Court of Queensland.
Ultimate claims size – latest year

Expense rate
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

+109,664

+115,938

+10%

-109,664

-115,938

-10%

+109,664

+115,938

+1%

-23,237

-24,796

-1%

+23,237

+24,796

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013 WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND

Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

93

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
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financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
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statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
Queensland
and is a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the WorkCover Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover between
Queensland.
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial
certificate
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Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments
WorkCover has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

12

87,950

68,166

Receivables

14

22,415

22,986

15

2,873,478

2,447,924

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Designated upon initial recognition
Held for trading

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

15

414,566

204,794

15

3,288,044

2,652,718

3,398,409

2,743,870

21,406

20,323

60,356

-

81,762

20,323

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Financial liabilities
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost Court of Australia and the Supreme
Law
Foundation.
He carried
is a Solicitor
of the High
Court of Queensland.
19
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Designated as a fair value hedge

24

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at reporting date.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
The table
analysesoffinancial
instruments
carried at
fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been
Ltd.
Justinbelow
is a member
the Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Advisory
defined as follows:
Committee
and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Melinda
Corporate Services,
Note
2013 is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager
$’000
$’000
$’000
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute of Company Directors.
Investments

Total
$’000

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

15

-

2,873,478

-

2,873,478

Derivative financial assets held for trading

15

125,098

289,468

-

414,566

24

107

(60,463)

-

(60,356)

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe 125,205
Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
2012
Industrial
Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Investments

3,102,483

-

3,227,688

2,433,607

-

2,433,607

(Hons), designated
PhD
Simon
Blackwood
Derivative
financial BSc
liabilities
at fair
value through profit or loss
Director

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative
financial
assets
designated
at
OAM BEcon
(Hons),
MAdmin
(IR)
John Crittall
Director fair value through profit or loss

15

-

11
14,306
14,317
15
22. Events
Provisions
35.
Financial
instruments
after
reporting
39.
held
for he has held for over nine years and
date
23. Operational
Employee benefits
John is aDerivative
Director atfinancial
Master assets
Builders,
a role
36.
risk
15
135,504
204,794
trading
is responsible
for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace
health69,290
and
40.
Subsidiaries
24. Contingent
Other financial
37.
liabilities
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
liabilities
41.
Differences
between
69,301
2,583,417
2,652,718
38. Segment information
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
WorkCover
consolidated
25. Asset revaluation
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
surplus by class
date
Non-derivative financial assets are held through unlisted unit trusts with WorkCover’s funds’ manager. While the underlying
WorkCover
Queensland
26. Investment
assets may be quotable in active markets, it is not sufficient for a level 1 classification. In absence of quoted values, the units
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries
fluctuation reserve
are carried at redemption value as reasonably determined by the funds’ managers and this is considered appropriate for
41. Differences between
valuation.
27. Reconciliation of cash
Ian
Leavers
WorkCover consolidated
flows from operating
Director
financial
statements
and
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
ANNUAL
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Under the direction
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WorkCover Queensland
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on behalf
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The
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valuedUnion
theseofinstruments
Ian
is General
President
and CEO of
thecustodian
Queensland
Employees in accordance with the criteria set out above.
28. Commitments
financial
statements
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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equipment
Financial performance
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Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
21.
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Notes
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Certificate
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surplus
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Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
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Investment
Certificate
of WorkCover
fluctuation
Queenslandreserve
27.
Reconciliation
cash
Independent
auditof
report
flows from operating
Declaration by directors
activities

28. Commitments
1. Reporting entity
29. Consultancy fees
2. Basis of preparation
30. Key management
3. Summary
of significant
personnel
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accounting policies
31. Related parties
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
32.
Auditors'and
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remuneration
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Basis of preparation
estimates
33.
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5. Summary
Net
premium
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accounting policies
34.
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and
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accounting
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and expenses
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incurred
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Other
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38. Segment information
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11. Income tax expenses
39.
Events after reporting
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Investment income
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Cashincome
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WorkCover
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WorkCover
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
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Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
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by the
Queensland
Government.
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is the mainOffice
provider
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in for
2012 statements
WorkCover
financial
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and is a not-for-profit
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Investments
WorkCover’s
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Queensland’s
principal
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Chair,
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Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
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this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and
is controlled
WorkCover
A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
Financial
assetsby
designated
at Queensland.
fair value
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financial
report
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not
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WorkCover
Queensland’s
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statements
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to the
and the through
WorkCover
Employing
to provide staff
toimmaterial
perform
work for
15 Employing Office- is required
2,433,607
2,433,607
profit
or loss Office, where the WorkCover
differences Queensland.
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
note 41.Derivative financial assets designated at
15
11
14,306
14,317
fair value
through
or loss is 280 Adelaide Street,
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Derivative
assets
held for
This financial
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financial statements.
differences -are disclosed
in
note 41.
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2,583,417
2,652,718
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Non-derivative financial assets are held through unlisted unit trusts with WorkCover’s funds’ manager. While the underlying
assets may be quotable in active markets, it is not sufficient for a level 1 classification. In absence of quoted values, the units
are carried at redemption value as reasonably determined by the funds’ managers and this is considered appropriate for
valuation.
Under the direction of our funds’ manager, WorkCover’s custodian actively trades and holds derivative financial assets and
liabilities on behalf of WorkCover. The custodian has valued these instruments in accordance with the criteria set out above.
There have been no significant transfers in either direction between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year ended 30 June
2013 (2012: no significant transfers in either direction between level 1, level 2 and level 3).

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the extent of credit related losses that WorkCover may be subject to on amounts to be exchanged
under financial instrument contracts or the amount receivable from trade and other debtors.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date for each financial asset is measured as the carrying amount less any
allowance for impairment. Exposure to credit risk is monitored on a regular basis as well as any significant concentrations of
risk. WorkCover has a large number of customers disbursed throughout Queensland and accordingly there are no significant
concentrations of credit risk with their credit quality considered to be the average credit quality of Queensland businesses.
No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by WorkCover, nor is there generally the requirement for
customers
to provide
collateral
as security
for >
financial
assets.
Annual Report
2012-2013
> Leading
the way
Board of
directors
Financial assets are considered impaired where there is objective evidence that WorkCover will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original trade and other receivable terms. Financial assets are generally reviewed on an
individual basis and, if necessary, an allowance is established for individual impairment. Factors considered during these
reviews include historical loss experience, current economic conditions, performance trends within specific portfolio
segments, and any other pertinent information.
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
An allowance for impairment is created for the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

estimated future cash flows. Estimated future cash flows are determined based on risk weightings applied at each stage of
Glenn
is acycle
Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
theon
Queensland
the debt
on which
an associate
riskLexon
factorInsurance
is applied and
based
the likelihood of recovery for each category of debt.
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
(i) Investments
Derivative financial instrument transactions create counterparty risk for WorkCover as there is the risk that fulfilment
of the contract may not occur in the future. The investment manager (on behalf of WorkCover) closely monitors
counterparty risk with the use of various key contracts which outline predetermined thresholds and transaction limits.

24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
liabilities
liability

Credit risk is further minimised by the investment manager through ensuring:
Justin O’Connor BA
The credit ratings of all counterparties are monitored very closely and limits adjusted where necessary.
Deputy Chair
That transactions are undertaken with a large number of counterparties.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
That the majority of transactions are undertaken on recognised derivative trading exchanges where practical.
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
There
may
be further
exposure
counterparty
risk
due to the
overlay accounts if/when they invest in swaps.
Committee
and
delegate
to the
NationaltoExecutive
of the
Australian
Hotels
Association.
There is currently no intention to invest in swaps in the foreseeable future. If swaps are used, the risk will be
managed as per above.

25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
surplus by class
23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus
by class
activities

WorkCover also holds units in managed investment trusts. While these unit trusts are unrated funds the exposure to
(Hons), and
FCPA,isFAICD
Melinda
Bailey
credit
riskBCom
is minimal
mitigated by holding a diverse portfolio of investment funds of which the composition is
Directormonitored regularly by the Board and regular communication between WorkCover and QIC about future cash
drawdown requirements.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle
National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
(ii) Receivables
Australian
Institute are
of Company
Directors.upon falling overdue and various actions including subsequent legal recovery may
Receivables
closely monitored

20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23. Employee benefits
liability

26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel disclosures
activities
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
and methods
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
34.
assumptions
and
methods information
38. Segment
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational risk
36.
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

occur as debts begin to age.

Impairment of receivables is a continuous process that is regularly updated based on WorkCover’s internal debt
framework. This framework was developed with reference to the impairment factors mentioned above.
BSc (Hons),that
PhD fall overdue render an employer uninsured and liable for any claims costs should they incur
Simon Policyholder
Blackwood accounts
Directora claim against their policy.

Anthe
analysis
receivables
that are neither
past
due and
nor impaired,
Simon is
Actingof
Deputy
Director-General,
Office
of Fair
Safe Workpast due or impaired and the allowance for
impairment
follows: for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Queensland,
which is as
responsible
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Neither
Past due
Allowance
past
Net
but not
for
due nor
Impaired
Receivables
impaired
impairment
impaired
2013
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Receivables
Director
4,389
Not yet due
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
Less than 30 days overdue
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
More than 30 but less than 90 days
overdue
More than 90 days overdue
Ian Leavers
Director

7,163

410

11,142

7,048

679

6,369

1,513

609

904

-

-

5,302

1,302

4,000

4,389

-

21,026

3,000

22,415

(note 14)95
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
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Employing
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have
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in note
4.
Queensland
not-for-profit
creditand
riskisisaminimal
and isentity.
mitigated by holding a diverse portfolio of investment funds of which the composition is
monitored regularly by the Board and regular communication between WorkCover and QIC about future cash
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
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report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
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theQueensland,
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Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
drawdown
requirements.
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report
does
not
separately
disclose
WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due
to thetoimmaterial
and the(ii)
WorkCover
Employing Office, where the WorkCover Employing Office is required to provide staff
perform work for
Receivables
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
WorkCover
Queensland.
Receivables
are closely monitored upon falling overdue and various actions including subsequent legal recovery may
note 41.
occur as debts begin to age.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.

Impairment of receivables is a continuous process that is regularly updated based on WorkCover’s internal debt
This financial
reportThis
does
not separately
disclose WorkCover
Queensland’s
financial statements
due to the
immaterial
framework.
framework
was developed
with reference
to the impairment
factors mentioned
above.
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
Policyholder accounts that fall overdue render an employer uninsured and liable for any claims costs should they incur
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a claim against their policy.
An analysis of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired, past due or impaired and the allowance for
impairment is as follows:

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report

Neither
past
due nor
impaired
$’000

Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies

2013

12.
Cash income
and cash
9. Other
equivalents
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income tax claims
on outstanding
equivalents
14.
Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
15.
19.
16.

Intangible
assets
Investments
Payables
Other assets

20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23.
Employee benefits
liability
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
surplus by class
23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus by class
activities
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
activities disclosures
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
32.
29. Auditors'
Consultancy fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34.
assumptions
31. Actuarial
Related parties
and methods
32. Auditors'
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
37.
liabilities
34. Contingent
Actuarial assumptions
and Segment
methods information
38.
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
date
36. Operational risk
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries

Net
Receivables
$’000

4,389

-

7,163

410

11,142

Less than 30 days overdue

-

-

7,048

679

6,369

More than 30 but less than 90 days
overdue

-

-

1,513

609

904

Not yet due

3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
7.
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
estimates
8. Investment income

7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
equivalents
8. Investment income

Impaired
$’000

Allowance
for
impairment
$’000

Receivables

4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates

5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses

Past due
but not
impaired
$’000

More than 90 days overdue

-

-

5,302

1,302

4,000

4,389

-

21,026

3,000

22,415
(note 14)
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Receivables

Not yet due
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Less than 30 days overdue
Chair

17,237

-

232

232

17,237

-

457

1,873

818

1,512

than 30
but less than
90 days
Glenn is More
a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon,
Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
overdue He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia
- and the Supreme
123
Law Foundation.
Court of Queensland.
More than 90 days overdue
336
17,237

916

1,628

983

768

6,005

2,872

3,469

9,738

4,905

22,986
(note 14)

Justin O’Connor BA
(c) Liquidity risk
Deputy Chair
Liquidity risk is the risk that WorkCover will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial instruments.
Justin
is Chief
Executive
of the
Queensland
Hotels
Association
Union
Financial
instrument
liquidity
risk
is considered
extremely
low due
to of
the liquidity of the underlying assets held by the unit
Employers
and is amanages
Director at
Intrustrisk
Super
Fund its
and
IS Financial
Planningportfolio
Pty
trusts. WorkCover
liquidity
through
diversified
investment
that provides for the sale of investments
Ltd.
Justin
is ashort-term
member ofand
thelong-term
Queensland
Responsible
GamblingWorkCover
Advisory regularly reviews its investment strategy having
to meet
both
cash-flow
requirements.
Committee
and
delegatefuture
to theobligations.
National Executive of the Australian Hotels
regard to the
expected
Association.
The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by WorkCover. It represents the contractual maturity
of financial liabilities, calculated based on discounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date.
1 year or
1-3
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
less1
years
Director
Note
2013
$’000
$’000
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Non-derivative financial
liabilities

3-5
years
$’000

More than
5 years
$’000

Total
$’000

19

21,406

-

-

-

21,406

24

60,356

-

-

-

60,356

81,762
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
2012
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
-

-

-

81,762

Payables
Derivative financial liabilities
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Other financial liabilities
Director

Payables

19

20,323
20,323

-

-

-

20,323

-

-

20,323

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
1 Represents commitments that are either due within the timeframe or payable on demand.
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is
responsible
for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
(d)
Market risk
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
The investments
WorkCover
are inBoard
equities
unit trusts
managed by QIC. Due to the nature of the investments
Workplace
Healthheld
and by
Safety
Queensland
andand
a Director
of QLeave.
(property, infrastructure, international equities, Australian equities, diversified fixed interest funds, alternative funds and cash
funds), the portfolio is subject to all of the risks and sensitivities outlined below. The investments are managed on a total
portfolio basis. The rate of return for the total portfolio is 9.7% net of fees (2012: 3.4%).

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
41. Differences between
Ian
Leavers
market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk (foreign exchange rates), interest rate risk (market
WorkCover consolidated
Director
interest rates) and other price risk (market prices).
financial
statements
and
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WorkCover Queensland
Ian
is General
President
CEO risk,
of the
Queensland
Police Union
of its
Employees
financial statements
In order
to mitigate
suchand
market
WorkCover
regularly
reviews
investment strategy and has set asset allocation
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of changes instatement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net outstanding
claim
of
cash flows
liabilities
Notes
to the
Certificate
ofconsolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland
Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Reporting
Critical accounting
1.
entity
judgements and
2.
Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
7. Underwriting
judgements
and expenses
estimates
8. Investment income
5.
premium
9. Net
Other
income revenue
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
equivalents
8.
Investment income
12.Other
Cashincome
and cash
9.
equivalents
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income tax claims
on outstanding
equivalents
14.
Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14.
Receivables
18. Investments
Intangible assets
15.
19.
Payables
16. Other
assets
20. Property,
Unearned plant,
premium
17.
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23. Employee benefits
liability
24. Outstanding
Other financial
21.
claims
liabilities
liability
25. Provisions
Asset revaluation
22.
surplus by class
23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25.
Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus
by class
activities
26.
28. Investment
Commitments
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30. Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel disclosures
activities
31. Commitments
Related parties
28.
32. Consultancy
Auditors'
29.
fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33. Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34. Related
Actuarialparties
assumptions
31.
and methods
32. Auditors'
35. Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
Operational
risk
33.
Risk
37. Actuarial
Contingent
liabilities
34.
assumptions
and
methods information
38. Segment
35.
instruments
39. Financial
Events after
reporting
dateOperational risk
36.
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41. Segment
Differences
between
38.
information
WorkCover consolidated
39.
Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover Queensland
financial
statements
40.
Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
in for
24
60,356
-compensation insurance
60,356
Other
financial
liabilities
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed
Queensland
and is a not-for-profit
entity. in note 4.
81,762
81,762
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2012and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
2003,
This the
financial
reportEmploying
does not separately
disclose
WorkCoverEmploying
Queensland’s
financial
statements
due staff
to the
and
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Office
is required
to provide
toimmaterial
perform work for
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
Non-derivative
financial
WorkCover Queensland.
note
41.
liabilities
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
19
20,323
Payables

-

20,323

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover
Queensland’s financial
statements
20,323
- due to the immaterial
20,323
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
1 Represents commitments that are either due within the timeframe or payable on demand.
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(d) Market risk
The investments held by WorkCover are in equities and unit trusts managed by QIC. Due to the nature of the investments
(property, infrastructure, international equities, Australian equities, diversified fixed interest funds, alternative funds and cash
funds), the portfolio is subject to all of the risks and sensitivities outlined below. The investments are managed on a total
portfolio basis. The rate of return for the total portfolio is 9.7% net of fees (2012: 3.4%).
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk (foreign exchange rates), interest rate risk (market
interest rates) and other price risk (market prices).
In order to mitigate such market risk, WorkCover regularly reviews its investment strategy and has set asset allocation
ranges. There is also strict control over the use of derivatives and hedging instruments, which are only used to facilitate
portfolio management or to reduce investment risk.
The methodology adopted for the purposes of sensitivity analysis is the hypothetical approach permitted by the relevant
Australian Accounting Standard which involves forecasting a reasonably possible change in each of the risk variables and,
where applicable, applying this hypothetical change to the reporting date value of each investment to determine the impact
caused by this change on the value of the investments and the operating result for the financial year. These analyses assume
that all variables remain constant and they were performed on the same basis for 2012.
(i) Currency risk
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The unit trusts are 100% hedged at reporting date. The currency hedging policy is updated on a
yearly basis as part of the investment strategy policy review.
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The market value exposure to foreign currency risk is set out below:

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
International
equity
Law
Foundation.
He isfund
a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
Currency overlay

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

630,842

494,805

(60,356)

14,317

WorkCover’s managed international equity unit trust invests in a portfolio of different international equities spreading the risk
across various currencies. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure, in the absence of the
100% hedge, to foreign exchange rates at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout the financial year. All other variables remaining constant, a 10 percent
Justin O’Connor BA
strengthening or weakening of the Australian dollar against these currencies would affect the operating result after tax and
Deputy
Chair
equity for
the year as follows:
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial
Planning
Movement
in Pty
Ltd.
Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling
Advisory
Variable
variable
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
%
Australian dollar
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director

Impact on operating result and equity
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

+10

-41,387

-32,362

-10

+50,584

+39,553

(ii) Interest
Melinda
is the rate
Chiefrisk
Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute
Interest rate
risk is of
theCompany
risk that Directors.
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose WorkCover to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate
instruments expose WorkCover to fair value interest risk.
The market value exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate on financial instruments are
set out below:
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director

Fixed interest maturing in

Over 1
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Floating
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions
of Private Sector year
Interest Health
1 year
interest
to 5
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace
and Safety
rate
or less
rate
years
Queensland.
Note
2013
%
$’000
$’000
$’000

More
than
5 years
$’000

Noninterest
bearing
$’000

Total
$’000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash
12 (IR)
Note 1
87,950
equivalents
OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin
John Crittall
Director
14
11.25
Receivables
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
2
15
n/a
7,893
Investments
is responsible
for the key areas of industrial
relations,
workplace- health
and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
87,950
7,893
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director
of QLeave.

-

-

-

87,950

-

-

22,415

22,415

-

-

3,280,151

3,288,044

-

-

3,302,566

3,398,409

Financial liabilities
Payables
Investments
Ian Leavers
Director

19

-

-

-

-

-

21,406

21,406

24

-

-

-

-

-

60,356

60,356
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Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

WORKCOVER
QUEENSLAND
81,762
81,76297

of financial position
Financial performance
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of
changes in statement
equity
of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement
Consolidated
of cash flows statement
of financial position
Notes to the consolidated
Consolidated
statement
financial statements
of changes in equity
Actuarial certificate on
Consolidated
statement
net
outstanding
claim
of cash flows
liabilities
Notes
to the
Certificate
of consolidated
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland
Actuarial
certificate
on
Independent
audit report
net outstanding claim
Declaration
by
directors
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
1. Reporting entity

WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and
higher
thehedge,
degree
WorkCover
of foreign
judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
where
orthe
areas
WorkCover
where
assumptions
Employing
Office
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
to the
the
to beginning
perform
consolidated
work
for
100%
to
exchange
rates
at the
reporting
date
and
stipulated
change
taking
placestaff
at
of
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is
thethe
main
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in the
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
4.
year
andis held
constant
throughout
the financial
year. All other variables remaining constant, a 10 percent
Queensland
and
a have
not-for-profit
entity. in note
strengthening or weakening of the Australian dollar against these currencies would affect the operating result after tax and
equity for the
year as follows:
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
Street, Brisbane,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The WorkCover
Employing
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This
financial
report Employing
does not separately
disclose
WorkCover Employing
Queensland’s
statements
due staff
to thetoimmaterial
and the
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Office
is required
to provide
perform work for
Movement
infinancial
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial
statements. These
immaterial
differences
are disclosed
in
WorkCover
Queensland.
Impact
on operating
result
and equity
variable
Variable between
note 41.
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.2013
%
$’000

2012
$’000

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
+10
-41,387
-32,362
Australian between
dollar
differences
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements.
These immaterial
differences are disclosed
in
note 41.
-10
+50,584
+39,553
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(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose WorkCover to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate
instruments expose WorkCover to fair value interest risk.
The market value exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate on financial instruments are
set out below:

2. Basis of preparation
Fixed interest maturing in

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4.
accounting
1. Critical
Reporting
entity
judgements and
2. Basis of preparation
estimates
3.
of significant
5. Summary
Net premium
revenue
accounting policies
6. Net claims incurred
4. Critical accounting
7.
Underwriting
judgements
andexpenses
estimates
8. Investment income
5. Other
Net premium
9.
income revenue
6.
claims
incurred
10.Net
Other
expenses
7.
11.Underwriting
Income tax expenses
equivalents
8. Investment income
12.
Cash income
and cash
9. Other
equivalents
10. Other expenses
13. Recoveries receivable
11.
Income tax claims
on outstanding
equivalents
14.
Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
12. Cash
and cash
and
CEO report
15.
Investments
equivalents
Board
of
directors
16. Recoveries
Other assets
13.
receivable
Executive
team
on
claims
17.outstanding
Property,
plant,
and
equipment
14. Receivables
18.
15.
19.
16.

Intangible
assets
Investments
Payables
Other assets

20.
premium
17. Unearned
Property, plant,
and
liability
equipment
21. Intangible
Outstanding
claims
18.
assets
liability
19. Payables
22. Provisions
20. Unearned premium
23.
Employee benefits
liability
24.
financial
21. Other
Outstanding
claims
liabilities
liability
25.
revaluation
22. Asset
Provisions
surplus by class
23. Employee benefits
26. Investment
24.
Other financial
fluctuation
reserve
liabilities
27. Reconciliation of cash
25. Asset
flows
fromrevaluation
operating
surplus by class
activities
26. Commitments
Investment
28.
fluctuation reserve
29. Consultancy fees
27. Reconciliation of cash
30.
Key
management
flows
from
operating
personnel
activities disclosures
31.
parties
28. Related
Commitments
32.
29. Auditors'
Consultancy fees
remuneration
30. Key management
33.
Insurance
Risk
personnel
disclosures
34.
assumptions
31. Actuarial
Related parties
and methods
32. Auditors'
35.
Financial instruments
remuneration
36. Insurance
OperationalRisk
risk
33.
37.
liabilities
34. Contingent
Actuarial assumptions
and Segment
methods information
38.
35. Events
Financial
instruments
39.
after
reporting
date
36. Operational risk
40. Contingent
Subsidiariesliabilities
37.
41.
between
38. Differences
Segment information
WorkCover consolidated
39. Events
after reporting
financial
statements
and
date
WorkCover
Queensland
financial
statements
40. Subsidiaries

Note

2013

Interest
rate
%

1 year
or less
$’000

Over 1
year
to 5
years
$’000

More
than
5 years
$’000

-

-

-

-

87,950

-

-

-

22,415

22,415

-

7,893

-

-

3,280,151

3,288,044

87,950

7,893

-

-

3,302,566

3,398,409

-

-

-

-

21,406

21,406

-

-

60,356

60,356

-

-

81,762

81,762

-

-

-

68,166

-

-

22,986

22,986

-

-

2,652,470

2,652,718

-

-

2,675,456

2,743,870

-

-

20,323

20,323

Floating
interest
rate
$’000

87,950

Noninterest
bearing
$’000

Total
$’000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

12

Note

1
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Receivables
Investments

15

n/a

2
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Financial liabilities
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
19
Payables

-

Glenn is Investments
a Director of Ferguson Cannon,
and the
24 Lexon Insurance
- Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
-

2012
Financial Assets
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Cash and cash
12
Note 1
68,166
equivalents
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
and is a Director at Intrust
and IS Financial
14 Super Fund
11.25
- Planning- Pty
Receivables
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
2
Committee
and delegate to the National
Hotels
15 Executive
n/aof the Australian
248
Investments
Association.
68,166
248
Financial liabilities
MelindaPayables
Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
19
Director

-

-

-

20,323
20,323
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
1 WorkCover has three everyday banking accounts and one business online saver account. The weighted average interest
Australian
Institute of Company Directors.
rate of the everyday banking accounts and investment savings accounts are 3.07% (2012: 4.36%) and 3.83% (2012:
3.45%) respectively.
The majority of securities in these overlay portfolios are futures and although they are subject to interest rate risk they do
not earn interest except for a number of cash margin accounts that earn minimal interest. However, due to the number of
buy and sell transactions it is impractical to obtain a weighted average interest rate for these investments.
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased or decreased the operating result
for the year after tax and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain
Simon
is the
Deputy
Director-General,
Office
of Fair
and Safe Work
constant.
TheActing
analysis
is performed
on the same
basis
for 2012.
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Movement in
Queensland.
Impact on operating result and equity
variable
Variable
2

BasisCrittall
Points OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
John
Director

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

+100

+1,536

+6,474

-100

-1,534

-6,478

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
(iii) Other price risk
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.
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WorkCover Queensland is a statutory body established under the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003, and is
and thedegree
higher
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
orState
Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing
and
estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
controlled
by the
Queensland
Government.
WorkCover
is the mainOffice
provider
of workers’
compensation
insurance
in for
A
changestatements
of Queensland.
100 is
basis
points
in interest
at the
WorkCover
financial
have
been
disclosed
in note
4. reporting date would have increased or decreased the operating result
Queensland
and
a not-for-profit
entity.rates
for the year after tax and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.
The
analysis place
is performed
on the
same
basis for
2012.Brisbane,
WorkCover’s
WorkCover
Queensland’s
principal
of business
Mr
is Ferguson,
280
Adelaide
Street,
this
report
for
issue on
Australia.
27 August 2013.
The
WorkCover
EmployingChair,
Office
is Glenn
a statutory
body authorised
established
under
theQueensland,
Workers’
Compensation
and Rehabilitation Act
2003, and is controlled by WorkCover Queensland. A work performance arrangement exists between WorkCover Queensland
This the
financial
reportEmploying
does not separately
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WorkCoverMovement
Queensland’s
statements
due staff
to the
and
WorkCover
Office, where
the WorkCover
Employing
Office
is required
to provide
toimmaterial
perform work for
in financial
differences
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial
statements. These
immaterial
differences
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WorkCover
Impact
on operating
result
and equity
variable
Variable Queensland.
note 41.
2013
2012
WorkCover’s principal place of business is 280 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
$’000
$’000

This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
+100
+1,536
+6,474
Basis Points
differences
between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial
statements. These immaterial
differences are disclosed
in
note 41.
-100
-1,534
-6,478

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iii) Other price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.
The significant risk to WorkCover is in relation to the entity’s investment portfolio. As a portfolio, WorkCover holds
investments in unit trusts. The unit trusts in turn hold investments in various instruments including equity, cash, property,
infrastructure and alternative funds. The fair values of such financial instruments are affected by changes in the market price
of the underlying instruments.
The market value exposure to other price risks for WorkCover’s unit trusts are set out below:

Risk exposure1

Unit trust

Note

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Diversified Australian equity fund

Equity

338,349

277,883

International equity fund

Equity

630,842

494,805

Equity
Australian equity special purpose fund
Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Cash
Cash fund

-

3,768

688,193

602,838

309,128

209,363
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Premium cash fund

Cash

Cash enhanced fund

Cash

342,444

-

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Diversified fixed interest fund
Chair

Cash

136,030

449,382

271,167

249,391

43,322

67,081

277

932

Property fund
Property
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Listed infrastructure trust fund
Infrastructure
Court of Queensland.
Capital venture fund

Mixed

Alternative beta fund

Mixed
15

113,726

78,164

2,873,478

2,433,607

Justin O’Connor BA
1 The risk
Deputy
Chair
exposure relates to financial instruments whose values will fluctuate as a result of change in market prices in the
associated category.
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
and is
a Director
at Intrust
Super
Fund and
Financialthat
Planning
Pty increase or decrease of one percentage point
Based on gross
return
received
from the
portfolio,
it is IS
estimated
a general
Ltd.
Justin
is a
member
of the Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Advisory
in the
return
from
investments
in unit trusts
would effect
the operating
result for the year after tax and equity as follows:
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Movement in
Variable
variable
Impact on operating result and equity
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
+1%
Return from unit trusts
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a-1%
Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

+20,114

+17,035

-20,114

-17,035

WorkCover also holds derivative financial instruments as a part of the portfolio. The fair values of such financial instruments
are affected by changes in the market price of the underlying instruments.
The market value exposure to other price risks for WorkCover’s derivative financial instruments are set out below:
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Derivative instruments

Risk exposure

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Currency overlay
Cash of Private Sector
Queensland,
which is responsible for overseeing the divisions
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Derivative
financial
instruments
Cash
15
Queensland.

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

(60,356)

14,317

414,566

204,794

354,210

219,111

Based on gross return received from the portfolio, it is estimated that a general increase or decrease of one percentage point
in the return from investments in derivative financial instruments would effect the operating result for the year after tax and
OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
John
equityCrittall
as follows:
Director
Movement
inand
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over
nine years
isVariable
responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplacevariable
health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
Equity price risk for derivative financial instruments
Ian Leavers
Director

Impact on operating result and equity
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

+1%

+1,677

+1,450

-1%

-1,677

-1,450
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Consolidated statement
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of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors
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WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing Office
and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work for
WorkCover
also holdshave
derivative
financial in
instruments
as a part of the portfolio. The fair values of such financial instruments
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
been disclosed
note 4.
are affected by changes in the market price of the underlying instruments.
WorkCover Queensland’s
WorkCover’s
principal place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
The market value exposure to other price risks for WorkCover’s derivative financial instruments are set out below:
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial 2013
differences are disclosed
in
2012
note
41.
Risk exposure
$’000
$’000
Derivative
instruments
Currency overlay

Cash

Derivative financial instruments

Cash

15

Movement in
variable

Equity price risk for derivative financial instruments

+1%

+1,677

+1,450

-1%

-1,677

-1,450

5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

12. Cash and cash
equivalents
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13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

21. Outstanding claims
liability

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees
30. Key management
personnel disclosures
31. Related parties
32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

Impact on operating result and equity
2012
$’000

4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates

11. Income tax
equivalents

204,794

2013
$’000

2. Basis of preparation

10. Other expenses

414,566

Based on gross return received from the portfolio, it is estimated that a general increase or decrease of one percentage point
in the return from investments in derivative financial instruments would effect the operating result for the year after tax and
equity as follows:

1. Reporting entity

9. Other income

14,317

219,111
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 354,210
STATEMENTS

Variable

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies

(60,356)

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Declaration by directors
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36. OPERATIONAL RISK
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3. Summary of significant
Financial performance
accounting policies
Consolidated statement
4. Critical accounting
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statement
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Investment
Notes
to the
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9. Other
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financial statements
10. Other expenses
Actuarial certificate on
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12. Cash and cash
Certificate of WorkCover
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Queensland
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Declaration by directors
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments
Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment

18. Intangible assets
1. Reporting entity
19. Payables
2. Basis of preparation
20. Unearned premium
3.
Summary of significant
liability
accounting policies
21. Outstanding claims
4.
Critical accounting
liability
judgements and
22.
Provisions
estimates
23.Net
Employee
benefits
5.
premium
revenue
24.Net
Other
financial
6.
claims
incurred
liabilities
7. Underwriting expenses
25. Asset revaluation
8.
Investment
income
surplus
by class
9.
income
26.Other
Investment
fluctuation
reserve
10.
Other expenses

27. Income
Reconciliation
of cash
11.
tax
flows from operating
equivalents
activities
12. Cash and cash
28. Commitments
equivalents

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with WorkCover’s
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
WorkCover’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses with overall cost
effectiveness whilst maintaining the highest levels of customer service.
Responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management within each division. This responsibility is supported by the development of the following business standards:
Development and maintenance of a comprehensive risk register outlining the key risks for each area of the business in
order of importance. These risks are reviewed by the General Managers of each division, are considered in determining
strategic risks and are monitored such that appropriate mitigating action is taken;
Segregation of duties including the appropriate authorisation of transactions;
Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
Annual
Report 2012-2013
> Leading
the way > Board of directors
Documentation
of controls
and procedures;
Establishment and maintenance of a business continuity plan;
On-going training and professional development; and

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ethical and business standards prescribed under a code of conduct policy and guidelines.

Compliance with established business standards and internal controls is supported by a programme of periodic reviews
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
undertaken by Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audits are discussed with the management of the business and
Chair
submitted to the Audit Committee of WorkCover for consideration.
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
personnel
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14.
Receivables
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
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33. Insurance Risk
equipment
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and methods
19. Payables
35. Financial instruments
20. Unearned premium
36. Operational risk
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37. Outstanding
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21.
claims
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38. Segment information

22.
39. Provisions
Events after reporting
dateEmployee benefits
23.
40. Other
Subsidiaries
24.
financial
liabilities
41. Differences between

WorkCover
consolidated
25.
Asset revaluation
financialby
statements
and
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class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities

Ian Leavers
Director

28. Commitments

Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
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1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
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4. Critical accounting
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estimates
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5. Net premium revenue
Consolidated statement
6. Net claims incurred
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7. Underwriting expenses
Consolidated statement
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8.
Investment
Notes
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9.
Other
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10. Other expenses
Actuarial certificate on
11. Income tax
net outstanding claim
equivalents
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12. Cash and cash
Certificate of WorkCover
equivalents
Queensland
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Declaration by directors
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Leading
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16. Other
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18. Intangible assets
1. Reporting entity
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Commitments
equivalents

In the normal course of business, WorkCover is exposed to legal issues, including litigation arising out of insurance policies.
The directors do not believe that there are any potential material litigation exposures at reporting date.
As at reporting date, the Executive Officer believes that there are no contingent liabilities for the WorkCover Employing
Office. There are no other potential material litigation exposures known at reporting date.
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Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

29.
fees
13. Consultancy
Recoveries receivable
on
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30.outstanding
Key management
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disclosures
14. Receivables
31.
parties
15. Related
Investments
32.
16. Auditors'
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33.
Insurance Risk
equipment
34.
18. Actuarial
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and methods
19. Payables
35. Financial instruments
20. Unearned premium
36.
Operational risk
liability
37.
21. Contingent
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
38.
Segment information

22.
39. Provisions
Events after reporting
date
23. Employee benefits
40.
24. Subsidiaries
Other financial
liabilities
41.
Differences between

WorkCover
consolidated
25. Asset revaluation
financial
statements
and
surplus by
class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

27. Reconciliation of cash
Ian Leavers
flows from operating
Director
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activities
Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
28. Commitments
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
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of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

higher
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WorkCover
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or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
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WorkCover
where assumptions
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and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide staff
to the
to perform
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work for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed in note 4.
WorkCover’sQueensland’s
WorkCover
principal place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.

Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Declaration by directors

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Financial performance > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
1. Reporting entity

WorkCover operates within Queensland as the main provider of workers’ compensation insurance to Queensland employers.
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Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

29. Recoveries
Consultancyreceivable
fees
13.
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
personnel
disclosures
14.
Receivables
31. Investments
Related parties
15.
32. Other
Auditors'
16.
assets
remuneration
17. Property, plant, and
33. Insurance Risk
equipment
34. Intangible
Actuarial assumptions
18.
assets
and methods
19. Payables
35. Financial instruments
20. Unearned premium
36. Operational risk
liability
37. Outstanding
Contingent liabilities
21.
claims
liability
38. Segment information

22.
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Director
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Ian Leavers
Director

28. Commitments

Ian is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland
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differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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39. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any item, transactions
or event of a material and unusual nature, likely, in the opinion of the Directors of WorkCover, to affect significantly the
operations of WorkCover, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of WorkCover in future financial years.
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This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note 41.
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40. SUBSIDIARIES
1. Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of WorkCover Queensland and the SPE, the WorkCover
Employing Office (note 1).
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29.
fees
13. Consultancy
Recoveries receivable
on
claims
30.outstanding
Key management
personnel
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14. Receivables
31.
parties
15. Related
Investments
32.
16. Auditors'
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33.
Insurance Risk
equipment
34.
18. Actuarial
Intangibleassumptions
assets
and methods
19. Payables
35. Financial instruments
20. Unearned premium
36.
Operational risk
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41. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN WORKCOVER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a) For the financial year ended 30 June 2013.
(i) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of comprehensive income and parent entity
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2013
There are no differences to the figures disclosed on the face of the WorkCover consolidated statement of comprehensive
income to WorkCover Queensland’s statement of comprehensive income.
(ii) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of financial position and parent entity
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013
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WorkCover
$’000

WorkCover
Queensland
$’000

WorkCover
Employing Office
$’000

87,950

71,362

16,588

49,289

-

21,617

45

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Recoveries receivable on outstanding

A

49,289
claims
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law
Foundation.
He
is
a
Solicitor
of
the
High
Court
of
Australia
and
the
Supreme
B
21,662
Receivables
Court of Queensland.
Investments

1,017,380

1,017,380

-

Other assets

866

866

-

1,177,147

1,160,514

16,633

106,864

-

753

-

2,270,664

2,270,664

-

36,464

36,464

-

251,449

251,449

-

7,293

-

Total current assets

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Non-current assets
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
is a Director
at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Recoveriesand
receivable
on outstanding
Ltd.
Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
106,864
claims
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
753
Receivables
Investments
Property, plant and equipment
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Deferred tax assets

Melinda
is the
Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
7,293
Intangible
assets
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute of Company Directors.
258
Other assets

258

-

Total non-current assets

2,673,745

2,673,745

-

Total assets

3,850,892

3,834,259

16,633

Payables
21,406
Simon
is the Acting Deputy Director-General, OfficeC of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
UnearnedRelations,
premium Electrical
liability Safety and Workplace Health and Safety 7,488
Industrial
Queensland.
1,066,669
Outstanding claims liability

21,133

273

7,488

-

1,066,669

-

715

715

-

14,837

199

14,638

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Current liabilities
Director

Provisions
D

37.
21. Contingent
Outstandingliabilities
claims
liability
38.
Segment information

Employee benefits
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Total current liabilities
Director

1,111,115

1,096,204
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40.
24. Subsidiaries
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41.
Differences between

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
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safety,
legal and
contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
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Unearned premium liability
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-
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-
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statements
and
surplus by
class
WorkCover Queensland
26.
Investment
financial statements
fluctuation reserve

Outstanding claims liability
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Provisions
27. Reconciliation of cash
Ian Leavers
D
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Employee
benefits
flows from operating
Director
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Certificate of WorkCover

Independent
report
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benefits

C
21,406
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273
Payables
WorkCover Queensland’s
WorkCover’s
principal place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
7,488
7,488
Unearned premium liability
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
1,066,669 These immaterial
1,066,669
Outstanding
claims liability
differences
between
the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements.
differences are disclosed in note 41.
715
715
Provisions
Employee benefits

D

Total current liabilities

14,837

199

14,638

1,111,115

1,096,204

14,911
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by directors
24.
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Non-current liabilities

25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class

Unearned premium liability

364

364

-

Outstanding claims liability

1,622,517

1,622,517

-

385

385

-

1,722

-

1,722

26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
1. Reporting entity
flows from operating
2. Basis of preparation
activities
3. Summary
of significant
28.
Commitments
accounting policies
29. Consultancy fees
4. Critical accounting
30. Key management
judgements and
personnel disclosures
estimates
31. Related parties
5. Net premium revenue
32. Auditors'
6. Net claims incurred
remuneration
7. Underwriting expenses
33. Insurance Risk
8. Investment income
34. Actuarial assumptions
9. Other
income
and
methods
10. Financial
Other expenses
35.
instruments
11. Operational
Income tax risk
36.
equivalents
37. Contingent liabilities
12. Cash and cash
38. Segment information
equivalents
39. Events after reporting
13. Recoveries receivable
date
on outstanding claims
40. Subsidiaries
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
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and
CEO report between
15. Investments
WorkCover consolidated
Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
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statements
and
WorkCover
Queensland
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
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statements
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Provisions
Employee benefits

D

Other financial liabilities

60,356

60,356

-

Total non-current liabilities

1,685,344

1,683,622

1,722

Total liabilities

2,796,459

2,779,826

16,633

Net assets

1,054,433

1,054,433

-

481,791

481,791

-

13,349

13,349

-

559,293

559,293

-

1,054,433

1,054,433

-

Equity
Investment fluctuation reserve
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Total equity

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
(iii) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of changes in equity and parent entity
Chair
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2013
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
There
are no differences
to the figures
onof
the
face of and
the WorkCover
consolidated statement of changes in equity to
Law
Foundation.
He is a Solicitor
of thedisclosed
High Court
Australia
the Supreme
WorkCover
Queensland’s statement of changes in equity.
Court
of Queensland.
(iv) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of cash flows and parent entity statement of
cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2013

18. Intangible assets
19. Payables

WorkCover
$’000

20. Unearned premium
liability

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

21. Outstanding claims
liability

Cashisflows
operating
Justin
Chief from
Executive
of the activities
Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
1,635,206
Premiums
received
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Premiums refunded
(29,612)
Association.
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34. Actuarial assumptions
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36. Operational risk
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38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

(29,612)

-

7,579

-

(5,462)

(5,462)

-

160,818

22

807

-

(1,342,878)

(1,342,878)

-

61,719

61,719

-

F

(24,345)

(25,470)

-

G

-

-

(75,385)

G
Employment services income
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
H
1,017
Other revenue received
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.
H
(848)
Other expenses paid

-

76,481

1,017

37

(848)

(8)

(18,676)

(18,580)

(96)

(142,290)

(142,290)

-

409,599

408,548

1,051

John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
isCash
responsible
for the
key areasactivities
of industrial relations, workplace health and
flows from
investing
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace
and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.
(888,639)
AcquisitionHealth
of investments

(888,639)

-

500,639

500,639

-

(577)

(577)

-

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Investment management fees paid
Director

E
160,840
GST collected
on sales
Melinda
is the Chief
Financial Officer and General Manager
Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
807
GST refunded
fromofATO
Australian
Institute
Company Directors.

Claims recoveries received

33. Insurance Risk

-

106,542

Claims paid

32. Auditors'
remuneration

1,635,206

7,579

29. Consultancy fees

31. Related parties

WorkCover
Employing Office
$’000

106,542

Unit trust distributions received

28. Commitments
30. Key management
personnel disclosures

Note

WorkCover
Queensland
$’000

Underwriting expenses paid
Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Employee benefits expense paid
Director

GST paid on purchases
GST remitted to the ATO
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Net cash from operating activities
Director

Proceeds from sale of investments
Acquisition of intangible assets
Ian
Leaversof property, plant and
Acquisition
Director
equipment

I

(1,479)
ANNUAL REPORT (1,479)
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Ian
is General
and CEO plant
of theand
Queensland Police Union of Employees
Proceeds
fromPresident
sale of property,
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland

higher
and
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing Office
and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work for
G
(75,385)
Employee benefits expense paid
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed in note 4.
G
76,481
Employment services income
WorkCover Queensland’s
WorkCover’s
principal place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
H
1,017
1,017
37
Other revenue received
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
H
(848)These immaterial (848)
Other expenses
paidthe consolidated and parent entity’s
differences
between
financial statements.
differences are disclosed (8)
in
note 41.
I
(18,676)
(18,580)
(96)
GST paid on purchases
(142,290)

(142,290)

-

409,599

408,548

1,051

(888,639)

(888,639)

-

500,639

500,639

-

(577)

(577)

-

(1,479)

(1,479)

-

241

241

-

Net cash (used in) investing activities

(389,815)

(389,815)

-

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

19,784

18,733

1,051

GST remitted to the ATO
Net cash from operating activities

Independent audit report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Declaration by directors

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Acquisition of intangible assets

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

A

68,166

52,629

15,537

87,950

71,362

16,588

Annual Report 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
(v) Notes to reconciliations

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. The difference in the cash asset balance represents the WorkCover Employing Office bank account balance of $16.588
million included in the WorkCover accounts.

13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims

Glenn
FAICD,
FANZCN corporate debtors balance.
B. WEOFerguson
receivableFAAL,
balance
represents
Chair

14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments

C. The payables balance in WorkCover is $0.273 million more than WorkCover Queensland due to the balance of the
Glenn
is a Director
of Ferguson
Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
WorkCover
Employing
Office payables.
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
D. The current liability for employee benefits in WorkCover Queensland is the CEO’s employee benefits. All other employee
benefit liabilities are in the WorkCover Employing Office.

Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities
28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees
30. Key management
personnel disclosures
31. Related parties
32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods
35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

E. GST collected has a difference of $22,000 representing the GST collected on the WorkCover Employing Office taxable
supplies.
BA$1.125 million of underwriting expenses paid in WorkCover is the difference between the payment made
Justin
O’Connorof
F. The difference
by WorkCover
Deputy
Chair Queensland to the WorkCover Employing Office for employment services and the payment made by the
WorkCover Employing Office for employee benefits and other expenses, offset by other revenue (Refer to notes G and H).
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers
and ismillion
a Director
at Intrust
Super Fund
andis IS
Pty
G. The $76.481
employment
services
income
theFinancial
amount Planning
paid by WorkCover
Queensland (underwriting expense) to
Ltd.
Justin is a member
of Office
the Queensland
Responsible
Gambling
Advisory
the WorkCover
Employing
for employment
services
provided.
The $75.385 million employee benefits expense paid by
Committee
and Employing
delegate toOffice
the National
Executive
of the Australian
Hotelsfor WorkCover.
the WorkCover
is categorised
as underwriting
expenses
Association.

H. The other expenses paid of $8,000 in WorkCover Employing Office is represented by contractor payments of $6,000 and
other administration expenses of $2,000. Other revenue received of $37,000 represents payments by external organisations
for employee services. These are categorised as underwriting expenses for WorkCover.
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
I. GST paid has a difference of $96,000 representing the GST paid by the WorkCover Employing Office on creditable
Director
acquisitions.
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
(b) For
the financial
year ended
30 is
June
2012
Heavy
Vehicle
National Regulator.
Melinda
a Fellow
CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
Institute of
Directors.
(i) Reconciliation
of Company
differences
between consolidated statement of comprehensive income and parent entity
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2012
There are no differences to the figures disclosed on the face of the WorkCover consolidated statement of comprehensive
income to WorkCover Queensland’s statement of comprehensive income.
(ii) Reconciliation
of differences
between consolidated statement of financial position and parent entity
(Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood BSc
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
WorkCover
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Note
$’000
Queensland.

WorkCover
Queensland
$’000

WorkCover
Employing Office
$’000

68,166

52,629

15,537

44,519

44,519

-

Receivables
B
22,096
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
isInvestments
responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health
and
1,033,422
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace
Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.1,341
Other assets

22,088

8

1,033,422

-

1,341

-

1,169,544

1,153,999

15,545

101,816

-

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Recoveries receivable on outstanding
John
Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
claims
Director

Total current assets

A

Ian
Leavers assets
Non-current
Director
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Recoveries receivable on outstanding

Ian
is General President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of Employees
101,816
claims
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

Current assets
higher
and
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing Office
and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed in note 4.A
68,166
52,629
15,537
Cash and
cash
equivalents
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
principal place
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
RecoveriesQueensland’s
receivable
onChair,
outstanding
44,519
44,519
claims
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
B
22,096 These immaterial
22,088
Receivablesbetween the consolidated and parent entity’s
differences
financial statements.
differences are disclosed in8
note 41.
1,033,422
1,033,422
Investments
1,341

1,341

-

1,169,544

1,153,999

15,545

101,816

101,816

-

890

890

-

1,619,296

1,619,296

-

44,659

44,659

-

466,726

466,726

-

8,733

8,733

-

350

350

-

Total non-current assets

2,242,470

2,242,470

-

Total assets

3,412,014

3,396,469

15,545

20,323

20,025

298

Other assets
Total current assets

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Non-current assets
Recoveries receivable on outstanding
claims
Receivables

1. Reporting entity

Investments

2. Basis of preparation

Property, plant and equipment

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies

Deferred tax assets

4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses

Intangible assets
Other assets

8. Investment income
9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments

Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities
28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees

Current
liabilities
Annual
Report
2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors
Payables

C

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6,252

6,252

-

1,077,941

1,077,941

-

252

252

-

199

13,250

1,104,669

13,548

1,750,209

1,750,209

-

527

527

-

D
Employee
benefits
Justin
is Chief
Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association
Union of 1,997
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
1,752,733
Total
non-current
liabilities
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
2,870,950
Total liabilities
Association.

-

1,997

1,750,736

1,997

2,855,405

15,545

541,064

541,064

-

17,274

-

523,790

-

541,064

-

Unearned premium liability

Outstanding claims liability
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Provisions
Chair

D
13,449
Employee
benefitsof Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance
Glenn
is a Director
and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Totalofcurrent
liabilities
1,118,217
Court
Queensland.

Non-current liabilities
Outstanding claims liability
Justin O’Connor BA
Provisions
Deputy
Chair

Net assets
Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Equity
Director

17,274
Asset revaluation
Melinda
is the Chiefsurplus
Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
523,790
Accumulated
surplus
Australian
Institute
of Company Directors.
Total equity

541,064

30. Key management
personnel disclosures

(iii) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of changes in equity and parent entity
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2012

31. Related parties

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
There are no differences to the figures disclosed on the face of the WorkCover consolidated statement of changes in equity to
Director
WorkCover Queensland’s statement of changes in equity.

32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods

Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
(iv) Reconciliation
differences
statement
of cashflows and parent entity statement of
Queensland,
which is of
responsible
for between
overseeingconsolidated
the divisions of
Private Sector
cashflowsRelations,
for the year
ended
30 June
2012
Industrial
Electrical
Safety
and Workplace
Health and Safety
Queensland.

35. Financial instruments
Note

36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

Cash flows from operating activities
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
Premiums received

WorkCover
$’000

WorkCover
Queensland
$’000

WorkCover
Employing Office
$’000

1,456,169

1,456,169

-

John
is a Director
at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years
and
(23,794)
Premiums
refunded
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety,
legal
and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
4,056
Interest
received
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

(23,794)

-

4,056

-

118,665

118,665

-

(4,691)

(4,691)

-

143,735

143,726

9

Unit trust distributions received
Investment management fees paid
GST collected on sales
Ian Leavers
Director
GST refunded from ATO

E

2,631
2,631 QUEENSLAND ANNUAL REPORT 2012–2013
WORKCOVER
109

Ian
is General
Employees
Claims
paid President and CEO of the Queensland Police Union of(1,346,999)
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

(1,346,999)

-

of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows

higher
and
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
where assumptions
Employing Office
and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work for
WorkCover
financial
Queensland.
have been disclosed in note 4.
Equity statements
17,274
17,274
Asset revaluation
surplus
WorkCover
WorkCover’s
Queensland’s
principal
place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this report
Queensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August
2013.

-

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

523,790
523,790
Accumulated surplus
This financial report does not separately disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
541,064
541,064
Total equity
note 41.

Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities

(iii) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of changes in equity and parent entity
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2012

Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are no differences to the figures disclosed on the face of the WorkCover consolidated statement of changes in equity to
WorkCover Queensland’s statement of changes in equity.
(iv) Reconciliation of differences between consolidated statement of cashflows and parent entity statement of
cashflows for the year ended 30 June 2012

Note

WorkCover
$’000

WorkCover
Queensland
$’000

WorkCover
Employing Office
$’000

1. Reporting entity

Cash flows from operating activities

2. Basis of preparation

Premiums received

1,456,169

1,456,169

-

Premiums refunded

(23,794)

(23,794)

-

4,056

4,056

-

118,665

118,665

-

(4,691)

(4,691)

-

143,735

143,726

9

2,631

2,631

-

Annual
ClaimsReport
paid 2012-2013 > Leading the way > Board of directors (1,346,999)

(1,346,999)

-

46,133

46,133

-

F

(19,276)

(21,045)

-

G

-

-

(71,885)

G

-

-

73,710

898

-

(45)

(56)

3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments
Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability
22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities

Interest received
Unit trust distributions received
Investment management fees paid
GST collected on sales

E

GST refunded from ATO

Claims recoveries received

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Underwriting expenses paid

Employee benefits expense paid
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Employment services income

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
898
Other revenue received
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.
H
(45)
Other expenses paid
(19,088)

(18,962)

(126)

(120,411)

(120,411)

-

237,983

236,331

1,652

Justin
Chief from
Executive
of the activities
Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Cashisflows
investing
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd.
Justin is of
a member
of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Acquisition
investments
(938,545)
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.
Proceeds from sale of investments
746,658

(938,545)

-

746,658

-

(441)

(441)

-

(7,396)

-

93

-

(199,631)

-

36,700

1,652

15,929

13,885

52,629

15,537

GST paid on purchases
GST remitted to the ATO
Net cash from operating activities
Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

Acquisition of intangible assets

I

Acquisition of property, plant and
Melinda
Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
(7,396)
equipment
Director
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
Melinda
is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
93
equipment
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian
of investing
Company Directors.
(199,631)
Net cashInstitute
(used in)
activities

28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees
30. Key management
personnel disclosures
31. Related parties
32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods
35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

38,352

Cash and cash equivalents at the
BSc (Hons), PhD
Simon
Blackwood
29,814
beginning
of the year
Director
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
Simon
the Acting Deputy Director-General, OfficeA of Fair and Safe Work
68,166
of theisyear
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
(v) Notes to reconciliations
Queensland.

A. The difference in the cash asset balance represents the WorkCover Employing Office bank account balance of $15.537
million included in the WorkCover accounts.
B. WEO receivable balance represents corporate debtors balance.
John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
C. The payables balance in WorkCover is $0.298 million more than WorkCover Queensland due to the balance of the
WorkCover Employing Office payables.
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
D. The current
liability
for employee
in WorkCover
is the CEO’s employee benefits. All other employee
safety,
legal and
contractual
servicesbenefits
and training.
John is aQueensland
Director of the
benefit liabilities
the WorkCover
Employing
Office.
Workplace
Healthare
andinSafety
Queensland
Board and
a Director of QLeave.
E. GST collected has a difference of $9,000 representing the GST collected on the WorkCover Employing Office taxable
supplies.
F. The difference of $1.769 million of underwriting expenses paid in WorkCover is the difference between the payment made
Ian
Leavers Queensland to the WorkCover Employing Office for employment services and the payment made by the
by WorkCover
Director
WorkCover Employing Office for employee benefits and other expenses (Refer to notes G and H).
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Ian
is General
President
and CEO of the
Queensland
of paid
Employees
G. The
$73.710
million employment
services
income Police
is the Union
amount
by WorkCover Queensland (underwriting expense) to
and has held this position since 2009. He has been involved with the Queensland

of financial position
Consolidated statement
of changes in equity
Consolidated statement
of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
Actuarial certificate on
net outstanding claim
liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover
Queensland
Independent audit report
Declaration by directors

A where assumptions
52,629
15,537
of the
year
higher
and
thedegree
WorkCover
of judgement
Employing
or Office,
complexity,
whereorthe
areas
WorkCover
Employing68,166
Office
and estimates
is required
are
tosignificant
provide
staff
to the
to perform
consolidated
work
for
WorkCover
financial
statements
Queensland.
have been disclosed in note 4.
(v) Notes to reconciliations
WorkCover’sQueensland’s
WorkCover
principal place
Chair,
of business
Mr Glenn
is Ferguson,
280 Adelaide
authorised
Street, Brisbane,
this reportQueensland,
for issue on Australia.
27 August 2013.
A. The difference in the cash asset balance represents the WorkCover Employing Office bank account balance of $15.537
This financial
report
does
not separately
disclose WorkCover Queensland’s financial statements due to the immaterial
million
included
in the
WorkCover
accounts.
differences between the consolidated and parent entity’s financial statements. These immaterial differences are disclosed in
note
41.receivable balance represents corporate debtors balance.
B.
WEO
C. The payables balance in WorkCover is $0.298 million more than WorkCover Queensland due to the balance of the
WorkCover Employing Office payables.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D. The current liability for employee benefits in WorkCover Queensland is the CEO’s employee benefits. All other employee
benefit liabilities are in the WorkCover Employing Office.
E. GST collected has a difference of $9,000 representing the GST collected on the WorkCover Employing Office taxable
supplies.
F. The difference of $1.769 million of underwriting expenses paid in WorkCover is the difference between the payment made
by WorkCover Queensland to the WorkCover Employing Office for employment services and the payment made by the
WorkCover Employing Office for employee benefits and other expenses (Refer to notes G and H).

1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue

G. The $73.710 million employment services income is the amount paid by WorkCover Queensland (underwriting expense) to
the WorkCover Employing Office for employment services provided. The $71.885 million employee benefits expense paid by
the WorkCover Employing Office is categorised as underwriting expenses for WorkCover.
H. The other expenses paid of $56,000 in WorkCover Employing Office is represented by contractor payments of $50,000 and
other administration expenses of $6,000. These are categorised as underwriting expenses for WorkCover.
I. GST paid has a difference of $0.126 million representing the GST paid by the WorkCover Employing Office on creditable
acquisitions.

6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income
9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
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13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

14. Receivables
Leading
the way – Chair
and
CEO report
15. Investments

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Board
of directors
16. Other
assets
Executive
team
17. Property,
plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair

21. Outstanding claims
liability

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve
27. Reconciliation of cash
flows from operating
activities

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

28. Commitments
29. Consultancy fees
30. Key management
personnel disclosures
31. Related parties
32. Auditors'
remuneration
33. Insurance Risk
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Declaration by directors

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplusWORKCOVER
by class
112
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

Ian Leavers
Director
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CERTIFICATE OF WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Declaration by directors

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplus by class
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

Ian Leavers
Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Declaration by directors

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
23. Employee benefits
24. Other financial
liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplusWORKCOVER
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114
26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

Ian Leavers
Director
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30. Key management
personnel disclosures

Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair

31.
Related
Leading
the parties
way – Chair
andAuditors'
CEO report
32.
remuneration
Board of directors

Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

33.
Insurance
Risk
Executive
team
34. Actuarial assumptions
and methods
35. Financial instruments
36. Operational risk
37. Contingent liabilities
38. Segment information
39. Events after reporting
date
40. Subsidiaries
41. Differences between
WorkCover consolidated
financial statements and
WorkCover Queensland
financial statements

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

Ian Leavers
Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Glenn Ferguson FAAL, FAICD, FANZCN
Chair
Glenn is a Director of Ferguson Cannon, Lexon Insurance and the Queensland
Law Foundation. He is a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia and the Supreme
Court of Queensland.

Declaration by directors

Justin O’Connor BA
Deputy Chair
1. Reporting entity
2. Basis of preparation
3. Summary of significant
accounting policies
4. Critical accounting
judgements and
estimates
5. Net premium revenue
6. Net claims incurred
7. Underwriting expenses
8. Investment income

Justin is Chief Executive of the Queensland Hotels Association Union of
Employers and is a Director at Intrust Super Fund and IS Financial Planning Pty
Ltd. Justin is a member of the Queensland Responsible Gambling Advisory
Committee and delegate to the National Executive of the Australian Hotels
Association.

Melinda Bailey BCom (Hons), FCPA, FAICD
Director
Melinda is the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager Corporate Services,
Heavy Vehicle National Regulator. Melinda is a Fellow CPA and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

9. Other income
10. Other expenses
11. Income tax
equivalents
12. Cash and cash
equivalents
13. Recoveries receivable
on outstanding claims
14. Receivables
15. Investments

Simon Blackwood BSc (Hons), PhD
Director
Simon is the Acting Deputy Director-General, Office of Fair and Safe Work
Queensland, which is responsible for overseeing the divisions of Private Sector
Industrial Relations, Electrical Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland.

16. Other assets
17. Property, plant, and
equipment
18. Intangible assets
19. Payables
20. Unearned premium
liability
21. Outstanding claims
liability

John Crittall OAM BEcon (Hons), MAdmin (IR)
Director
John is a Director at Master Builders, a role he has held for over nine years and
is responsible for the key areas of industrial relations, workplace health and
safety, legal and contractual services and training. John is a Director of the
Workplace Health and Safety Queensland Board and a Director of QLeave.

22. Provisions
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liabilities
25. Asset revaluation
surplusWORKCOVER
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26. Investment
fluctuation reserve

Ian Leavers
Director
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GLOSSARY
Term

Definition

A
Accident
Insurance
Policy

An Accident Insurance Policy is a workers’ compensation insurance policy, compulsory for employers
engaging workers. The policy covers the employer’s liability for workers’ compensation and damages
arising out of an work-related injury sustained by their worker, no matter who or what caused it.

Asbestos
related
diseases

Asbestos related diseases are caused by the inhalation of asbestos fibres over a period of time. Asbestos
related diseases typically have long latency periods, that is ten to forty years from exposure to onset of the
disease.

Average
premium rate

The average premium rate is a rate per $100 of wages, expressed as a percentage, calculated by averaging
net premium assessed for the year as a proportion of total wages declared by all employers for that year.

C
Claims
experience

An employer’s claims experience is used when calculating premium and is comprised of the statutory claims
amounts paid under an employer’s Accident Insurance Policy for the preceding three years and the
damages claims amounts paid under the policy for the two years preceding that.

Certificate of
Currency

A Certificate of Currency identifies whether an insurance policy is up-to-date for the current period of
insurance. Accident insurance policyholders can generate their own Certificate of Currency through
WorkCover Queensland’s online services.

Common law
claim

A common law claim is the claim made by an injured worker who commences common law action through
the courts against their employer for negligence (they are ’suing’ their employer). The courts award
common law damages payments for economic loss, pain and suffering, legal costs, and medical and
hospital costs. WorkCover may pay all damages awarded to the injured worker, including legal and
investigative costs as part of its Accident Insurance Policy.

D
Damages

Damages are payments made under a common law claim that are classified as ’heads of damage’. These
are different types of damage that may be suffered by an injured worker. Examples are:
general damages (compensation for pain and suffering)
economic loss (compensation for loss of past earnings or future earning capacity).

Declaration
of Wages
form

Where wage information from employers is required to conduct a premium assessment, a Declaration of
Wages form will be sent. Employers can return their wage information by completing the form, calling
WorkCover, or entering their wages online. In all instances, wage information must be provided to
WorkCover by 31 August.

E
Estimated
wages

When calculating premium, WorkCover requires details of the actual wages paid during the last financial
year and the estimated wages you expect to pay in the next financial year.

G
Goods and
services tax

GST is payable on your premium but, like most Queensland employers, you are likely to be eligible to claim
an input tax credit from the Australian Taxation Office. To enable WorkCover to meet its GST requirements,
WorkCover requires you to provide, your ABN and your percentage entitlement to input tax credits (see
input tax credit for further information about this). Payments of weekly compensation do not attract GST.

H
Health
provider

Health provider refers to any medical or allied health provider (for example a doctor, medical specialist,
physiotherapist, chiropractor or occupational therapist) who is registered with the relevant professional
board (e.g. Physiotherapist Board of Queensland).

Host
employer

A host employer is an employer who agrees to host an injured worker at their workplace when the worker
is unable to participate in workplace rehabilitation with their original employer. These programs normally
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G
Goods and
services tax

GST is payable on your premium but, like most Queensland employers, you are likely to be eligible to claim
an input tax credit from the Australian Taxation Office. To enable WorkCover to meet its GST requirements,
WorkCover requires you to provide, your ABN and your percentage entitlement to input tax credits (see
input tax credit for further information about this). Payments of weekly compensation do not attract GST.

H
Health
provider

Health provider refers to any medical or allied health provider (for example a doctor, medical specialist,
physiotherapist, chiropractor or occupational therapist) who is registered with the relevant professional
board (e.g. Physiotherapist Board of Queensland).

Host
employer

A host employer is an employer who agrees to host an injured worker at their workplace when the worker
is unable to participate in workplace rehabilitation with their original employer. These programs normally
run from three to six weeks. A host employer is not obliged to employ a person after their program has
ended.

I
Impairment

The Act describes impairment from injury as being ’a loss of, or loss of efficient use of, any part of a
worker’s body’. This includes psychological injuries.

Industry
classification

See WorkCover Industry Classification (WIC)
An industry classification system based on the Australian and New Zealand Standard Industrial
Classification. Businesses are assigned an appropriate industry category on the basis of their whole-ofbusiness activity.

Industry rate

The WorkCover industry rate is the amount of premium per $100 of wages for a specific WorkCover
Industry Classification (WIC) code.

Injury

An injury, as defined by the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 is,’A personal injury
arising out of, or in the course of, employment if the employment is a significant contributing factor to the
injury’
Some examples of injuries include:
a cut or fracture;
a disease (example asbestos or Q-fever);
industrial deafness,
psychiatric or psychological disorders such as stress or depression;
aggravation of a pre-existing condition;
death from an injury, disease or aggravation of a disease.

P
Policyholder

Is an individual or entity that holds an insurance policy with WorkCover.

Premium
notice

Is a notice that is sent to WorkCover policyholders detailing an amount payable on their policy following
inception, renewal or re-assessment.

Premium rate

The rate per $100 of wages for an individual employer.

Q
Q-COMP

Q-COMP is the Workers’ Compensation Regulatory Authority.

R
Rehabilitation

Under workers’ compensation legislation, the purpose of rehabilitation is to ensure the worker’s safest and
earliest possible return-to-work or to maximise the worker’s independent functioning. Rehabilitation for
return-to-work (sometimes called occupational, vocational or workplace rehabilitation) can include
treatment from a range of health providers, assessments of work capacity and suitable duties programs.
Under legislation, workers and employers must take every reasonable step to participate in rehabilitation
and return-to-work programs.

Results test

Is one of the tests used by WorkCover Queensland to determine if a person is considered a ’worker’ under
Schedule 2, Part 1 ’Persons who are workers’ in the Act.

Return to
work

The worker’s timely, safe and medically structured return to pre-injury duties, or other employment,
following workplace injury.

S
Self-insurer

An employer who meets certain criteria to manage their own workers’ compensation issues. Contact QCOMP for more information.

Stamp duty

Stamp duty is payable to the Queensland Government on many property and business transactions,
including workers’ compensation insurance premiums. Stamp duty has been included in premiums since
1916. Before the introduction of the GST, WorkCover included stamp duty in the final premium amount
shown on your Premium Notice. Due to the GST, WorkCover now clearly lists the stamp duty payable as a
separate item on your Premium Notice.

Statutory
(no-fault)
claims

A statutory or no-fault claim is when a worker is compensated for a work-related injury with payments and
benefits prescribed in the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003. These payments and
benefits are referred to as statutory compensation and may include weekly payments as income
replacement, lump sums to compensate for permanent impairment, and hospital and medical expenses.
Statutory claims are administered on a ’no fault’ basis. That is, it doesn’t matter if it is the worker’s or the
employer’s fault that the injury occurred-compensation is still paid.

Succession

Succession may be applied when a new employer acquires an existing business, and the new employer has
previously been associated with that business. Generally, applying succession will mean the premium rate
of the cancelled policy will be transferred to the new employer’s policy as the initial premium rate.

Suitable
duties
program

A suitable duties program is designed to help workers return to work gradually through a supervised
process. The program matches a worker’s abilities with appropriate work tasks and hours. The goal of the
program helps workers return to their normal duties.

W
Wages

Wages are the total amount an employer pays to a worker as defined by Schedule 6 of the Workers’
Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003.

Work-related
injury

An injury where employment was a significant contributing factor.

WorkCover

An industry classification system based on the Australian and New Zealand Standard Industrial

Classification
(WIC)

business activity.
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Succession

Succession may be applied when a new employer acquires an existing business, and the new employer has
previously been associated with that business. Generally, applying succession will mean the premium rate
of the cancelled policy will be transferred to the new employer’s policy as the initial premium rate.

Suitable
duties
program

A suitable duties program is designed to help workers return to work gradually through a supervised
process. The program matches a worker’s abilities with appropriate work tasks and hours. The goal of the
program helps workers return to their normal duties.

W
Wages

Wages are the total amount an employer pays to a worker as defined by Schedule 6 of the Workers’
Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003.

Work-related
injury

An injury where employment was a significant contributing factor.

WorkCover
Industry
Classification
(WIC)

An industry classification system based on the Australian and New Zealand Standard Industrial
Classification. Businesses will be assigned an appropriate industry category on the basis of their whole-ofbusiness activity.

Worker

A ’worker’ for the purposes of the Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 2003 is an individual
employed under a Contract of Service (sect 11) or specifically included under Schedule 2 Part 1, unless
specifically excluded under Schedule 2 Part 2.
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COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST
Summary of requirement

Annual report reference

Letter of compliance

A letter of compliance from the
accountable officer or statutory body
to the relevant Minister

Welcome

Accessibility

Table of contents

Site map

Glossary

Glossary

Public availability

Welcome

Interpreter service statement

Welcome

Copyright notice

Welcome

Information licensing

Welcome

Introductory information

About WorkCover

Agency role and main functions

About WorkCover

Operating environment

Chair and CEO report

Government objectives for the
community

Chair and CEO report

Agency objectives and performance
indicators

Highlights

Agency service areas, service
standards and other measures

Highlights

Financial performance

Summary of financial performance

Financial performance

Governance—management and
structure

Organisational structure

Corporate governance

Executive management

Executive team

Related entities

Financial performance

Boards and committees

Corporate governance

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Risk management

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

External scrutiny

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Audit Committee

Corporate governance

Internal audit

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Public Sector Renewal Program

Chair and CEO report

Information systems and
recordkeeping

Corporate governance

General information

Non-financial performance

Governance—risk management and
accountability
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Governance—human
resources
Workforce planning, attraction, and
retention

Engaged people

Related entities

Financial performance

Boards and committees

Corporate governance

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Risk management

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

External scrutiny

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Audit Committee

Corporate governance

Internal audit

Ethics, compliance, and risk
management

Public Sector Renewal Program

Chair and CEO report

Information systems and
recordkeeping

Corporate governance

Governance—human resources

Workforce planning, attraction, and
retention

Engaged people

Open Data

Open Data

Chair and CEO report

Financial statements

Certification of financial statements

Actuarial certificate on net outstanding
claim liabilities
Certificate of WorkCover Queensland

Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report

Remuneration disclosures

Key management personnel disclosures

Governance—risk management and
accountability
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